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Performance Indicators
Description

Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol

Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol

2013 2012
Top Connectivity
Destinations 323 317
Passenger numbers (incl. transit passengers) 52,569,200 51,035,590
Air transport movements 425,565 423,407
Cargo volume 1,531,089 tonnes 1,483,448 tonnes
Passenger market share (top-10 European airports) 10.8% 10.7%
Cargo market share (top-10 European airports) 14.6% 13.9%
O/D passengers 30,515,701 30,100,632
Transfer passengers 22,011,998 20,874,960
Arrival punctuality 87.6% 86.1%
Departure punctuality 81.9% 81.2%
Accessibility and air quality
Passenger satisfaction with train services to and from Schiphol 89%; 88% 88%; 87%
Passengers arriving by public transport 39.2% 38.2%
Passengers being dropped off or picked up by car 26.6% 28.0%
Passengers who park their car at Schiphol 13.0% 13.1%
Passengers arriving by taxi 10.0% 9.9%
Passengers arriving by collective transport 7.9% 7.7%
Passengers coming to Schiphol using another form of transport 3.3% 3.1%

Excellent Visit Value
Irregularity rate 1.7% 1.5%
Departing passengers rating Schiphol as good/excellent 96% 95%
Arriving passengers rating Schiphol as good/excellent 95% 95%
Price/quality ratio of Retail Airside (passenger satisfaction) 60% 60%
Spending per departing passenger, Retail Airside (in euro) 15.89 16.69
Parking revenues per departing Dutch passenger (in euro) 7.96 8.03
Concession revenues per departing passenger (in euro) 5.52 5.62
Costs per Work Load Unit (in euro) 10.87 10.77

Competitive Marketplace
Companies located on airport grounds approx. 500 497
Immediate profit on property investments (before tax) 5.8% 5.0%
Expiry of lease contracts within one year 5.2% 5.2%
Occupancy rate of property portfolio 86.3% 91.8%
Occupancy rate of property for operating activities in airport terminal 90.1% 91.4%
Occupancy rate of property for operating activities 80.6% 91.3%
Occupancy rate of offices 75.8% 84.0%
Occupancy rate of business premises 92.9% 97.9%
Size of property portfolio (m2) 586,364 565,899

Sustainable Performance
Noise and the local community
Enforcement point breaches 1 None 2
People who filed noise reports with Local Community Contact Centre Schiphol
(Bas)

4,624 5,286

Specific reports 93,045 84,674
Period reports 28,189 42,069
Other reports 537 3,861
Focus-group complainants 4,597 5,253

Percentage of habitual complainants and their share in total number of reports
0.6% habitual

complainants responsible
for 67.8% of all reports

0.6% habitual
complainants responsible
for 59.3% of all reports

Climate-friendly aviation
Scope 1 CO2 emissions, own activities 2 19,309 26,300
Scope 2 CO2 emissions, own activities 2 85,639 83,284
Scope 3 CO2 emissions, own activities 2 2,746 3,246
Total CO2 emissions 2 107,694 112,830
Self-generated energy (as % of total energy consumption) 2.0% 1.8%
Electricity consumption (kWh/operating year) 188,217,265 183,041,045
Gas consumption (m3/operating year) 10,573,963 12,230,853
Energy efficiency 5.9% 4.5%
EPBD labels for existing buildings 3 73.5% 73.4%
Accessibility and air quality
Aircraft stands upgraded to accept FEGP and PCA this year 4 16 15
Commodity shortages
Recycling of regular waste 5 36.0% 35.0%
Collected waste 15,201 tonnes 15,570 tonnes
Oxygen content in surface water 6 91.3% 98.2%
Drinking water consumption per passenger in litres 7 13.3 13.6
Sustainable employment
Schiphol employees on airport premises approx. 65,000 64,061
Schiphol Aviation College (LCS)
LCS: Successful graduates of the work-study programme 8 80.0% 87.5%
LCS: Students who started the senior secondary vocational (mbo) programme 8 528 795
LCS: Students who commenced an internship 8 134 75

LCS: Professional training courses taken by groups 8
90 programmes completed

by 192 groups
59 programmes completed

by 118 groups
FTEs 1,878.9 1,920.8
Employees 1,904 1,949
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Performance Indicators
Description

Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol

Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol

2013 2012
Average employee age 45.8 45.1
Average years of service 15.1 14.5
Proportion of women (women as a % of employees) 30.0% 30.6%
Proportion of female management staff (women as a % of managers) 27.1% 26.8%
Diversity in SNBV top tier management 9 31.0% 27.0%
Absenteeism rate (due to illness) among SNBV employees 10 3.1% 3.7%
Employee engagement 11 7.9 2011: 7.9
Turnover of staff in service (number of employees) 54 92
Turnover of staff leaving service (number of employees) 94 117
Average training budget (in euro per employee) 1,934 2,021
Work-related accidents followed by absence: SNBV without fire brigade 12 - 1.6
Work-related accidents followed by absence: Fire Service 12 14.2 44.4
Safety
Runway incursions 13 23 42
Birdstrike rate per 10,000 air transport movements 14 6.1 7.0
Integral fire safety testing 15 96.0% 95.0%
Other
Purchasing from responsible suppliers 16 77.0% 70.7%
Tax deductions at source and social insurance contributions (in euro) 59,613,312 not reported
Crisis levy (in euro) 712,327 not reported
Corporate tax (in euro) 26,576,000 not reported
VAT (net received, in euro) 48,836,492 not reported
Dividend tax (in euro) 14,954,414 not reported
Property tax (in euro) 11,331,218 not reported
Duties (in euro) 3,486,006 not reported

Performance Indicators

Rotterdam The Hague
Airport

Rotterdam The Hague
Airport

2013 2012
Top Connectivity
Destinations 40 40
Passenger numbers (incl. transit-direct passengers) 1,590,000 1,273,000
Air transport movements 16,923 13,565

Sustainable Performance
Climate-friendly aviation
Electricity consumption (kWh) 3,589,264 3,736,504
Gas consumption (m3) 197,349 171,395
Commodity shortages
Collected waste 138.8 tonnes 141.2 tonnes
Recycling of regular waste 25% 25%
Drinking water consumption per passenger in litres 9.6 9.4
Sustainable employment
FTEs 116.1 114.1
Employees 131 130
Average employee age 39.1 38.2
Average years of service 7.9 7.5
Proportion of women (women as a % of employees) 35.1% 33.8%
Proportion of female management staff (women as a % of managers) 25.0% 23.5%
Employee absenteeism rate (due to illness) 2.2% 3.1%
Turnover of staff in service (number of employees) 11 15
Turnover of staff leaving service (number of employees) 10 6
Average training budget (in euro per employee) 1,162 1,518
Other
Tax deductions at source and social insurance contributions (in euro) 2,467,728 not reported
Crisis levy (in euro) - not reported
Corporate tax (in euro) - not reported
VAT (net received, in euro) 942,618 not reported
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Performance Indicators
Eindhoven Airport Eindhoven Airport

2013 2012
Top Connectivity
Destinations 53 45
Passenger numbers (incl. transit-direct passengers) 3,397,000 2,977,000
Air transport movements 26,508 24,265

Sustainable Performance
Climate-friendly aviation
Electricity consumption (kWh) 5,403,000 4,632,000
Gas consumption (m3) 172,000 87,000
Commodity shortages
Collected waste 294 tonnes 229 tonnes
Recycling of regular waste 19% 16%
Drinking water consumption per passenger in litres 6.1 4.2
Sustainable employment
FTEs 35 30.2
Employees 42 36
Average employee age 40.5 41.3
Average years of service 7.1 7.4
Proportion of women (women as a % of employees) 50.0% 50.0%
Proportion of female management staff (women as a % of managers) 25.0% 33.3%
Employee absenteeism rate (due to illness) 7.9% 7.1%
Turnover of staff in service (number of employees) 8 5
Turnover of staff leaving service (number of employees) 2 2
Average training budget (in euro per employee) 187 219
Other
Tax deductions at source and social insurance contributions (in euro) 1,157,493 not reported
Crisis levy (in euro) 8,148 not reported
Corporate tax (in euro) 2,368,948 not reported
VAT (net received, in euro) 4,115,458 not reported

Performance Indicators
Lelystad Airport Lelystad Airport

2013 2012
Top Connectivity
Air transport movements 106,080 114,508

Sustainable Performance
Climate-friendly aviation
Electricity consumption (kWh) 200,000 220,000
Gas consumption (m3) 30,000 30,000
Commodity shortages
Collected waste 5 tonnes 5 tonnes
Recycling of normal waste 20% 20%
Sustainable employment
FTEs 15.1 15.1
Employees 16 16
Average employee age 45.1 44.1
Average years of service 12.9 11.9
Proportion of women (women as a % of employees) 18.8% 18.8%
Proportion of female management staff (women as a % of managers) 0% 0%
Employee absenteeism rate (due to illness) 2.0% 2.0%
Turnover of staff in service (number of employees) - 1
Turnover of staff leaving service (number of employees) - 2
Average training budget (in euro per employee) 86 417
Other
Tax deductions at source and social insurance contributions (in euro) 420,986 not reported
Crisis levy (in euro) - not reported
Corporate tax (in euro) - not reported
VAT (in euro) 7,176 not reported

Reporting guidelines
Integrated annual reporting is a growing area of focus around
the world. Schiphol Group is one of over 100 international
participants in a pilot programme for the integrated annual
reporting framework developed by the International
Integrated Reporting Committee. Integrated thinking
continues to develop within our company, a fact that is clearly
visible in the evolution of our annual reporting since 2009.

Annual reports are drawn up with due observation of the
relevant international guidelines and best practices, the most
important of these being the G3.1 guideline from the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI). The level at which we are currently
apply the G3.1 guideline is B+ (on a scale from A to C). The ‘+’
is an indication that the information has been audited
externally. The GRI reference table has been included, which
shows where information concerning the indicators that are
relevant to our business operations can be found in this

Reporting guidelines
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report. The GRI sector supplement for airports has also been
applied.

The Dutch ministry of Finance has determined that annual
reports of state shareholdings must have at least GRI level C
as of 2010. With a B+, Schiphol not only satisfies this
requirement but also meets its own targets in this respect.
Furthermore, annual reports of state shareholdings are
required to be included in a survey of the Transparency
Benchmark study group, a benchmark study that was
conducted by PwC in 2013 and commissioned by the ministry
of Economic Affairs. We have been participating in this study
since 2006. A total of 460 organisations submitted their 2012
annual reports for the Transparency Benchmark, in which
Schiphol Group's report ranked 30th (47th in 2012).

As a participant in Global Compact, we have compiled a
progress report on the ten principles it prescribes. This report
is featured in the Global Compact Communication on
Progress.

Scope of the report
The results with regard to our financial, operational and social
performance are presented in a single annual report. Over
90% of our activities take place at Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol. As a result, a large proportion of our operational
and social performance relates solely to this particular
location. The national and international subsidiaries and
participations (airports and other activities) carry out their
own initiatives, geared towards their local environment and
dovetailing with Schiphol Group’s vision. Given the
interrelatedness of activities within the aviation sector, the
annual report also includes performance details of sector
partners, such as the numbers of transported passengers and
spending at concessionaires.

Our socio-econoic role is to maintain a multi-modal hub that
connects the Netherlands with the world's most important
cities and centres of activity. Our strategy is based around four
concepts: Top Connectivity, Excellent Visit Value, Competitive
Marketplace and Sustainable Performance. During the year
under review there were no changes in policy or objectives
compared with the preceding reporting period, nor were
there any acquisitions or divestments of business units. No
economic conditions or developments occurred within the
sector or within the value chain that affected the policy
pursued.

In addition to this report, information is also available online
at schiphol.nl, schiphol.nl/cr and schiphol.nl/sustainability.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V. (PwC) is Schiphol
Group’s external auditor. The airport requested that PwC
conduct an audit with the aim of providing a moderate
degree of assurance concerning the reliability of the data on

sixteen performance indicators, which are linked to six of the
material themes from the section Consultation with
stakeholders. This concerns performance that comes under
the airport's direct control at the Schiphol location, unless
stated otherwise. The selection of performance indicators to
be assessed is expected to change in the future so as to be
further aligned with the material themes.

1. Number of enforcement point breaches
2. CO2 emissions from own activities
3. EPBD labels of existing buildings
4. Number of aircraft stands connected to FEGP and PCA

during the year
5. Recycling of regular waste
6. Oxygen content of surface water
7. Drinking water consumption per passenger
8. Schiphol Aviation College
9. Diversity
10. Absenteeism due to illnes
11. Employee engagement
12. Work-related accidents followed by absence
13. Runway incursions
14. Bird-strike rate per 10,000 air transport movements
15. Integral fire safety tests carried out
16. Purchasing from CR-conscious suppliers

The auditor performed the audit in compliance with the
Netherlands Institute of Chartered Accountants (NBA) N.V.
COS3410N guideline ‘Assurance engagements concerning
Corporate Responsibility reports’. The assurance report is
included in this annual report.

The sixteen performance indicators are reported on as
components of existing periodic management information.
Eleven of the performance indicators are reported on at least
once per quarter, and are discussed by the Management
Board with the relevant senior managers. Four of the
performance indicators are measured and evaluated at least
once a year: CO2 emissions from own activities, EPBD ratings
of existing buildings, drinking water consumption per
passenger, and purchasing from CR-conscious suppliers.
Employee engagement is measured once every eighteen
months.

The information presented here concerns the 2013 calendar
year (1 January – 31 December 2013). However, performance
on four of the indicators can only be reviewed within the
framework of the operating year (1 November 2012 – 31
October 2013), i.e. CO2 emissions from own activities,
enforcement point breaches, waste recycling and drinking
water consumption per passenger. The time period applicable
to the enforcement points is determined by law, whereas the
operational year was chosen for the other three for
convenience.

Reporting guidelines
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Performance indicators
Overview of externally audited performance
indicators
 

1. Number of enforcement point breaches
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: operating year
• Scope: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: none (two violations in 2012)

Regional noise impact is measured on the basis of noise
enforcement points. The operating year closed without any
breaches of the noise limit values.

In October 2013 the Alders Platform reached agreement on a
new system of environmental standards. The new
environmental standards are based on rules for runway use
and were tested over a two-year period. The use of runways
is based on a jointly developed order of preference, whereby,
depending on weather conditons, the runways that affect the
smallest number of people will be used. Air Traffic Control the
Netherlands (LVNL) will at the same time keep the
simultaneous use of runways to a minimum. The noise
enforcement points will be abolished when the new system
of environmental standards is implemented; this is expected
to be incorporated into law in 2015.

For more information on this issue, see noise and the local
community.

2. CO2 emissions from own activities
• Internal reports: once a year
• Reporting period: operating year
• Scope: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol activities at the

Schiphol site
• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: scope 1: 19,309 tonnes (26,300 tonnes in 2012)
• 2013: scope 2: 85,639 tonnes (83,284 tonnes in 2012)
• 2013: scope 3: 2,746 tonnes (3,246 tonnes in 2012)

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol has been reporting in
accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (GHG Protocol)
since this reporting year. This means that we report on scope
1, 2 and 3 emissions instead of on control, guide and
influence. The main difference is that in the latter
classification, commuter traffic and business travel by air or by
car come under the heading of 'control'. Under the new
classification they have moved to scope 3.

The method used to calculate CO2 emissions for gas
consumption also changed in 2013. The degree days method
is used to standardise consumption. This enables us to
establish more precisely whether a particular increase or

decrease is attributable to an energy efficiency improvement.
If CO2 emissions in 2012 had been calculated in accordance
with this method, they would have been 1,511 tonnes lower.

We actively reduce scope 1 and 2 emissions in that we save on
energy and fuel consumption, use energy and fuel more
efficiently, generate sustainable energy and use biofuel. In
addition, we promote the reduction of scope 3 emissions from
business and commuter travel. In 2013 Schiphol achieved CO2

neutrality for its own operations caused by compensating for
activities carried out in scope 1 and 2 and, in part, scope 3
through the purchase of green electricity certificates
(Guarantees of Origin) and CO2 certificates for the remaining
emissions.

Since 2012 we have been applying emission factors based on
those of the Foundation for Climate-Friendly Procurement
and Business (SKAO). We are striving to further reduce the
percentage of emissions requiring compensation for CO2

neutral operations. Read more about our CO2 emissions in the
section on climate and the environment.

3. EPBD labels of existing buildings
• Internal reports: once a year
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: existing buildings owned by Schiphol Real Estate B.V.

(SRE) commercial real estate portfolio, exclusively at the
Schiphol location

• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 73.5% of the lettable floor area carried a C label or

higher (73.4% in 2012)

By the end of 2013, 73.5% of Schiphol Real Estate´s lettable
office space (not including operational real estate) at the
airport was allocated an A, B or C energy label on the basis of
the European EPBD-label for building energy performance.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of the lettable floor
area (LFA). This performance indicator relates to commercial
real estate at the Amsterdam Airport Schiphol location. It does
not include operational real estate, commercial real estate at
other locations or real estate owned by entities other than
SRE. Investment property earmarked for demolition has
similarly not been included. Industrial buildings have been
excluded since no EPBD label is available for this category of
investment property. We aim to achieve further
improvements in this area. Read more about our
environmental activities in the section on climate and the
environment.

4. Number of aircraft stands connected to
FGEP and PCA during the year
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol

Performance indicators
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• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 16 aircraft stands (15 aircraft stands in 2012)

The Airport Traffic Ruling stipulates that fewer auxiliary
power units and ground power units are to be used. Over the
course of the 2010-2013 period, we equipped 61 aircraft
stands with an electric-powered FEGP facility and an electrical
connection for PreConditioned air (PCA).
A total of sixteen aircraft stands were converted in this
manner over the course of 2013, in accordance with our legal
obligations. Read more about our environmental activities in
the section on climate and the environment.

5. Recycling of regular waste
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: own normal waste Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• Registration: Van Gansewinkel and several specialised

companies
• 2013: 36.0% (35.0% in 2012)

Van Gansewinkel collects waste at various locations on the
Schiphol site, and several specialised companies collect mown
grass. The airport is working to raise the recycling rate in
respect of its own regular wasteregular waste. The scope of
this performance indicator does not correspond entirely to
the site environmental permit. This is because as some tenants
are free to enter into individual contracts with a waste
collection company of their choice. As a result, Van
Gansewinkel does not collect waste at all locations within the
scope of the site environmental permit.

In 2013, 36.0% of the airport’s own regular waste was
separated for processing. We aim to further increase the
percentage of recycled regular waste in the future. For more
information on waste and raw materials, see the section on
climate and the environment.

6. Oxygen content of surface water
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: surface water on Amsterdam Airport Schiphol

grounds
• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 91.3% (98.2% in 2012)

Measures to keep aircraft free of ice - the process of de-icing
– and to keep snow and ice off taxiways, take-off and landing
runways and aprons have a major impact on the quality of the
surface water on and around the airport grounds. The de-
icing agents used are biodegradable, but they do extract
oxygen from water. Water quality is determined on the basis
of oxygen content.

The Rijnland Water Board conducts measurements of the
oxygen content at three transfer points. The percentage of
days on which average oxygen content exceeded 3 mg/l at the
three enforcement points was 91.3% in 2013. This was caused
by the fact that January, February and March each recorded
more than ten days of snow, which exceeds the multi-year
average. We aim to ensure that all three enforcement points
meet the standards at all times by 2015. Read more about our
environmental activities in the section on climate and the
environment.

7. Drinking water consumption per
passenger
• Internal reports: twice a year
• Reporting period: operating year
• Scope: drinking water consumption at Amsterdam Airport

Schiphol
• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 13.3 litres (13.6 litres in 2012)

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol supplies drinking water to
buildings at Schiphol. This includes all drinking water used at
catering outlets, toilets, drinking fountains and the offices
above the lounges. The scope of this performance indicator
does not correspond entirely with that indicated in the site
environmental permit. This is due in part to the fact that part
of drinking water consumption is invoiced to Schiphol Real
Estate, which then passes on these charges in the rent.

We calculate this performance indicator on the basis of the
amount of drinking water consumed in the Terminal divided
by the total number of passengers. Drinking water
consumption dropped slightly to 13.3 litres per passenger in
2013. We aim to achieve a further reduction in this area. Read
more about our environmental activities in the section on
climate and the environment.

8. Schiphol Aviation College
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Schiphol location
• Registration: Schiphol Aviation College
• 2013: apprenticeships - 80% of all examination candidates

successfully completed their exams (compared to 87.5% of
examination candidates in 2012)

• 2013: 528 senior secondary vocational education (mbo)
participants enrolled (compared to 795 participants in 2012)

• 2013: 134 students assigned to trainee positions (compared
to 75 in 2012)

• 2013: 90 vocational training programmes completed by 192
groups (2012: 59 training programmes, 118 groups)

Schiphol Aviation College serves as an intermediary for
apprenticeships, senior secondary vocational education
programmes, internships and professional training

Performance indicators
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programmes for logistical, security-related, facilities and retail
positions at the airport.

Apprenticeships: these are intended for people who have not
completed their education or are out of work. Working and
learning programmes offer these people basic qualifications
and better opportunities on the labour market. The relevant
KPI is measured on the basis of the study success rate. In 2013,
80% of examination candidates pursuing a working and
learning programme obtained their diploma.

Senior secondary vocational education (mbo) participants:
Schiphol Aviation College provides senior secondary
vocational (mbo) programmes designed specifically for
airport-related jobs, with a focus on security and air cargo
logistics. In 2013, 528 mbo participants commenced a study
programme. This number is lower compared with 2012, when
the enrolment figure was exceptionally high.

Student trainees: the number of student trainees who were
granted internships rose to 134 in 2013. The rise is due to the
greater emphasis placed internally on the importance of
student trainees. A new feature is the possibility to gain
(unpaid) work experience in the terminal. In all, 35 mbo
students took up this opportunity.

Training programmes: the number of groups that pursued
one of the 90 training programmes offered rose to 192 in
2013. The rise was due in part to a sustainable employment
budget that was made available to Schiphol Nederland B.V.
employees effective 2013. Employees can spend the budget
on the training programmes offered.

With economic recovery yet certain, we will strive to maintain
the current standard for all these aspects. Further information
on Schiphol Aviation College is featured in the section on
sustainable employment.

9. Diversity
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• Registration: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• 2013: 31.0% (27.0% in 2012)

Schiphol Nederland B.V.’s diversity policy is aimed at
promoting talented women to positions in the top of the
organisation. At the end of 2013, 31% of all key positions
were filled by women. We have thus already achieved our
ambition of increasing the percentage to 30% by the end of
2014. Further information on our employment policy is
featured in the section on sustainable employment.

10. Absenteeism due to illness
• Internal reports: monthly

• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• Registration: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• 2013: 3.1% (3.7% in 2012)

In 2013, the absenteeism percentage for Schiphol Nederland
B.V. dropped further to 3.1% and is now below the Verbaan
standard. This decline is attributable to training programmes
in 2012 designed to help management staff supervise sick
colleagues more effectively, and to the new style of working.
We will strive to continue this trend. Further information on
our employment policy is featured in the section on
sustainable employment.

11. Employee engagement
• Internal reports: once every 18 months
• Reporting period: 18 months
• Scope: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• Registration: MeyerMonitor
• 2013: 7.9 (7.9 in 2011)

Employee engagement is measured on the basis of the results
of the Company Monitor carried out by MeyerMonitor, a
research and dialogue consultancy company. The monitor
determines the difference between the desired and actual
situation for seven strategic issues. Based on the identified
differences, management can then determine which themes
require greater focus in order to achieve the strategic
objectives.

The Schiphol Monitor included three new questions regarding
satisfaction with current work, pride taken in work and
intention to continue working at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
should other options arise. The average of these three scores
results in a value representing employee engagement, in this
case 7.9. We have successfully maintained a stable
commitment level and aim to sustain this trend in future.
Further information on our employment policy is featured in
the section on sustainable employment.

12. Work-related accidents resulting in
absence from work
• Internal reports: quarterly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• Registration: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• 2013: SNBV excluding fire brigade: 0 (1.6 in 2012)
• 2013: Fire Brigade: 14.2 (44.4 in 2012)

Schiphol registers work-related accidents in Lost Time Injury
Frequency (LTIF). It enables us to see how we perform
compared with other businesses within or outside the sector,
and to monitor the situation relative to the preceding years.

Performance indicators
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Current calculations to determine the number of work-
related accidents per million hours worked are based on a
distinction between fire service employees and all other
Schiphol Nederland B.V. employees. The LTIF for all other
employees is 0, while the LTIF for Fire Brigade employees
totals 14.2. This is attributable to three sports injuries suffered
by fire service personnel while working. We will strive to
maintain Schiphol Nederland B.V.´s current 0 LTIF rate and
achieve a downward trend at the fire service. Further
information on our employment policy is featured in the
section on sustainable employment.

13. Runway incursions
• Internal reports: monthly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol airside
• Registration: Air Traffic Control the Netherlands (LVNL) and

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 23 runway incursions (42 in 2012)

Air Traffic Control the Netherlands (LVNL) and Amsterdam
Airport Schiphol both register the number of runway
incursions. LVNL plays a leading role in this process. The
airport reports on this performance indicator but relies on
LVNL for compiling a complete notification and incident
report. The two parties have formally harmonised the number
of runway incursions since 2012. Twenty-three runway
incursions involving no serious hazard were registered in
2013. This number is average. The high number recorded for
2012 was due to multiple use on the same day of a runway
that had not been cleared for use. We aim to achieve a
decrease for this performance indicator. For more
information on airside safety, see the section on safety.

14. Bird-strike rate
• Internal reports: monthly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: airport boundaries
• Registration: KLM and Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 6.1 bird strikes per 10,000 air transport movements

(7.0 in 2012)

Home carrier KLM and Amsterdam Airport Schiphol have
applied the same bird strike registration procedure since 2005.
Amsterdam Airport Schiphol discusses bird strikes with KLM
on a monthly basis. The incidents registered by the two parties
are discussed every quarter in the Schiphol Bird Strike
Committee, which also discusses policy and the various bird
dispersal resources and their effectiveness.

In 2013 there were 6.1 bird strikes per 10,000 air transport
movements. This figure is down by 0.9 from 2012. In the long
term, we aim to achieve a downward trend in terms of the
bird strike rate.

The average bird-strike figure was calculated by dividing the
total number of bird strikes reported by KLM and the number
of bird strikes reported by Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
involving KLM aircraft and occurring within the relevant
airspace zone by the number of KLM air transport movements.
The resulting average figure is thus calculated on the basis of
reports covering approximately 50% of the total number of
air transport movements.

This approach was applied in view of the fact that the reports
provided by home carrier KLM pilots are more reliable than
those provided by other airlines. When it comes to the
registration of bird strikes, Schiphol largely depends on KLM,
which - in turn - depends on its own pilots. For more
information on airside safety, see the section on safety.

15. Comprehensive fire safety tests carried
out
• Internal reports: monthly
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 96.0% of integral tests were carried out in the year

concerned (95.0% in 2012)

The airport is responsible for fire safety in the Terminal. In
order to ensure fire safety and verify the current operational
reliability of the fire safety system, we conduct comprehensive
testing of all fire alarm systems, air treatment systems,
baggage systems, elevator control systems, roll-down shutters
and evacuation systems. A total of 96.0% of all scheduled tests
were conducted in 2013 (46 of 48). We aim to maintain this
performance level in 2014. For more information on safety,
see the section on safety.

16. Purchasing from CR-conscious suppliers
• Internal reports: once a year
• Reporting period: calendar year
• Scope: Schiphol Nederland B.V.
• Registration: Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• 2013: 77.0% of total purchasing volume (70.7% of total

purchasing volume in 2012)

We measure this performance indicator on the basis of data
from the group of suppliers that provide 80% of all the
products and services that we purchase. As a result, the
performance indicator score cannot exceed 80%. In 2013,
77.0% of all purchase volumes were procured from CR-
conscious suppliersCR-conscious suppliers. We aim to continue
this upward trend. Our policy on suppliers is featured in the
section on chain responsibility.

Performance indicators
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GRI index
GRI - G3 guidelines for sustainability reporting

Ref. Guideline Description Chapter C Explanation, reference to other sources of information

1 PROFILE
1.1 CEO statement Message from the CEO C
1.2 Key effects, risks and opprtunities of business

operations on Corporate Responsibility
Strategy
Risk management

C

2 ORGANISATION PROFILE
2.1 Name of the organisation Notes to the consolidated

financial statements - general
information

C

2.2 Primary products, and/or services Profile C
2.3 Operational structure Corporate Governance C
2.4 Location of organisation's headquarters + C Evert van de Beekstraat 202, 1118 CP Schiphol; the Netherlands
2.5 Number of countries where the organisation

operates
Profile C

2.6 Nature of ownership and legal form Corporate Governance C
2.7 Markets served Profile C
2.8 Scale of the organisation Facts and Figures C Amsterdam Airport Schiphol covers 2,787 hectares and has 6 runways
2.9 Significant changes during the reporting period + C No significant changes
2.10 Awards received in the reporting period Excellent Visit Value C

3 REPORTING PARAMETERS
3.1 Reporting period + C 01-01-2012 - 31-12-2012
3.2 Date of most recent previous report (if any) 28-3-2013 C www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/InvestorRelations/

FinancialInformation/AnnualReports.htm
3.3 Reporting cycle + C Annual
3.4 Contac point for questions + C www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/InvestorRelations/

IRServicesContact.htm www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/
CorporateResponsibility1/FurtherInformationAndContactInfo.htm

3.5 Process for defining report content Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

3.6 Scope of the report Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

3.7 State any specific limitations on the scope of the
report

Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

3.8 Basis for reporting Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

3.9 Data measurement techniques and calculation
principles

Operational and socio-
economic statement

C Specific GRI indicators were found to be immaterial for Schiphol Group
in terms of content. As a result, no measurements or calculations were
carried out and no data is available. In other cases, data is not publicly
available

3.10 Re-statements of information provided in
previous reports

+ C For the CO2 emissions performance indicator (own activities), the data
reported over 2012 differs from the data presented in the 2012 Annual
Report. The method used to calculate gas emissions has been modified:
consumption is now normalised using the degree day method. The
GreenHouseGas Protocol guidelines are used to calculate and report on
CO2 emissions

3.11 Significant changes relative to the previous
reporting period

+ C No significant changes

3.12 GRI table of contents Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

3.13 Verification report Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

4 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE INDICATORS
4.1 Organisational governance structure Report of the Supervisory

Board
Corporate Governance
Supervisory Board,
Management Board & Key
Management

C

4.2 Relationship between the Chair of the highest
governing body and executive position

Corporate Governance
Supervisory Board,
Management Board & Key
Management

C

4.3 Number of members of the highest governing
body that are independent and/or non-executive
members

Corporate Governance
Supervisory Board,
Management Board & Key
Management

C

4.4 Mechanisms available to shareholders and
employees for submitting recommendations to,
or exercising participation in decision-making

Report of the Supervisory
Board
Corporate Governance
Shareholder information

C Schiphol has a central works council and a number of local works
councils. Employee participation is possible via these organs and via the
trade unions

4.5 Link between compensation for members of the
highest governing body, top executives and
managers and the organisation's performance

Remuneration C

4.6 Processes in place for the highest governing body
to ensure conflicts of interest are avoided

Corporate Governance C See also:
www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup1/InvestorRelations/
CorporateGovernance.htm

GRI index
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Ref. Guideline Description Chapter C Explanation, reference to other sources of information
4.7 Process for determining composition of highest

governing body
Report of the Supervisory
Board
Corporate Governance

C

4.8 Internally developed mission statements,
principles and codes of conduct

Mission and Ambition
Sustainable employment

C The CLA features codes of conduct on inappropriate behaviour, use of
e-mail and dealing with external parties. In addition there are anti-fraud
regulations and whistleblower regulations

4.9 Procedures for the highest governing body to
assess how the organisation identifies and
manages Corporate Responsibility, risks and
opportunities

Corporate Governance Risk
management

C See also:
www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/InvestorRelations/
CorporateGovernance.htm

4.10 Processes for evaluating the highest governing
body's own performance

Report of the Supervisory
Board
Remuneration
Management agenda

C

4.11 Precautionary principle Risk management C www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/CorporateResponsibility1.htm
4.12 Externally developed economic, environmental,

and social charters, principles, or other initiatives
+ C Global Compact

4.13 Membership of associations (such as industry
associations) and/or national/international
interest groups

Supervisory Board,
Management Board & Key
Management
Consultation with
stakeholders

C Member of industry association Airports Council International

4.14 List of stakeholder groups engaged by the
organisation

Consultation with
stakeholders
Corporate Governance

C See also:
www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/CorporateResponsibility1/
Dialogue.htm

4.15 Basis for identifying and selecting stakeholders
with whom to engage

Consultation with
stakeholders
Corporate Governance

C

4.16 Method of engaging stakeholders Consultation with
stakeholders
Corporate Governance

C

4.17 Key topics and concerns that have been raised
through stakeholder engagement, and how the
organisation has responded to those key topics
and concerns

Consultation with
stakeholders

C

5.1 ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Management approach to economic
performance

Financial Performance C

EC1 Direct economic values Financial Statements C
EC2 Financial implications and other risks and

opportunities for the organisation’s activities due
to climate change

Sustainable Performance
Risk management

P theGROUNDS
See also:
www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/CorporateResponsibility1/
EnvironmentallyFriendlyAviation.htm

EC3 Coverage of the organisation's defined benefit
plan obligations

Financial Statements C

EC4 Significant financial assistance received from
government

+ C Amsterdam Airport Schiphol did not receive any significant financial
assistance

EC6 Policy, practices, and proportion of spending on
locally based suppliers

Chain responsibility C We cannot stipulate in tenders that we prefer local suppliers. We must
comply with the basic principles of EU tendering legislation, which states
the tendering process must be fair and that all suppliers should have
equal chances

EC7 Procedures for local hiring and proportion of
senior management hired from the local
community

+ NM International activities only involve a small number of managers
seconded from the Netherlands

EC8 Development and effect of infrastructure
investments and services provided primarily for
public benefit

Financial Performance C In previous years we have invested around 300 million euros per year.
This amount will probably increase by 50% in the years ahead, due to
large-scale renovations that commenced in 2013. A substantial portion
of this will be invested in improving, maintaining and (where necessary)
expanding the infrastructure related to the airport. The long-term
investments contribute to the quality, accessibility and development of
the airport. There are also investments made in improving parking
facilities and airport-related property, such as a hotel and office
redevelopment

AO1 Number of passengers handled over the course
of one year, categorised into international and
domestic flights and O&D and transfer
passengers, including transit-direct passengers.

+ C Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• Passengers (incl. transit-direct): 52,569,200
• Domestic: 0
• Europe: 35,684,871
• Intercontinental: 16,884,329
• O&D passengers (total): 30,515,701
• O&D Europe: 23,192,069
• O&D Intercontinental: 7,323,632
• Transfer (total): 22,011,998
• Transfer (Europe): 12,479,367
• Transfer (Intercontinental): 9,532,631
• Transit-direct: 41,501

GRI index
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Ref. Guideline Description Chapter C Explanation, reference to other sources of information
AO2 Number of air transport movements over the

course of one year, categorised into day and
night-time flights, and commercial, non-
commercial, cargo and military flights.

+ C Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
• Total air transport movements: 425,565
• Cargo flights (commercial): 15,623
• Passenger flights (commercial): 409,942
• General aviation (non-commercial): 14,492
• Military flights (non-commercial): 259
• Other GA flights (non-commercial): 14,233
• Night flights (total): 21,381
• Night flights (commercial): 20,744
• Night flights (non-commercial): 637

AO3 Cargo volume transported + C Amsterdam Airport Schiphol: 1,531,088,548 kg

5.2 ENVIRONMENT PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Management approach of environmental
indicators

Climate and the environment
Corporate Governance

C

EN1 Total amount of materials used by weight or
volume

NM In view of the fact that we are a service company, this performance
indicator is not materially significant. We only register the purchase of
materials, not the amount of materials actually used

EN2 Use of recycled materials NA
EN3 Direct energy consumption by primary energy

source
Climate and the environment C

EN4 Indirect energy consumption by primary source + C The energy consumption recorded concerns the total amount of energy
consumed (electricity and gas). No indirect energy is purchased
separately. If necessary, Schiphol will itself arrange for the transition from
direct to indirect energy consumption

EN5 Energy saved due to conservation and efficiency
improvements

Climate and the environment C

EN8 Total water draw-off by source + C See also drinking water consumption per passenger in the operational
statement performance indicators

AO4 Captured rainwater from the airport grounds.
Rainwater may be polluted as a result of airport
processes (such as kerosene leakage)

C Rain water is captured in the rain water drainage system. If it is
contaminated, it is cleaned before it is added to the surface water

EN11 Location and size of land owned, leased,
managed, or adjacent to, protected areas and
areas of high biodiversity value outside protected
areas

+ NM Our business operations do not take place in protected areas or areas
adjacent to such areas

EN12 Description of significant effects of activities,
products, and services on biodiversity in
protected areas and areas of high biodiversity
value

+ NM 'Our business operations do not take place in protected areas or areas
adjacent to such areas

EN16 Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas
emissions

Climate and the environment P Only CO2 emissions available. The other emissions no longer need to be
reported to the Province of North-Holland for site environmental permit
purposes. Consequently, this information is not available

EN17 Other relevant indirect greenhouse gas emissions + P The focus is on CO2, the most important greenhouse gas. See also EN16
EN18 Initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions Climate and the environment C
EN19 Emissions of ozone-depleting substances + NM The use of cooling agents no longer needs to be reported to the Province

of North Holland for environmental permit purposes. Consequently, this
information is not available

EN20 NOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions - NA The Netherlands Emissions Authority (NEA) has granted Schiphol
Nederland BV a licence to emit NOx and CO2. This licence relates
exclusively to direct emissions caused by the use of natural gas and
propane in heat/cold storage systems, central heating and steam boilers
and emergency power units managed by Schiphol. Emissions for 2013
had not yet been externally determined at the time of publication of the
2013 Annual Report. Since 2006, Amsterdam Airport Schiphol has taken
part in the Emission Trading Scheme (ETS), the purpose of which is to
reduce emissions (CO2 and NOx) through the application of market
instruments. By trading emission allowances, the Dutch government is
seeking to achieve cost-effective reductions in greenhouse gas emissions
and to meet the Kyoto Protocol targets

AO5 Air quality composition + NR Air quality is monitored by the government through the National Air
Quality Cooperation Programme. Additionally, an external party
calculates the air composition at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol once a
year

EN21 Total water discharge by quality and destination + P All waste water (sanitary and otherwise) is discharged from our buildings
to an Evides waste water treatment installation. Water containing glycol
and potassium formate is captured in the rain water drainage system
and processed externally before it is added to the surface water

EN22 Total weight of waste by type Climate and the environment C
EN23 Total number and volume of significant spills - NA
AO6 Amount of de-icing agent used to de-ice aircraft

and remove ice from runways and taxiways
+ C In 2013, Schiphol used 1.7 million litres of potassium formate to remove

ice from runways and taxiways. Aircraft are de-iced by handling agents,
which means that there is no exact information available on the volumes
of glycol used

EN26 Initiatives to mitigate the environmental impact
of products and services

Sustainable Performance C

EN27 Packaging materials of products + C 0%

GRI index
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Ref. Guideline Description Chapter C Explanation, reference to other sources of information
EN28 Fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-

compliance with environmental laws and
regulations

+ C Following an incident in an airline hangar at the airport in July 2008
resulting in the dispersion of extinguishing foam containing
perfluorooctanesulfonic acid, Schiphol has contributed to limiting
damage to the environment. The Public Prosecution Service (PPS)
launched an investigation into possible breach of environmental
regulations. In 2013, the PPS and Schiphol agreed on an out-of-court
settlement in view of the proportionality, time and money that would
have been involved in potential criminal proceedings. Schiphol agreed
to a transaction proposal to the amount of 30,000 euros

EN29 Significant environmental impact of transporting
products and other goods and materials used for
the organisation's operations, and transporting
members of the workforce

Climate and the environment C

AO7 Number of people living in noise-affected areas Noise and the local
community

C In 2013, 125,000 people experienced severe noise disturbance at levels
of 48 dB(A) Lden or higher. More information is available from the 2014
Usage forecast and 2013 Usage Forecast Evaluation

5.3 WORKING CONDITIONS AND FULL-TIME WORK INDICATORS
Management approach of working conditions Sustainable employment

Corporate Governance
C

LA1 Total workforce by employment type,
employment contract, and region

Profile
Sustainable employment

P

LA2 Employee turnover Operational and socio-
economic statement

C

LA15 Returning after parental leave - NA
LA4 Percentage of employees covered by collective

labour agreements
+ C 92,9%

LA5 Minimum notice period(s) regarding operational
changes

+ C No specific agreements were made on notice periods that would apply
in the event of operational changes

LA7 Rates of injury, occupational disease, lost days,
and absenteeism, and number of work-related
fatalities by region

Sustainable employment
Operational and socio-
economic statement

P A tragic accident involving a baggage tractor and a pedestrian occurred
on airside in 2013. The pedestrian, who worked for a ground handler,
died as a result of the injuries sustained

LA8 Education, training, counselling, prevention, and
risk-control programmes in place to assist
workforce members

Operational and socio-
economic statement

NR

LA10 Average hours of training per year per employee,
broken down by employee category

Operational and socio-
economic statement

G Only the training budget has been included

LA13 Composition of governing bodies Sustainable employment
Supervisory Board,
Management Board & Key
Management

C

LA14 Ratio of basic salary of men to women + C Basic salaries for men and women are the same. This has been set out
in the CLA

5.4 HUMAN RIGHTS
Management approach of human rights Sustainable employment

Chain responsibility
Corporate Governance

C

HR1 Investment agreements that include human
rights clauses

- NA

HR2 Percentage of significant suppliers and
contractors that have undergone screening on
human rights and action taken

Chain responsibility P Schiphol Group has a procurement policy that sets out frameworks and
regulations for purchasing activities. Suppliers are not specifically
screened for compliance with human rights
See also:
www.schiphol.nl/SchipholGroup/CorporateResponsibility1/
SupplyChainManagement.htm

HR4 Number of incidents of discrimination + C There was one reported case of discrimination in 2013
HR5 Significant suppliers or own activities identified

which may violate or pose a significant risk to the
right to exercise freedom of association and
collective bargaining, and the measures taken to
ensure support for these rights

NA

HR6 Significant suppliers identified as having
significant risk for incidents of child labour

+ NM The majority of our operations take place in the Netherlands. Our
suppliers and we comply with Dutch laws and regulations

HR7 Significant suppliers identified as having
significant risk for forced or compulsory labour

+ NM The majority of our operations take place in the Netherlands. Our
suppliers and we comply with Dutch laws and regulations

HR10 Percentage of operations screened in terms of
their human rights impact

NM

HR11 Number of complaints regarding human rights
received through official channels.

NM

5.5 SOCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Management approach of social performance
indicators

Noise and the local
cummunity
Climate and the environment
Corporate Governance

C

SO1 % of activities that affect local community + C 100%
SO9 Operational activities with a significant

(potentially) negative impact on the local
environment

Sustainable Performance C The airport surrounds are especially likely to encounter noise
disturbance.
See also:
www.bezoekbas.nl and GRI indicator PR1

GRI index
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Ref. Guideline Description Chapter C Explanation, reference to other sources of information
SO10 Measures taken to minimise (potentially) negative

effects on the local environment
Sustainable Performance C The airport surrounds are especially likely to encounter noise

disturbance.
See also:
www.bezoekbas.nl and GRI indicator PR1

SO2 % of departments with known possibility of
corruption-related risks

+ NA One study has been carried out into the possibility of corruption-related
risks

SO3 % of employees trained in anti-corruption
policies and procedures

+ C In 2013, the Schiphol Group Management Team completed a training
course in ethics

SO4 Actions taken in response to incidents of
corruption

+ NM No known cases of corruption have been identified, not even after the
above-mentioned investigation

SO5 Positions with regard to public policy,
participation in public policy development, and
lobbying activities

Consultation with
stakeholders

C Member of industry association Airports Council International

SO8 Fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-
compliance with laws and regulations

+ C In 2013, Luchthaven Schiphol N.V. received a number of small fines for
not adjusting and paying payroll tax returns on time

AO8 (Estimated) number of people to be voluntarily or
involuntarily relocated in connection with the
development or expansion of an airport

+ NM Expansion of the airport in 2013 did not require any relocations

5.6 PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
Management approach to consumer health and
safety

Safety
Sustainable employment
Corporate Governance

C

PR1 Life cycle stages in which health and safety effects
of products and services are assessed

+ C Our products and services impact on the safety, security and health of
Schiphol workers, passengers and local residents. Schiphol workers are
provided with a safe and healthy workplace. We ensure safe and secure
infrastructure, particularly at specific locations such as the baggage
basement and on airside. There are regulations governing the use of ear
protection and safety regulations pertaining to clothing. We ensure the
safety and health of passengers by actively providing a secure airport
location, through constant attention to runway safety and prevention of
bird strikes, among other means. Hygiene is important in order to
contribute to the health of passengers and Schiphol workers. Amongst
other measures aimed at the environment, an up-to-date overview of
noise impact levels has been made available via www.bezoekbas.nl

PR3 Type of information on products and services that
are mandatory for procedures

PR6 Programmes for adherence to laws, standards,
and voluntary codes related to marketing
communications, including advertising,
promotion, and sponsorship

+ NM Our marketing communication policy adheres to generally accepted
ethical and cultural values and advertising codes. This renders the
deployment of special programmes for compliance with laws and
regulations in this field unnecessary

PR9 Fines for non-compliance with laws and
regulations concerning the provision and use of
products and services

+ C During the reporting year no fines were imposed on Schiphol Group for
failure to provide services, or to provide them in ful

AO9 Number of animals involved in wildlife strikes per
10,000 air transport movements

Safety
Operational and socio-
economic statement

C Bird strikes are an issue of material significance to Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol

C = Complete

P = Partial

NM = Not Material

NA = Not Applicable

NR = Not Reported

GRI index
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Global Compact
Global Compact Communication on Progress

Global Compact Communication on Progress

Global Compact principles Incorporated in See also: GRI Indicator

Human Rights
1. Schiphol supports and respects human rights Codes of Conduct

Procurement regulations
Integrity Committee

LA4, LA6-9, LA13-14
HR1-9

2. Schiphol is certain that it does not partake in any
activity that violates human rights

Codes of Conduct
Procurement regulations
Integrity Committee

HR1-9

Working conditions
3. Schiphol allows the freedom association of employees
and their right to collective bargaining

Employees are free to join associations. Schiphol makes
an annual payment to the trade unions as a contribution
and to help cover training costs. Furthermore, employees
that are active on behalf of the trade union and/or the
Works Council receive a certain amount of free time to
conduct these activities.

LA4-5
HR1-3
HR5

4. Schiphol eliminates all forms of forced labour The type of work, working conditions and working times
are set out in the CLA
Procurement regulations

HR1-3, HR7

5. Schiphol eliminates child labour Schiphol does not conclude employment agreements
with people under the age of 18.
Procurement regulations

HR1-3, HR6

6. Schiphol eliminates discrimination based on profession Equal remuneration for men and women
Code of Conduct on Undesirable Behaviour
Integrity Committee
Procurement regulations

LA2, LA13-14
HR1-4

Environment
7. Schiphol focuses on environmental challenges as a
precautionary measure

Climate-friendly aviation
Accessibility and air quality
Commodity shortages
theGROUNDS
ACI ACA benchmark
Climate KIC
SIM Innovative Mainport Alliance
Knowledge and Development Center (KDC)
Procurement regulations

EC2
EN18, EN26, EN30

8. Schiphol takes initiatives to enhance responsibility for
the environment

Climate-friendly aviation
Accessibility and air quality
Commodity shortages
theGROUNDS
ACI ACA benchmark
Climate KIC
SIM Innovative Mainport Alliance
Knowledge and Development Center (KDC)
Schiphol Quality of Life Foundation
Stichting Mainport en Groen
Local Community Contact Centre Schiphol (Bas)
Procurement regulations

EN1-30

9. Schiphol promotes the development and introduction
of environmentally friendly technologies

Climate-friendly aviation
Accessibility and air quality
Commodity shortages
theGROUNDS
ACI ACA benchmark
Climate KIC
SIM Innovative Mainport Alliance
Knowledge and Development Center (KDC)

EN2, EN5-7, EN18, EN26, EN30

Anticorruption
10. Schiphol combats all forms of corruption, including
bribery and extortion

Code of Conduct
Whistle-blower scheme
Anti-fraud regulations
Procurement regulations
Fraud team

SO2-6

Global Compact
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Assurance report

Assurance-report from the independent auditor

To the management board of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol

Engagement and responsibilities
We have reviewed the Corporate Responsibility (hereafter ‘CR’) information described in the section ‘Sustainable
Performance’ on pages 59 until 78 and in the section ‘Operational and socio-economic statements’ on pages 115 until 129 in
the 2013 annual report of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol (hereafter ‘Schiphol Group’)

In these sections of the annual report, Schiphol Group reports on its policy, operational management, events and performance
relating to CR (hereafter ‘CR information’) in the 2013 reporting period.

A review is focused on obtaining limited assurance based on evidence gathering activities which are less exhaustive compared
to audit engagements. Consequently, a review engagement provides a lower level of assurance compared to audit
engagements.

We do not provide any assurance on the assumptions and feasibility of prospective information relating to CR, such as targets,
expectations and ambitions, included in the annual report.

The management board of Schiphol Group is responsible for the preparation of CR information in the annual report. It is our
responsibility to provide an assurance-report on the CR information, as explained in the paragraph ‘Reporting guidelines’ on
pages 118 and 119 of the annual report.

Reporting criteria
Schiphol Group developed its reporting criteria based on G3.1 Guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative (hereafter ‘GRI’).
The CR information in the annual report is focused on the location Schiphol. The CR information about other entities is partly
included in the annual report. Schiphol Group explained the scope of the report in the paragraph ‘Reporting Guidelines’ on
pages 118 and 119 of the annual report. We consider the reporting criteria to be relevant and appropriate for our examination.

Scope and work performed
The CR information in the scope of our review is focused on the location Schiphol and does not cover all entities of Schiphol
Group.

Our examination is focused on the review of specific relevant CR information for the main stakeholders of Schiphol group.
Schiphol Group adequately explained the scope of our examination in the section ‘Operational and socio-economic statements’
in the paragraph ‘Reporting Guidelines’ on pages 118 and 119 in the annual report. We do not provide any assurance on other
CR information included in the annual report, as this is outside the scope of our examination. The scope of our examination
does not refrain us from concluding on the CR information in the annual report.

We have planned and performed our review in accordance with Dutch Law, including Standard 3410N ‘Assurance engagements
related to sustainability reports’. Our main review procedures included:

• performing an analysis of Schiphol Group’s operating context and obtaining insight into the industry, relevant social issues,
relevant laws and regulations as well as the characteristics of the organisation;

• reviewing the acceptability of the reporting policies and their consistent application, such as review of the outcomes of the
stakeholder dialogue and the reasonableness of estimates made by management;

• with regard to the CR information in our assurance scope, reviewing the systems and processes for data gathering, internal
controls and the aggregation process of data to the CR disclosures as presented in the annual report;

• with regard to the CR information in our assurance scope, reviewing internal and external documentation to determine
whether the CR information in the annual report are adequately substantiated;

• evaluating the overall presentation of the CR information in the annual report, in line with Schiphol Group’s reporting
criteria;

Assurance report
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• assessing the consistency of CR information in the annual report with the information the information in the section
‘Operational and socio-economic statements’; and

• reviewing the application level according to the G3.1 Guidelines of GRI.

We believe that the evidence obtained from our examination is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our conclusion.

Conclusion
Based on our review procedures performed, nothing has come to our attention that would cause us to conclude that, in al
material respects, the CR information within the scope of our examination, as explained in paragraph ‘Reporting Guidelines’
on pages 118 and 119, do not provide a reliable and adequate presentation of the CR policy of Schiphol Group, the related
operational management, events and performance in the reporting period, in accordance with Schiphol group’s reporting
criteria.

Amsterdam, 13 February 2014

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.
Original has been signed by drs. S. Barendregt-Roojers RA
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Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2013

(in thousands of euros) Note 2013 20121

Revenue 1 1,382,069 1,352,540

Sales of property 181 28,064

Cost of sales of property - 16,551

Result on sales of property 2 181 11,513

Fair value gains and losses on property 3 2,545 - 24,021

Other income from property 2,726 - 12,508

Cost of contracted work and other external costs 4 603,582 605,851

Employee benefits 5 185,886 182,359

Depreciation and amortisation 6 248,414 214,897

Impairment 7 17,410 22,741

Other operating expenses 8 8,805 17,690

Total operating expenses - 1,064,097 - 1,043,538

Operating profit 320,698 296,494

Financial income and expenses 9 - 94,822 - 88,082

Share of results of associates 10 50,553 45,464

Profit before income tax 276,429 253,876

Income tax 11 - 45,645 - 57,438

Profit 230,784 196,438

Attributable to:

Non-controlling interests 12 3,292 - 2,276

Shareholders (net result) 227,492 198,714

Earnings per share (in euros) 13 1,222 1,068

Diluted earnings per share (in euros) 13 1,222 1,068

1) Comparitive figures have been restated as a result of amendments to IAS 19R
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2013

(in thousands of euros) Note 2013 20121

Result 230,784 196,438

Translation differences 28 - 18,565 - 646

Changes in fair value on hedge transactions 28 6,596 - 70,661

Share in total result associates after taxes 1,375 - 1,617

Changes in fair value on other financial interests 28 - 914

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods:

- 10,594 - 72,010

Actuarial gains and losses - 480 - 2,000

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- 480 - 2,000

Total comprehensive income 219,710 122,428

Attributable to:

Non-controlling interests 3,223 - 2,225

Shareholders (net result) 216,487 124,653

1) Comparitive figures have been restated as a result of amendments to IAS 19R
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013

Assets

(in thousands of euros) Note

31 December

2013 31 December 20121

1 January

20121

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 14 38,039 37,226 41,395

Assets used for operating activities 15 2,464,538 2,493,218 2,402,813

Assets under construction or development 16 386,470 309,304 397,032

Investment property 17 1,134,987 1,087,158 1,068,872

Deferred tax assets 18 200,139 266,421 255,151

Associates 19 783,357 764,869 725,048

Loans to associates 20 - 80,192 92,141

Other financial interests - - 6,141

Other loans 21 6,927 7,540 1,561

Derivative financial instruments 30 1,668 22,851 89,565

Other non-current receivables 22 34,144 37,469 34,381

5,050,269 5,106,248 5,114,100

Current assets

Lease receivables - - 3,299

Receivables on associates 20 59,543 - -

Other loans 21 942 936 30

Assets held for sale 23 - 32,664 23,577

Derivative financial instruments 30 13,017 - -

Trade and other receivables 24 203,464 201,872 177,881

Income tax 35 11,195 - 3,116

Cash and cash equivalents 25 489,263 445,122 413,287

777,424 680,594 621,190

5,827,693 5,786,842 5,735,290

1) Comparitive figures have been restated as a result of amendments to IAS 19R
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Equity and liabilities

(in thousands of euros) Note

31 December

2013 31 December 20121 1 January 20121

Share capital and reserves

attributable to shareholders

Issued share capital 26 84,511 84,511 84,511

Share premium 26 362,811 362,811 362,811

Retained profits 27 2,948,497 2,829,370 2,728,149

Other reserves 28 - 111,774 - 100,547 - 26,486

3,284,045 3,176,145 3,148,985

Non-controlling interests 29 25,221 21,998 24,334

Total equity 3,309,266 3,198,143 3,173,319

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 30 1,514,459 1,694,710 1,773,877

Lease liabilities 31 53,963 54,049 52,597

Employee benefits 32 35,474 33,669 34,421

Other provisions 33 10,657 13,509 17,927

Deferred tax liabilities 18 14,441 14,054 11,799

Derivative financial instruments 30 5,827 114,281 63,000

Other non-current liabilities 34 106,692 102,704 89,834

1,741,513 2,026,976 2,043,455

Current liabilities

Borrowings 30 420,395 191,510 101,834

Lease liabilities 31 3,182 2,498 5,914

Derivative financial instruments 30 33,429 1,586 6,311

Income tax 35 - 17,257 -

Trade and other payables 36 319,908 348,872 404,457

776,914 561,723 518,516

5,827,693 5,786,842 5,735,290

1) Comparitive figures have been restated as a result of amendments to IAS 19R
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

(in thousands of euros) Attributable to shareholders Non-

Note

Issued share

capital

Share

Premium

Retained

profits

Other

reserves1

controlling

interests Total

Balance as at 31

December 2011

84,511 362,811 2,728,149 - 25,292 24,334 3,174,513

Adjustment IAS 19R - - - - 1,194 - - 1,194

Balance as at 1 January

2012

84,511 362,811 2,728,149 - 26,486 24,334 3,173,319

Profit after income tax - - 198,714 - - 2,276 196,438

Other comprehensive income 28.29 - - - - 74,061 51 - 74,010

Comprehensive income - - 198,714 - 74,061 - 2,225 122,428

Dividend paid 27 - - - 97,493 - - 111 - 97,604

Balance as at 31

December 2012

84,511 362,811 2,829,370 - 100,547 21,998 3,198,143

Profit after income tax - - 227,492 - 3,292 230,784

Other comprehensive income 28.29 - - - - 11,227 153 - 11,074

Comprehensive income - - 227,492 - 11,227 3,444 219,710

Dividend paid 27 - - - 108,365 - - 222 - 108,587

Balance as at 31

December 2013

84,511 362,811 2,948,497 - 111,774 25,221 3,309,266

1) Comparitive figures have been restated as a result of amendments to IAS 19R

dividend for 2012,

paid in 2013

dividend for 2011,

paid in 2012

Dividend attributable to shareholders (in euros) 108,365,000 97,493,000

Average number of shares in issue during the year 186,147 186,147

Dividend per share (in euros) 582 524
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Consolidated statement of cash flow for 2013

(in thousands of euros) Note 2013 2012

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operations 38 564,033 482,171

Income tax paid - 31,648 - 24,005

Interest paid - 98,689 - 98,580

Interest received 4,296 6,995

Dividends received 29,608 32,245

Cash flow from operating activities 467,600 398,826

Cash flow from investing activities

Investment in intangible assets 14 - 12,604 - 9,395

Investment in property, plant and equipment 16 - 313,005 - 302,616

Proceeds from disposals of investment property 2 181 28,064

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 280 107

Share capital contributions to associates 19 - 190 - 11,235

Sales of other financial interests - 7,058

Repayment on other loans 21 131 50

New other loans 21 - 168 - 2,390

Finance lease instalments received - 1,609

Cash flow from investing activities - 325,375 - 288,748

Free cash flow 142,225 110,078

Cash flow from financing activities

New borrowings 30 271,758 126,651

Repayment of borrowings 30 - 191,664 - 94,937

Settlement derivative financial instruments 28 - 62,709 - 8,940

Dividend paid 27 - 108,587 - 97,604

Finance lease investments in property, plant and equipment 31 2,801 4,232

Other non-current liabilities paid 34 - 2,178 1,129

Finance lease instalments paid 31 - 7,356 - 8,363

Cash flow from financing activities - 97,935 - 77,832

Net cash flow 44,290 32,246

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 25 445,122 413,287

Net cash flow 44,290 32,246

Exchange and translation differences 9 - 149 - 411

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 25 489,263 445,122
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol is a public limited liability company

(two-tier status company) with its registered office in the

municipality of Haarlemmermeer at Evert van der Beekstraat

202, 1118 CP Schiphol, Netherlands. N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol

trades under the name of Schiphol Group.

Schiphol Group is an airport business, with Amsterdam

Airport Schiphol as its main airport. It wishes to create

sustainable value for its stakeholders, taking into account the

wide range of their interests. The core values of reliability,

efficiency, hospitality, inspiration and sustainability play a

central role in how it conducts business. Schiphol Group’s

mission is to link the Netherlands to all the world’s major

economic, political and cultural cities and centres. Amsterdam

Airport Schiphol aims to be and remain Europe’s Preferred

Airport: an airport that is valued for its quality, capacity and

extensive network of destinations and that wishes to serve

airlines, handlers and travellers as efficiently as possible, with

modern, well-positioned facilities.

On 13 February 2014, the Supervisory Board approved the

financial statements as prepared by the Management Board.

The Management Board will present the financial statements

for adoption to the General Meeting of Shareholders to be

held on 16 April 2014.

Accounting policies

Schiphol Group’s accounting policies on consolidation,

measurement of assets and liabilities and determination of

results are set out below. These policies are in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted

by the European Commission, and are applied consistently to

all the information presented unless otherwise indicated. The

applicable statutory provisions on annual reporting contained

in Part 9, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code have also been

complied with. Schiphol Group applies the historical cost

convention for measurement, except for land and buildings

in the investment property portfolio, derivative financial

instruments and other financial interests, which are

recognised at fair value.

New and amended standards that are mandatory with effect

from 2013

Schiphol Group has applied the following new or amended

standards and interpretations, which have a significant

influence on the disclosures or financial information in these

financial statements, since 1 January 2013:

• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments, amendment
• IAS 1 Presenting Comprehensive Income
• IAS 19 Employee Benefits, amendment
• Amendments from the 2009-2011 Annual improvements

project

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires additional

disclosures on the valuation techniques for Schiphol Group’s

receivables and the measurement of derivatives and financial

instruments, including counterparty risk. The valuation

techniques for investment property are unchanged.

Amendments in IAS 19R Employee Benefits resulted in a

restatement of comparative figures.

New and amended standards that are mandatory with effect

from 2014 or later

Schiphol Group has not voluntarily applied in advance new or

amended standards or interpretations that will not be

mandatory until the financial year 2014 or later.

Schiphol Group is currently examining the consequences of

the following new or amended standards or interpretations,

the application of which is mandatory from the financial

year 2014 or later, as stated below:

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, Classification and
Measurement (not yet adopted)

• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and
amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (mandatory from 1 January 2014)

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and amendments to IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (mandatory
from 1 January 2014)

• IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (mandatory
from 1 January 2014)

• IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation amendment
(mandatory from 1 January 2014)

• IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (mandatory from 1 January
2014)

• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, amendment (mandatory from 1 January
2014)
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• Amendments from the 2010-2012 Annual improvements
project (mandatory from 1 January 2014)

See the notes on Joint Ventures and Non-controlling Interests

for information on IFRS 10, 11 and 12. The impact of IFRS 11

Joint Arrangements is very limited.

Change in accounting policies

The comparative figures for 2012 have been restated further

to the implementation of amended IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

The amendment led to the pension obligation for employees

of Schiphol Group in the Netherlands being increased by 3.2

million euros at 31 December 2012. It also led to a higher

pension liability at foreign subsidaries at 31 December 2012,

requiring an adjustment to associates of 1.6 million euros.

Consequently, comprehensive income for 2012 has been

restated downwards by 3.6 million euros as the actuarial gains

and losses for 2012 changed as a result of the adjustment to

the pension liability. Accordingly, the opening balance of

equity at 1 January 2012 has been restated by 1.2 million

euros.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

(a) General

Where necessary, the accounting policies of subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associates are adjusted to be in line with the

Schiphol Group accounting policies.

(b) Subsidiaries

The financial information of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol and its

subsidiaries is fully consolidated. Subsidiaries are those

companies where N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol has control of

operating and financial policy. The other shareholders’ share

in consolidated equity and results is presented in the balance

sheet as non-controlling interests (part of equity) and in the

income statement as profit after income tax attributable to

non-controlling interests. The results of subsidiaries acquired

in the course of the year are consolidated from the date on

which the company gains control. The financial information

relating to subsidiaries disposed of in the course of the year

continues to be included in the consolidation up to the date

on which control ceases.

(c) Joint ventures

The financial information of associates that qualify as joint

ventures is consolidated in proportion to the interest. A joint

venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more

parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint

control. The results of joint ventures formed in the course of

the year are consolidated from the date on which the

company gains joint control over the policy of the joint

venture. The financial information relating to joint ventures

disposed of in the course of the year continues to be included

in the consolidation up to the date on which joint control

ceases.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the company has

significant influence. Investments in associates are recognised

using the equity method, meaning that the investment is

initially recognised at cost and subsequently adjusted for the

company’s post-acquisition share in the change in the

associate’s net assets. The carrying amount of these

investments in associates includes purchased goodwill. The

company’s share in the results of associates over which it has

significant influence is recognised in the statement of income

(share of results of associates). The cumulative movement in

the net assets of associates is recognised in proportion to

Schiphol Group’s interest under the heading of investments

in associates. The company ceases to recognise its share of the

results of an associate in the income statement and its share

in the net asset value of that associate immediately if this

would lead to the carrying amount of the investment

becoming negative and if the company has not entered into

any commitments or made payments on behalf of the

associate. Investments in associates are recognised as other

financial interests from the date on which the company ceases

to have significant influence or control.

(e) Acquisition of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

An acquisition of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate is

recognised using the purchase method under which the cost

of such an acquisition is the sum of the fair values of the assets

transferred by the acquirer on the acquisition date, the

liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the

acquiree and the equity interests issued by the acquirer and

the related transaction costs. The identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities acquired are initially measured at

their fair value at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost

of the acquisition over the company’s interest in the net fair

value of the acquired assets and liabilities is recognised as

goodwill in the consolidated financial statements under

intangible assets (in the case of subsidiaries and joint

ventures) or as part of the carrying amount in the case of

associates. If the net fair value exceeds cost, the difference is

recognised immediately in the income statement. Costs

relating to an acquisition are recognised directly in the income

statement.
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(f) Eliminations

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures are eliminated, in the case of

joint ventures and associates in proportion to the company’s

interest in those entities, along with any unrealised gains and

assets and liabilities arising out of them. Unrealised losses are

also eliminated unless there are indications of impairment of

the asset concerned.

Company statement of income

The option of presenting the company statement of income

in abridged form pursuant to Section 402 of Book 2 of the

Netherlands Civil Code has been exercised.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect

method.

Segment information

An operating segment is a clearly identifiable part of a

company that engages in business activities with associated

revenues, costs and operating results, and about which

separate financial information is available that is regularly

reviewed by the Management Board in order to assess the

performance of the segment and make decisions about the

resources to be allocated to it. Schiphol Group identifies

fourteen operating segments, which have been combined

into nine segments for reporting purposes in view of the size

and characteristics of the operating segments. Group

overhead costs are allocated to the segments largely on the

basis of their relative share in the direct costs of Schiphol

Group.

Foreign currency

(a) Functional currency and presentation currency

The primary economic environment of Schiphol Group is the

Netherlands and so the euro is both its functional currency

and presentation currency. Financial information is presented

in thousands of euros unless otherwise indicated.

b) Transactions, assets and liabilities

Transactions (capital expenditure, income and expenses)

denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the

settlement rate of exchange. Monetary assets and liabilities

(receivables, payables and cash and cash equivalents)

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate

prevailing on the reporting date. Exchange differences arising

on translation and settlement of these items are recognised

in the statement of income in financial income and expenses,

as are the exchange differences on non-monetary assets and

liabilities unless these items are recognised directly in equity,

in which case the exchange differences are also recognised in

equity. An exception to the above concerns exchange

differences on financial instruments denominated in foreign

currencies against which derivative financial instruments are

held with the object of hedging exchange risks on future cash

flows. Exchange differences on these financial instruments

are recognised directly in equity provided the hedge is

determined to be highly effective. The ineffective portion is

recognised in the income statement under financial income

and expenses.

(c) Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Income and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at average exchange rates. Assets and liabilities are

translated at the rate prevailing on the reporting date.

Goodwill and changes in fair value arising on the acquisition

of investments in associates are treated as assets and liabilities

of the entity concerned and are similarly translated at the rate

prevailing on the reporting date. Exchange differences arising

on the translation of balance sheets and income statements

of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates outside the euro

zone are recognised directly in equity under the exchange

differences reserve. On disposal of subsidiaries, joint ventures

and associates outside the euro zone, the accumulated

translation differences initially recognised in the exchange

differences reserve are recognised in the income statement as

part of the result on disposal.

Total revenue

Many of Schiphol Group’s activities generate revenue that

qualifies as revenue from the provision of services (airport

charges, concession fees, rents and leases and parking

charges). This revenue is recognised in proportion to the

service supplied at the reporting date, provided that the result

can be reliably estimated. Revenue from retail sales is

generated by the sales of goods and is recognised when these

transactions take place.Total revenue represents the income

from the services provided less discounts and tax (VAT and

excise duty). Revenue equals total revenue less the revenue

from intra-group transactions. Costs are recognised in the

income statement in the year in which the related revenue is

recognised.

Financial income and expenses

Interest income and expense is recognised on a time-

proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield

on the loans granted or liabilities. Royalties are recognised on
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an accrual basis. Dividends are recognised when Schiphol

Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Earnings per share

Undiluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year. Diluted earnings per share are equal to the undiluted

earnings per share since there are currently no shares to be

issued in connection with options or convertible bonds that

could potentially lead to dilution of the earnings per share.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the cost of purchased goodwill,

contract-related assets and software. Goodwill arising on the

acquisition of subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures is

recognised in intangible assets. Goodwill arising on the

acquisition of associates is recognised in the carrying amount

of the associate, using the equity method. Goodwill is initially

recognised at cost, being the difference between the cost of

acquisition and the company’s share in the fair value of the

assets and liabilities acquired. The carrying amount of

goodwill is subsequently reduced by accumulated impairment

losses. Goodwill is not amortised. Goodwill is allocated to the

cash-generating unit (subsidiary, joint venture or associate) to

which it relates. This allocation is explained in greater detail

in the note on intangible assets. Contract-related assets are

contracts acquired upon the acquisition of activities from

third parties. These contracts are measured at fair value on

the acquisition date less accumulated amortisation and

impairment. Contracts are amortised over the remaining

contract period. Software is software licences and internally-

developed automation applications. Internally-developed

software is capitalised at the cost of internal and external

hours spent on the development and implementation stages

of ICT projects as recorded on the time sheets. Time spent in

the proposal and definition stages is not capitalised. Software

is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life.

Assets under construction or development

All capital expenditure except for that relating to intangible

assets is initially recognised as assets under construction or

development if it is probable that Schiphol Group will derive

future economic benefits and the amount can be measured

reliably. There are three categories of these assets:

(a) assets under construction or development for future

operating activities;

(b) assets under construction or development as future

investment property;

(c) assets under construction or development by order of third

parties.

Assets under construction or development for future

operating activities (category a) are carried at historical cost

including:

• interest during construction of all capital projects, i.e.
interest payable to third parties on borrowings attributable
to the project; and

• time charged at cost to capital projects by Schiphol Group
employees during the construction stage.

Assets under construction or development for future

operating activities are not depreciated although it may be

necessary to recognise impairment losses. The same applies to

assets under construction or development as future

investment property (category b) until the time that the fair

value can be measured reliably. At that time, these assets are

recognised at fair value through profit or loss under ‘fair value

gains and losses on property’. When assets in category a are

handed over and ready for use, they are transferred at

historical cost to ‘assets used for operating activities’, which is

also when the straight-line depreciation commences. Assets in

category b are transferred on completion to ‘investment

property’ at fair value. See the accounting policies for these

items for the way in which investment property is

subsequently recognised. Assets under construction or

development by order of third parties (category c) are

recognised using the percentage-of-completion method.

Revenues and costs relating to such assets are recognised in

the income statement under ‘sales of property’ and ‘cost of

sales of property’ respectively, in proportion to the

completion stage of the project activities on the reporting

date.

Assets used for operating activities

Assets used for operating activities include runways, taxiways,

aprons, car parks, roads, buildings, installations and other

assets. These assets are recognised at historical cost less

investment grants received, straight-line depreciation and

impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is added to the

carrying amount of these assets if it is probable that Schiphol

Group will derive future economic benefits and the amount

can be measured reliably. Assets used for operating activities,

with the exception of land, are depreciated on a straight-line

basis over the useful life of the asset concerned, which
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depends on its nature and its components. Useful lives and

residual values are re-evaluated each year-end.

The net result on the disposal of assets used for operating

activities is recognised in the income statement as revenue

from other activities. Day-to day maintenance expenses are

recognised in the income statement and planned major

maintenance of a long-term nature is capitalised.

Depreciation and amortisation

Intangible assets and assets used for operating activities are

amortised and depreciated on a straight-line basis according

to the schedule below. Goodwill is not amortised and

investment property, assets under construction and land are

not depreciated.

Intangible assets

Contract-related assets 5 years

ICT hours charged to application development 5 years

Software licences 5 years

Assets used for operating activities

Runways and taxiways 15-60 years

Aprons 30-60 years

Paved areas etc.:

- Car parks 30 years

- Roads 30 years

- Tunnels and viaducts 40 years

- Drainage systems 20-40 years

Buildings 20-40 years

Installations 5-30 years

Other assets 5-20 years

Impairment

The carrying amounts of financial and non-current assets are

tested periodically against their recoverable amounts if there

are indications of impairment. Goodwill is tested annually,

regardless of any such indications. The recoverable amount is

the higher of an asset's net realisable value and its value in

use. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale. Value in use is the present value of the estimated future

cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an

asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. These

tests are performed at cash-generating unit level.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount,

the difference is recognised as an impairment loss in the

statement of income and the carrying amount of the asset is

reduced to the recoverable amount. Where applicable, the

straight-line depreciation over the remaining useful life of the

asset concerned is adjusted accordingly. If circumstances

indicate the need to reverse an impairment loss, the carrying

amount of the asset is increased to the recoverable amount.

Impairment losses on goodwill purchased on the acquisition

of subsidiaries and joint ventures are not reversed.

Investment property

Investment property is recognised at fair value, even while it

forms part of the assets under construction or development,

provided that the fair value can be measured reliably at that

time. If this is not possible, the property is recognised at

historical cost. On completion, the property is transferred at

fair value to ‘investment property’. Any difference between

fair value and historical cost is recognised in the income

statement under ‘fair value gains and losses on property’.

Property purchased from outside Schiphol Group is initially

recognised at cost less transaction costs. Expenditure after

property has been commissioned is capitalised if it can be

measured reliably and it is probable that future economic

benefits will flow to Schiphol Group. Other expenditure is

recognised immediately in the income statement.

All of the properties in the portfolio are appraised at least

once a year by independent valuers. To prevent double

counting, the fair value of investment property as presented

in the balance sheet takes account of the lease incentives

included in the balance sheet. Gross rental revenues from

operating leases are recognised on a time-proportionate basis

over the period of the lease. Rent holidays, discounts on rent

and other lease incentives are recognised as an integral part

of the gross rental revenues. Service charges relate to the costs

of energy, concierges, maintenance and so forth, which may

be passed on to the tenant under the lease. The portion of the

service charges not passed on relates chiefly to property

investments which have not been let and is recognised in the

income statement. The costs and recharges are not presented

separately in the income statement.

Land in the investment property portfolio is measured at fair

value. Land is appraised by external and in-house valuers. A

different part of the land holdings is appraised by

independent external valuers each year. The market value of

land let on long lease is calculated by discounting the value

of the future annual ground rents and the residual value

under the contracts concerned (DCF method).
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Fair value gains and losses on investment property are

recognised in the statement of income in the year in which

they arise. Gains or losses realised on disposal of assets, i.e.

differences between carrying amount and net selling price,

are recognised through the income statement. Investment

property is not depreciated.

Income tax

Income tax on the result represents income tax payable and

recoverable and deferred tax for the reporting period. These

are computed on the basis of applicable tax rates and laws.

Income taxes include all taxes based on taxable profits and

losses including non-deductible taxes payable by subsidiaries,

associates or joint ventures. Income taxes are recognised in

the income statement unless they relate to items credited or

charged directly to equity, in which case the tax is charged or

credited directly to equity. Current tax payable or recoverable

in respect of the reporting period is the tax that is expected

to be paid on the taxable profit for the reporting period and

adjustments to the tax payable for prior periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in respect of

temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets

and liabilities according to tax rules and the accounting

policies used in preparing these financial statements.

Deferred tax assets, including those arising from tax loss carry-

forwards, are recognised if it is probable that there will be

sufficient future taxable profits against which tax losses can

be set off, allowing the assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary

differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associates unless Schiphol Group is able to

control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference

and it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities are

calculated at the tax rates expected to be applicable to the

period in which an asset is realised or a liability is settled, using

the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are netted if they relate to the same fiscal

unity and the company at the head of this fiscal unity has a

legally enforceable right to do so.

Leases

(a) Classification

Assets where the company or one of its subsidiaries has

beneficial ownership under a lease contract are classified as

finance leases. The company, or a subsidiary, has beneficial

ownership if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership are transferred to it. Leases where beneficial

ownership of the asset remains with third parties are classified

as operating leases. Whether a lease is a finance lease or an

operating lease depends on the economic reality (substance

of the transaction rather than the form of the contract).

(b) Schiphol Group as lessee in a finance lease

These assets are recognised as either assets used for operating

activities or investment property. The borrowings associated

with such lease contracts are accounted for as lease liabilities.

The related assets and liabilities are initially recognised at the

lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present

value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the

lease. The assets are depreciated, using a method consistent

with that used for identical assets owned by the company. The

depreciation period may be shorter if the lease term is shorter,

if it cannot be extended and if ownership will not be

obtained. The lease payments are apportioned between the

finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability

so as to present a constant periodic effective rate of interest

on the remaining balance.

(c) Schiphol Group as lessee in an operating lease

Leases where beneficial ownership is held by a third party are

only recognised as the lease payments in equal instalments,

allowing for lease incentives, as expenses in the income

statement.

(d) Schiphol Group as lessor in a finance lease

Assets leased out on a contract that qualifies as a finance lease

are recognised in the balance sheet as a lease receivable at the

present value of the minimum lease payments receivable at

the inception of the lease. The lease payments receivable are

apportioned between the finance income and the reduction

of the outstanding receivable so as to present a constant

periodic effective rate of interest on the remaining balance.

(e) Schiphol Group as lessor in an operating lease

Assets leased out on a contract that qualifies as an operating

lease are recognised in the balance sheet and measured

according to the type of asset. The lease payments receivable

under such leases are recognised as income in equal
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instalments, allowing for lease incentives, in the income

statement.

Loans to associates and other loans

Loans to associates and other loans are initially recognised at

cost, being the fair value of the loans granted less transaction

costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, with

differences between the redemption value and the carrying

amount being amortised over the remaining term to maturity

using the effective interest method.

Other financial interests

The company has neither control nor significant influence

over other financial interests. These are generally interests of

less than 20%. Such interests are measured at fair value

derived from quoted market prices or, if the entity is not

listed, other valuation methods. If it is not possible to

determine the fair value of an other investment reliably using

valuation methods, owing to a lack of information or up-to-

date information, it is carried at cost. Changes in the fair value

of these other financial interests are recognised through total

comprehensive income in the other financial interests reserve

included in equity in the year in which the movement occurs.

Dividends received from these interests and, in the event of

disposal of such interests, the difference between net selling

price and cost are recognised in the income statement under

financial income and expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

The company classifies financial instruments in the following

categories: receivables and liabilities, at fair value through

profit or loss and assets held for sale. The company only uses

derivative financial instruments to hedge the risk of changes

in future cash flows connected with periodic interest

payments and repayments or funding resulting from

movements in market interest rates and exchange rates. The

instruments used to hedge these rrisks are interest-rate swaps

and currency swaps.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair

value on the date when the derivative contract is concluded

and then at the fair value at each reporting date. The method

for recognition of the result depends on whether hedge

accounting is applied and if so, if the hedging relationship is

effective. If the hedging relationship is effective, hedge

accounting is applied to those derivatives.

At the inception of a hedge, the hedging relationship is

formally documented. The effectiveness of hedging

transactions is measured periodically to determine whether

the hedge has been effective over the preceding period and

whether it is probable that it will be effective over the period

ahead.

If a hedging instrument expires, is sold, ends, is exercised or

ceases to satisfy the hedge accounting criteria, hedge

accounting is discontinued immediately. The fair value gains

and losses accumulated up to that date continue to be carried

in the hedging transactions reserve and are subsequently

recognised in the statement of income simultaneously with

the realisation of the hedged cash flow.

Other non-current receivables

In the case of prepaid ground rents, the amount paid to buy

out the leasehold is included as a lease asset in the balance

sheet and recognised as an expense in the statement of

income in equal instalments over the lease term.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are presented as held for sale if the

carrying amount will be recovered through sale and the sale

will take place in the short term. Land falling into this

category is measured at the lower of cost and fair value less

costs to sell. Historical cost also includes the costs associated

with acquiring the land and site preparation costs. Assets held

for sale are not depreciated.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are measured at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost less a provision for

doubtful debts. Amounts added to and released from this

provision are recognised in the statement of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise current account credit

balances with banks and deposits. Bank overdrafts are

recognised in trade and other payables. Cash and cash

equivalents are carried at fair value, which is normally the

same as face value.

Equity

(a) Issued share capital

The issued share capital is the amount paid up on the shares

issued, up to their nominal value.

(b) Share premium reserve

The share premium reserve is the amount paid up on the

shares issued in excess of their nominal value.
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(c) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the net results (i.e. that part of the

result attributable to shareholders) accumulated in previous

years.

(d) Other reserves

Other reserves comprise the hedging transactions reserve, the

other financial interests reserve and the exchange difference

reserve.

The other financial interests reserve is increased or reduced

through comprehensive income for changes in the fair value

of Schiphol Group’s other financial interests. On disposal of

an other financial interest, the accumulated fair value gains

and losses on that interest are recognised in the income

statement as part of the result on disposal.

The policies on the hedging transactions reserve are disclosed

in ‘derivative financial instruments’. The policies on the

exchange difference reserve are disclosed under (c) in the

policy on ‘foreign currency’.

Borrowings

This item relates to bonds, private placements and amounts

owed to credit institutions. Borrowings are initially

recognised at fair value less transaction costs, and

subsequently measured at amortised cost, with differences

between the redemption value and carrying amount being

amortised over the remaining term to maturity using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings expected to be repaid within a year of the

reporting date are recognised as current liabilities.

Employee benefits

There are four categories of employee benefits:

(a) short-term employee benefits;

(b) post-employment benefits;

(c) other long-term employee benefits;

(d) and termination benefits.

These categories are defined below along with brief

descriptions of the Schiphol Group employee benefits falling

into them.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are benefits payable within a

year of the end of the year in which the employee rendered

the service. At Schiphol Group, this category includes wages

and salaries (including holiday pay) and fixed and variable

allowances, social security contributions, paid sick leave,

profit sharing and variable short-term remuneration. The

costs of these employee benefits are recognised in the income

statement when the service is rendered or the rights to

benefits are accrued (e.g. holiday pay).

(b) Post-employment benefits

These are employee benefits that may be due after

completion of employment. They include pensions and other

retirement benefits, job-related early retirement benefits,

payment of healthcare insurance costs for pensioners and

supplementary disability benefits.

Schiphol Group’s pension plan is administered by the

Algemeen Burgerlijk Pensioenfonds (ABP). The pension plan

is regarded as a group scheme involving more than one

employer that qualifies as a defined-benefit plan. ABP is not

currently in a position to supply Schiphol Group with the

information necessary to treat the pension plan as a defined-

benefit plan and so it is recognised as a defined-contribution

plan.

Accordingly, in measuring the obligations arising from the

pension plan, Schiphol Group merely recognises the pension

contributions payable as an expense in the income statement.

The information needed to recognise the defined-benefit

pension plans of certain subsidiaries and joint ventures as such

is, however, available. In these cases, a net asset or liability is

recognised in the balance sheet, comprising:

1. the present value of the defined-benefit obligation at the
reporting date measured using the projected unit credit
method, under which the present value of the pension
obligations for each member is determined on the basis
of the number of active years of service prior to the
reporting date, the estimated salary level at the expected
date of retirement and the market interest rate

2. less any past service cost not yet recognised. If, owing to
changes in the pension plans, the expected obligations
based on future salary levels with respect to prior years of
service (past service costs) increase, the amount of the
increase is not recognised in full in the period in which the
rights are granted but is charged to the income statement
over the remaining years of service; and

3. less the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if
any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.
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The other provisions for employee benefits covering job-

related early retirement benefit, payment of healthcare

insurance costs for pensioners and supplementary disability

benefits are calculated according to actuarial principles and

accounted for using the method described in 1–3 above.

(c) Other long-term employee benefits

These are employee benefits which do not fall wholly due

within a year of the end of the period in which the employees

render the related service. At Schiphol Group, this includes

long-term variable remuneration for the members of the

Management Board and senior executives in charge of

corporate staff departments and the business areas,

supplementary income for employees in receipt of disability

benefits, long-service awards and paid sabbatical leave.

The long-term variable remuneration is performance-related

remuneration which is conditional on the recipient having

satisfied certain performance criteria (economic profit)

cumulatively over a period of three years (the reference

period) from the time of award of the variable remuneration.

Payment is only made if the recipient is still employed by the

company at the end of that period. If the contract of

employment is ended by agreement, the award is made on a

pro rata basis. An estimate is made of the variable

remuneration payable at the end of the three-year period at

each year-end. A proportionate part is charged each year to

the result for the relevant year during the reference period.

The expected costs of income supplements for employees in

receipt of disability benefits are recognised in full in the

statement of income from the date on which an employee is

declared disabled. A provision for paid sabbatical leave

entitlements is recognised in the balance sheet, the costs

being recognised in the year in which the leave entitlements

are granted. Obligations for long-service awards are

recognised at present value. Other long-term employee

benefit obligations are not discounted.

(d) Termination benefits

These are employee benefits payable as a result of either a

decision by Schiphol Group to terminate an employee’s

employment before the normal retirement date or an

employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in

exchange for such benefits. Benefits under the scheme

supplementing the statutory amount of unemployment

benefit are an example of a termination benefit. The costs are

recognised in full in the income statement as soon as such a

decision is made. Benefits are recognised at the present value

of the obligation.

Other provisions

Provisions are made for legally enforceable or constructive

obligations existing on the reporting date when it is probable

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Other

provisions are included at the present value of the obligation,

if the effect of the time value of money is material and can be

measured reliably.

Other non-current liabilities

In the case of surrendered ground rents, the amount paid to

buy out the leasehold is included as a lease liability in the

balance sheet and recognised as income in the income

statement in equal instalments over the lease term.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Critical judgements and estimates

The preceding pages provide a comprehensive description of Schiphol Group’s accounting policies. Management’s judgement

will be decisive in determining the way in which they are applied in certain situations. Preparation of the financial statements

means that judgements, estimates and assumptions by management influence the amounts recognised for assets, liabilities,

revenue and expenses.

Judgements

Management’s judgements in applying IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements concern the classification

of associates as subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates and the assessment of investment property.

Estimates

The fair value of the land recognised under ‘investment property’ is measured annually by external and in-house valuers. A

different part of the land holdings is appraised by independent external valuers each year. The best evidence of fair value is

the current price of similar investment property and other contracts in an active market. In the absence of such information,

Schiphol Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

In view of the limited publicly available information, the complexity of the property appraisals and the considerable reliance

on independent external valuers, Schiphol Group believes that investment property qualifies as level 3. The table on the next

page sets out the elements used in the measurement for the areas Schiphol and Rotterdam.

Other estimates relates particularly to:

• impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets;
• useful life and residual value of assets used for operating activities;
• deferred tax assets;
• actuarial assumptions with regard to employee benefit provisions;
• assets and liabilities with regard to claims and disputes.

Further information is presented in the notes on these items. No other critical assumptions on measurement were made in

applying the accounting policies except for those disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Estimates and the related

assumptions are based on management’s experience and insights and developments in external factors which can be regarded

as reasonable. Judgements and estimates are subject to change as facts and insights change and may be different in another

reporting period. The differences in outcome are recognised through the balance sheet or income statement depending on

the nature of the item. Actual results could differ from previously reported results based on estimates and assumptions.
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(in thousands of euros)

Fair value as at 31 December

2013

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range (average) in euros

Offices 523,409 Capitalised rental value Net initial yield 5,96%-10,59% (7,75%)

DCF Method Gross initial yield
7,10%-14,01%

(10,55%)

Rental value per m² 115-353 (197)

Management expenses

(% of rental value)

8,59%-12,94%

(10,21%)

Commercial space 262,253 Capitalised rental value Net initial yield 6,60%-9,20% (7,28%)

DCF Method Gross initial yield 5,22%-12,59% (9,25%)

Rental value per m² 70-132 (102)

Management expenses

(% of rental value)

8,16%-15,43%

(11,03%)

Land:

Offices 347,522 Residual land value

(developed)

Gross initial yield
6,75%-8,00% (7,42%)

Construction cost per m²

(gross floor area )
1.000-1.600 (1.267)

Residual land value per m²

(gross floor area)
296 - 949 (586)

Commercial space -

Gross initial yield 7,75%-8,25% (8,00%)

Construction cost per m²

(gross floor area ) /ppl
400 - 750 (567)

Residual land value per m²

(gross floor area)
159 - 500 (335)

Other 1,803 Gross initial yield 6,8%-8,25% (7,67%)

Construction cost per m²

(gross floor area ) /ppl
50 - 1.675 (802)

Residual land value per m²

(gross floor area)
31 - 650 (272)

Total of property

investments

1,134,987
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Management of financial and tax risks

Financial risk factors

Due to the nature of its activities, Schiphol Group faces a variety of risks including market risk, counterparty risk and liquidity

risk. The financial risk management programme (which is part of Schiphol Group’s overall risk management programme) focuses

on the unpredictability of the financial markets and minimising any adverse effects this may have on Schiphol Group’s financial

results. Schiphol Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risks. Financial risk management is carried out by

the central treasury department (Corporate Treasury) and is part of approved Management Board policy. In addition to drawing

up written guidelines for financial risk management, the Management Board determines the policy for specific key areas such

as currency risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk, the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment

of temporary liquidity surpluses.

Market risk

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, price risk and interest-rate risk.

(a) Currency risk

Currency risk arises if future business transactions, assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet and net investments in

activities outside the euro zone are expressed in a currency other than Schiphol Group’s functional currency (the euro). Schiphol

Group operates internationally and faces currency risks on several currency positions, in particular in Japanese yen (borrowings)

and US and Australian dollars (net investments in activities outside the euro zone).

Schiphol Group manages the currency risk on borrowings by using forward and swap contracts. The financial risk management

policy is that virtually all expected cash flows are hedged. At 31 December 2013, 7.3% of group financing had been drawn in

foreign currency (one loan with a carrying amount of 137.7 million euros (20 billion Japanese yen) nominal value) compared

with 12.1% of total borrowings (one loan with a carrying amount of 174.4 million euros (20 billion Japanese yen) nominal

value) a year earlier. In accordance with the policy, this position is fully hedged by means of currency swaps. Consequently, a

movement in the exchange rate will not affect the results relating to these borrowings. The effect on equity is temporary (only

for the duration of the hedging transaction) and amounted to 27.6 million euros negative in 2013 (after deferred tax).

Schiphol Group has a number of strategic investments in activities outside the euro zone and of these the net investments

recognised in the balance sheet under ‘associates’ and ‘loans to associates’ are affected by a translation risk. In accordance with

the policy, the currency position relating to Schiphol Group’s net investments in activities outside the euro zone, totalling 173.5

million euros at 31 December 2013 (180.1 million euros at 31 December 2012), is not hedged, with the exception of the

Redeemable Preference Shares which Schiphol Group owns in Brisbane Airport Corporation Holdings Ltd. The currency risk on

this receivable and the accrued dividend, which had a carrying amount of 59.5 million euros at 31 December 2013 (80.2 million

euros at 31 December 2012), is largely hedged with forward exchange transactions. Consequently, a movement in the exchange

rate will have only a minor effect on the results relating to this receivable. Exchange differences on the unhedged position

relating to investments in associates are recognised in the exchange difference reserve and do not directly affect the result.

The effect on equity in 2013 was 18.4 million euros, which leads to a decrease in the exchange difference reserve from 21.3

million euros at 31 December 2012 to 2.9 million euros at 31 December 2013.

Corporate Treasury is responsible for the management of the net position in individual foreign currencies.

(b) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities as a result of changes in market prices. Schiphol Group

is affected mainly by the price risk on property investments which it recognises at fair value. This fair value is influenced by

supply and demand and movements in interest rates and the rate of inflation. An average increase of 10% in the net initial

yield on offices and commercial buildings demanded by property investors would reduce the value of those properties by a

1512013 Annual Report



total of approximately 94 million euros . A decrease of the NAR of 10% will lead to an increase of approximately 78 million

euros. Under the accounting policy, in that situation profitability before tax would fall by the same amount.

Schiphol Group purchases electricity and gas for its own use on long-term contracts. The remaining term of the net obligations

under the long-term contracts for electricity and gas was as follows:

(in thousands of euros) Total 2013 <= 1 year > 1 year > 5 years

Obligations relating to gas 3,192 3,192 - -

Obligations relating to electricity 13,301 7,466 5,835 -

16,493 10,658 5,835 -

(in thousands of euros) Total 2012 <= 1 year > 1 year > 5 years

Obligations relating to gas 3,404 3,404 - -

Obligations relating to electricity 14,576 7,723 6,853 -

17,980 11,127 6,853 -

(c) Interest-rate risk

Interest-rate risk is divided into a fair value interest-rate risk and a cash flow interest-rate risk.

Fair value interest-rate risk

Fair value interest-rate risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of a financial instrument as a result of movements in the

market interest rate. Schiphol Group does not have any significant financial assets that attract a fair value interest-rate risk but

is affected by fair value interest-rate risk on its fixed-interest borrowings. If market interest rates fell on average by 1%, this

would lead to an increase of 113 million euros (5.3%) in the fair value of borrowings. An average increase of 1% in market

interest rates would lead to a fall of 103 million euros (4.9%) in the fair value of borrowings. Schiphol Group’s policy is to draw

at least 50% of borrowings at fixed interest rates, if necessary by using derivatives. At least 60% of borrowings relating to

Airport Real Estate Basisfonds C.V. (AREB C.V.) should be fixed-interest or capped-interest borrowings. At 31 December 2013,

100% of borrowings were fixed-interest, excluding subsidiaries and associates (100% at 31 December 2012).

Cash flow interest-rate risk

The cash flow interest-rate risk is the risk of fluctuations in the future cash flows of a financial instrument as a result of

movements in market interest rates. Except for cash and cash equivalents, Schiphol Group has no significant financial assets

that attract a cash flow interest-rate risk. If the average interest received on deposits had been 0.4% lower during 2012 (tax

rate would be 0%), the interest income relating to deposits would have been 1.3 million euros lower (2012: 1.7 million euros).

In addition, Schiphol Group runs a cash flow interest-rate risk in respect of group financing at a variable interest rate. This

position is limited by Schiphol Group’s policy of not drawing more than 25% of the funds borrowed at a variable interest rate,

if necessary by using derivatives. A maximum of 40% applies for AREB C.V. At 31 December 2013, the figures for variable-interest

borrowings were 0% for Schiphol Group and 1% for AREB C.V. (0% and 1% respectively at 31 December 2012).

The cash flow interest-rate risk is managed by using interest-rate swaps, under which a variable interest rate can be changed

into a fixed interest rate, and interest rate caps, which limit any increase in interest rates. As part of an interest rate swap,

Schiphol Group agrees with a counterparty to effect swaps, at predetermined times, of the difference between a fixed contract

rate and a variable interest rate. This difference is calculated on the basis of the agreed underlying principal sum. If the average
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variable interest rate had been 1% higher during 2013, there would have been no interest expense effect relating to group

financing (2012 no effect).

Derivatives were concluded to limit the cash-flow interest-rate risk on long-term loans in the medium term. These fix the rates

of interest at which loans maturing in 2014 could be refinanced. The effect of these transactions on equity is temporary (only

lasting until refinancing in 2014) and amounted to 54.3 million euros negative (after deferred taxes) at 31 December 2013 (2012:

37.0 million euros negative).

Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to fulfil its obligations, causing the other party to

suffer a financial loss. Schiphol Group’s counterparties in derivative financial instruments and liquidities transactions are

restricted to financial institutions with high creditworthiness (a minimum S&P credit rating of A) and the net position for each

counterparty may not exceed 200.0 million euros. The maximum net position at 31 December 2013 was 175.5 million euros

(161.3 million euros at 31 December 2012).

At 31 December 2013, trade receivables amounted to 102.1 million euros (96.6 million euros at 31 December 2012) after a

provision for doubtful debts of 5.4 million euros (EUR 4.6 million euros at 31 December 2012) and including 2.1 million euros

in security deposits received (1.6 million euros at 31 December 2012). The provision covers all receivables owed by debtors that

are in bankruptcy or have applied for a moratorium on payments, receivables older than one year and larger receivables younger

than one year which are expected to be uncollectible.

The movements in the provision were as follows:

(in millions of euros) 2013 2012

Carrying amount 1 January 4.6 5.0

Utilised during the year - 0.2 - 1.3

Added during the year 1.0 0.9

Carrying amount 31 December 5.4 4.6
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102.1 million euros of the trade receivables (which amounted to 108.8 million euros before deduction of the provision for

doubtful amounts of 5.4 million euros and security deposits received of 2.1 million euros) were past due but not provided for.

It is expected that these amounts will be received as the debtors concerned have no default history. In 2014, of these amounts,

4 million euros haves been received.

(in millions of euros) 2013 2012

Less than 60 days 88.0 99.6

Older than 60 days 19.9 1.1

Older than 360 days 0.6 0.9

Bankruptcies 1.1 1.2

109.6 102.8

Provision for bad debt - 5.4 - 4.6

Security deposits received - 2.1 - 1.6

Total Trade receivables 102.1 96.6

Parties using services from Schiphol Group are first assessed for creditworthiness. Depending on the outcome of this assessment,

they may be required to provide security in the form of a bank guarantee or deposit to limit the credit risk. At 31 December

2013, Schiphol Group held 45,3 million euros in bank guarantees and security deposits (27.1 million euros at 31 December 2012).

Koninklijke Luchtvaartmaatschappij N.V. (KLM) has an individual balance in excess of 10.0 million euros.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Schiphol Group will have difficulty in raising the funding required to honour its commitments in

the short term. Careful liquidity risk management means that Schiphol Group maintains sufficient liquid resources and has

access to sufficient funding in the form of promised (and preferably committed) credit facilities and the EMTN programme. The

financing policy is also aimed at reducing the refinancing risk. See note 30 on borrowings for further information on the margin

and facilities. In connection with liquidity risk, Corporate Treasury manages the cash pool through which several of the

subsidiaries’ bank balances are managed and netted for optimum balance management.
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The remaining term of the net liabilities relating to financial instruments was as follows:

(in thousands of euros) Total 2013 Contractual <= 1 year > 1 year > 1 year but > 5 years

cash flows <= 5 years

Borrowings 1,934,854 2,022,571 420,395 1,514,459 373,113 1,141,346

Finance lease liabilities 57,145 57,145 3,182 53,963 10,702 43,261

Derivative financial instruments 39,256 39,256 33,429 5,827 5,827 -

Trade payables 102,986 102,986 102,986 - - -

Liabilities 2,134,241 2,221,958 559,992 1,574,249 389,642 1,184,607

Loans to associates - 59,543 - 59,543 - 59,543 - - -

Other loans - 7,869 - 7,869 - 942 - 6,927 - 6,927 -

Derivative financial instruments - 14,685 - 14,685 - 13,017 - 1,668 - - 1,668

Trade receivables - 102,091 - 102,091 - 102,091 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 489,263 - 489,263 - 489,263 - - -

Assets - 673,451 - 673,451 - 664,856 - 8,595 - 6,927 - 1,668

Total 1,460,790 1,548,507 - 104,864 1,565,654 382,715 1,182,939

(in thousands of euros) Total 2012 Contractual <= 1 year > 1 year > 1 year but > 5 years

cash flows <= 5 years

Borrowings 1,886,221 1,919,779 191,510 1,694,711 743,485 951,226

Finance lease liabilities 56,546 56,546 2,498 54,048 9,166 44,882

Derivative financial instruments 115,868 115,868 1,586 114,282 8,453 105,829

Trade payables 108,379 108,379 108,379 - - -

Liabilities 2,167,014 2,200,572 303,973 1,863,041 761,104 1,101,937

Loans to associates - 80,192 - 80,192 - - 80,192 - 80,192 -

Other loans - 8,476 - 8,476 - 936 - 7,540 - 7,540 -

Derivative financial instruments - 22,851 - 22,851 - - 22,851 - - 22,851

Trade receivables - 96,636 - 96,636 - 96,636 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 445,122 - 445,122 - 445,122 - - -

Assets - 653,277 - 653,277 - 542,694 - 110,583 - 87,732 - 22,851

Total 1,513,737 1,547,295 - 238,721 1,752,458 673,372 1,079,086
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Financial instruments can be classified, according to the measurement policy applied, as follows:

(in thousands of euros) Total 2013 Amortised Fair value Fair value through

cost through equity profit and loss

Borrowings 1,934,854 1,934,854 - -

Finance lease liabilities 57,145 57,145 - -

Derivative financial instruments 39,256 - 39,256 -

Trade payables 102,986 - - 102,986

Liabilities 2,134,241 1,991,999 39,256 102,986

Loans to associates - 59,543 - 59,543 - -

Other loans - 7,869 - 7,869 - -

Derivative financial instruments - 14,685 - - 14,685 -

Trade receivables - 102,091 - - - 102,091

Cash and cash equivalents - 489,263 - - - 489,263

Assets - 673,451 - 67,412 - 14,685 - 591,354

Total 1,460,790 1,924,587 24,571 - 488,368

(in thousands of euros) Total 2012 Amortised Fair value Fair value through

cost through equity profit and loss

Borrowings 1,886,221 1,886,221 - -

Finance lease liabilities 56,546 56,546 - -

Derivative financial instruments 115,868 - 115,868 -

Trade payables 108,379 - - 108,379

Liabilities 2,167,014 1,942,767 115,868 108,379

Loans to associates - 80,192 - 80,192 - -

Other loans - 8,476 - 8,476 - -

Derivative financial instruments - 22,851 - - 22,851 -

Trade receivables - 96,636 - - - 96,636

Cash and cash equivalents - 445,122 - - - 445,122

Assets - 653,277 - 88,668 - 22,851 - 541,758

Total 1,513,737 1,854,099 93,017 - 433,379
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All the above items are shown at the amounts at which they are recognised in the balance sheet and with a remaining maturity

based on the date of redemption or settlement agreed with the counterparty. Schiphol Group’s policy is that no more than

25% of liabilities may have a term of less than one year. At 31 December 2013, this figure was 14.0% (14.0% at 31 December

2012).

Fair value estimates

The table below presents the financial instruments measured at fair value by the method used. Measurement is undertaken

for each reporting period.

(in thousands of euros)

Total

31 December

2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivative financial instruments (assets) 14,685 - 14,685 -

Total assets 14,685 - 14,685 -

Derivative financial instruments (liabilities) 39,256 - 39,256 -

Total liabilities 39,256 - 39,256 -

(in thousands of euros) Total

31 December

2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivative financial instruments (assets) 22,851 - 22,851 -

Total assets 22,851 - 22,851 -

Derivative financial instruments (liabilities) 116,407 - 116,407 -

Total liabilities 116,407 - 116,407 -

Level 1. Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2. Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or information based on or supported by observable

market inputs;

Level 3. Unobservable inputs used to determine the fair value of an asset or liability.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 measurements. Level 2 measurements are determined using various

methods and assumptions based on market conditions on the reporting date. The fair value of these financial instruments is

determined on the basis of the present value of the projected future cash flows converted into euros at the relevant exchange

rates and the market interest rate applicable to Schiphol Group on the reporting date. Nominal value is assumed to approximate

the fair value of loans to associates, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables.

It is assumed that the nominal value, reduced by the estimated adjustments for trade receivables and trade payables,

approximates the fair value. For information purposes, the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is estimated by discounting
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future contractual cash flows at the market interest rate applicable to Schiphol Group for comparable financial instruments at

that time.

The carrying amount of borrowings was 1.9 billion euros and their fair value was 2.1 billion euros. Fair value is estimated by

discounting the future contractual cash flows using the market interest rates applicable to the borrower for similar financial

instruments at that time.

Capital management

Schiphol Group’s long-term capital strategy and dividend policy is geared towards improving shareholder value, facilitating

sustainable long-term growth and preserving an appropriate financial structure and sound creditworthiness. With its current

shareholder base (public-sector shareholders), Schiphol Group only has access to the debt market and has a continued focus on

further optimising its capital structure and cost of capital.

Schiphol Group uses certain financial ratios, including cash flow-based metrics, to capture the dynamics of capital structure,

dividend policy and cash flow generation and monitors its capital structure in line with credit rating agencies and comparable

best practices. In this context, key financial ratios employed include:

• Funds From Operations (FFO) Interest Cover: the FFO plus interest charges divided by the interest charges.
• Leverage: interest-bearing debt divided by equity plus the interest-bearing debt.
• Funds From Operations (FFO)/Total Debt: the FFO divided by the total debt.

Funds from operations

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Operating result 320,698 296,494

Depreciation and amortisation 248,414 214,897

Impairment 17,410 22,741

Result from the sale of property, plant and equipment - 280 - 18

Other income, from property - 2,726 12,508

Costs related to sales of property - - 448

Non-cash movements in receivables 7,114 19,435

Movements in provisions - 1,543 - 7,171

Income tax paid - 31,648 - 24,005

Interest paid - 98,689 - 98,580

Interest received 4,296 6,995

Dividend received 29,608 32,245

Funds From Operations 492,653 475,093

‘Funds From Operations’ is calculated specifically for the purpose of determining the financial ratios and differs from the cash

flow from operations calculated in the consolidated cash flow statement in accordance with the reporting policies.

1582013 Annual Report



(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 1,514,459 1,694,711

Lease liabilities 53,963 54,049

Current liabilities

Borrowings 420,395 191,510

Lease liabilities 3,182 2,498

Total debt 1,991,999 1,942,768

For capital management purposes, debt consists of non-current and current liabilities as shown under ‘total debt’.

For capital management purposes, equity is equal to equity in the consolidated balance sheet. At 31 December 2013, equity

was 3,362 million euros (3,198 million euros at 31 December 2012).

2013 2012

FFO / Total debt 24.7% 24.5%

Leverage 37.6% 37.8%

Funds From Operations (FFO) is the cash flow from operating activities adjusted for working capital. During 2013, FFO rose from

475 million euros to 493 million euros, mainly as a result of the increase in the operating result adjusted for depreciation and

amortisation, impairment, other income from property and movements in provisions. Total debt rose from 1,943 million euros

to 1,992 million euros.

The FFO interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing the FFO plus the interest charges relating to borrowings and lease

liabilities, amounting to 103.8 million euros in 2013 (103.4 million euros in 2012), by those interest charges. As a result, the FFO

interest coverage ratio for 2013 was 5.7x (compared with 5.6x for 2012). The ratios at 31 December 2013 are consistent with

Schiphol Group’s policy of maintaining a single A credit rating (S&P).

Tax risk factors

As a result of its wide range of activities, Schiphol Group is subject to many different types of tax. A general tax risk for Schiphol

Group is the timely submission of complete tax returns and the payment of the tax concerned, as well as compliance with all

tax laws and regulations and reporting requirements specifically relating to income tax. Activities abroad entail an increased

risk because of different local tax laws.

The internal control procedures for these tax risks (also known as the ‘tax control framework’) are part of Schiphol Group’s

overall risk management programme. This identifies tax risks and monitors internal control, focusing on mitigating tax risks.

Schiphol Group has also developed and implemented a reasoned tax planning framework. Tax risk management is facilitated

by the central control department (Corporate Control) and is part of approved Management Board policy. This policy is based

on Schiphol Group’s aim to be a trustworthy taxpayer through the application of professional tax compliance procedures. On

16 November 2012, Schiphol Group concluded an individual ‘Horizontal Supervision’ covenant with the Dutch tax authorities.

This is a standard covenant that covers all state taxes and their collection.
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Segment information

Schiphol Group has identified fourteen operating segments,

which have been combined into nine segments for reporting

purposes.

The Aviation business area operates at Amsterdam Airport

Schiphol and provides services and facilities to airlines,

passengers and handling agents. The Aviation business area

has been subdivided into two segments: Aviation and

Security. Aviation generates most of its revenue from airport

charges (charges related to aircraft and passengers) and

concession fees (paid by oil companies for the right to provide

aircraft refuelling services). The source of revenue for Security

consists of airport charges (security-related charges). The

Netherlands Competition Authority supervises the charges

levied and returns generated.

The activities of the Consumer Products & Services business

area consist of granting and managing concessions for shops

and food service outlets (Concessions segment, generating

revenue from concessions and leasing retail locations),

operating car parks (Parking segment, generating revenue

from parking charges) and shops, marketing advertising

opportunities at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol and operating

management contracts at airports outside the Netherlands

(Other segment, generating revenue from retail sales, leasing

advertising space and management fees respectively).

The Real Estate business area, which is also a segment,

develops, manages, operates and invests in property at and

around domestic and foreign airports. The greater part of the

portfolio, comprising both operations buildings and

commercial properties, is located at and around Amsterdam

Airport Schiphol. Sources of revenue include income from

developing and letting land and buildings. The business area

also makes a major contribution to Schiphol Group results

with other income from property (sales, fair value gains or

losses on property and granting long leases).

The Alliances & Participations business area comprises the

Domestic Airports, Foreign Airports and Other Subsidiaries

segments. Airport charges and parking charges are the main

sources of revenue of the regional airports (Rotterdam The

Hague, Eindhoven and Lelystad). Foreign Airports, which

holds interests in Aéroports de Paris S.A., Brisbane Airport

Corporation Ltd and JFK IAT Member LLC, contributes to

Schiphol Group’s results with performance fees and dividends

as recognised in the share in results of associates, interest and

intellectual property fees. Other Subsidiaries include Schiphol

Telematics and Utilities. Schiphol Telematics provides telecom

services in and around the airport. Utilities generates revenue

from the transmission of electricity and gas and the supply of

water.

Information relating to alliances specifically associated with a

particular business area is presented under the segments of

that business area. Information relating to other alliances is

presented under the segments of the Alliances &

Participations business area. Group overheads are allocated to

the segments largely on the basis of their relative share in the

direct costs of Schiphol Group.

The Management Board and Corporate Treasury review

liabilities and financial income and expenditure at group level

rather than segment level. Transactions between the

segments are conducted at arm’s length.

Since Schiphol Group’s current activities are concentrated

almost entirely in the Netherlands (approximately 99% of

consolidated revenue in 2013), there is no geographical

segmentation. Around 34% of revenue relates to one external

customer and is generated primarily in the Aviation and

Security segments.

1612013 Annual Report



Segment information

2013 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic Airports

Other

participations Total

Total revenue 521,172 272,142 164,420 90,197 116,511 166,029 9,588 78,630 77,837 1,496,527

Elimination of internal revenue - 410 - 224 - 31,824 - 1,144 - 314 - 24,813 - 259 - 418 - 55,054 - 114,459

Revenue 520,762 271,919 132,595 89,054 116,196 141,217 9,329 78,213 22,783 1,382,069

Fair value gains and losses on investment property - - - - - 2,886 - - 341 - 2,545

Depreciation and amortisation - 151,963 - 36,837 - 15,413 - 9,638 - 4,446 - 17,245 - 13 - 5,872 - 6,988 - 248,414

Impairment - - - - - - 17,410 - - - - 17,410

Operating result 51,880 2,963 122,401 51,874 7,663 53,421 5,645 15,227 9,625 320,698

Share in results of associates1 328 - - - - 136 56,171 - - 93 56,541

Total assets 2,238,830 256,534 135,943 198,799 18,027 1,898,915 866,062 132,391 82,795 5,828,296

Total non-current assets (excl. income tax) 1,863,087 213,479 113,128 165,435 15,002 1,580,219 720,711 110,171 68,900 4,850,131

Investments in associates and other financial

interests

3,143 - - - - 33,757 720,392 - 26,065 783,357

Capital expenditure 112,912 47,280 17,456 33,429 3,473 74,084 5 16,667 4,630 309,935

2012 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic Airports

Other

participations Total

Total revenue 506,469 267,001 160,513 88,996 116,958 169,823 11,267 66,443 80,728 1,468,198

Elimination of internal revenue - 516 - 318 - 31,475 - 1,155 - 90 - 24,356 - 472 - 134 - 57,142 - 115,658

Revenue 505,952 266,683 129,038 87,841 116,868 145,467 10,795 66,310 23,586 1,352,540

Fair value gains and losses on investment property - - - - - - 23,250 - - 770 - - 24,021

Depreciation and amortisation - 132,471 - 30,350 - 11,725 - 9,913 - 3,916 - 15,081 - 14 - 4,456 - 6,971 - 214,897

Impairment - - - - - - 22,741 - - - - 22,741

Operating result 57,619 5,804 120,929 49,998 7,454 22,874 7,548 13,228 11,040 296,494

Share in results of associates1 - - - - - 260 55,092 - 38 55,947

Total assets 2,269,290 254,800 132,481 173,158 18,567 1,787,319 941,549 119,990 91,305 5,788,459

Total non-current assets (excl. income tax) 1,898,025 213,113 110,807 144,829 15,530 1,494,906 787,508 100,359 76,367 4,841,444

Investments in associates and other financial

interests

3,174 - - - - 33,457 703,497 - 26,359 766,486

1) The share in results of associates includes the

share in results of associates presented as such in

the profit and loss account and the share of

interest income and dividends presented as part

of financial income and expenses that is

attributable to investments in associates, lease

receivables and other financial interests.
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Segment information

2013 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic Airports

Other

participations Total

Total revenue 521,172 272,142 164,420 90,197 116,511 166,029 9,588 78,630 77,837 1,496,527

Elimination of internal revenue - 410 - 224 - 31,824 - 1,144 - 314 - 24,813 - 259 - 418 - 55,054 - 114,459

Revenue 520,762 271,919 132,595 89,054 116,196 141,217 9,329 78,213 22,783 1,382,069

Fair value gains and losses on investment property - - - - - 2,886 - - 341 - 2,545

Depreciation and amortisation - 151,963 - 36,837 - 15,413 - 9,638 - 4,446 - 17,245 - 13 - 5,872 - 6,988 - 248,414

Impairment - - - - - - 17,410 - - - - 17,410

Operating result 51,880 2,963 122,401 51,874 7,663 53,421 5,645 15,227 9,625 320,698

Share in results of associates1 328 - - - - 136 56,171 - - 93 56,541

Total assets 2,238,830 256,534 135,943 198,799 18,027 1,898,915 866,062 132,391 82,795 5,828,296

Total non-current assets (excl. income tax) 1,863,087 213,479 113,128 165,435 15,002 1,580,219 720,711 110,171 68,900 4,850,131

Investments in associates and other financial

interests

3,143 - - - - 33,757 720,392 - 26,065 783,357

Capital expenditure 112,912 47,280 17,456 33,429 3,473 74,084 5 16,667 4,630 309,935

2012 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic Airports

Other

participations Total

Total revenue 506,469 267,001 160,513 88,996 116,958 169,823 11,267 66,443 80,728 1,468,198

Elimination of internal revenue - 516 - 318 - 31,475 - 1,155 - 90 - 24,356 - 472 - 134 - 57,142 - 115,658

Revenue 505,952 266,683 129,038 87,841 116,868 145,467 10,795 66,310 23,586 1,352,540

Fair value gains and losses on investment property - - - - - - 23,250 - - 770 - - 24,021

Depreciation and amortisation - 132,471 - 30,350 - 11,725 - 9,913 - 3,916 - 15,081 - 14 - 4,456 - 6,971 - 214,897

Impairment - - - - - - 22,741 - - - - 22,741

Operating result 57,619 5,804 120,929 49,998 7,454 22,874 7,548 13,228 11,040 296,494

Share in results of associates1 - - - - - 260 55,092 - 38 55,947

Total assets 2,269,290 254,800 132,481 173,158 18,567 1,787,319 941,549 119,990 91,305 5,788,459

Total non-current assets (excl. income tax) 1,898,025 213,113 110,807 144,829 15,530 1,494,906 787,508 100,359 76,367 4,841,444

Investments in associates and other financial

interests

3,174 - - - - 33,457 703,497 - 26,359 766,486

1) The share in results of associates includes the

share in results of associates presented as such in

the profit and loss account and the share of

interest income and dividends presented as part

of financial income and expenses that is

attributable to investments in associates, lease

receivables and other financial interests.
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Notes to the consolidated income statement

1. Revenue

2013 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic airports

Other

participations Total

Airport charges 492,801 270,961 - - - - - 51,883 - 815,646

Concessions 12,727 - 145,133 3,798 2,384 1,054 - 4,389 - 169,485

Rent and leases 98 - 18,889 371 - 151,811 - 3,408 - 174,577

Parking fees - - - 81,899 - 3,887 - 13,868 - 99,654

Retail sales - - - - 85,489 - - - - 85,489

Other activities 15,546 1,181 397 4,130 28,639 9,277 9,588 5,082 77,837 151,677

Total revenue 521,172 272,142 164,420 90,197 116,511 166,029 9,588 78,630 77,837 1,496,527

Elimination of internal revenue - 410 - 224 - 31,824 - 1,144 - 314 - 24,813 - 259 - 418 - 55,054 - 114,459

Revenue 520,762 271,919 132,595 89,054 116,196 141,217 9,329 78,213 22,783 1,382,069

2012 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic Airports

Other

participations Total

Airport charges 478,633 265,723 - - - - - 43,242 - 787,598

Concessions 12,263 - 143,030 3,329 2,182 1,295 - 3,737 - 165,836

Rent and leases 98 - 16,844 377 - 151,393 - 2,561 - 171,271

Parking fees - - - 81,313 - 3,636 - 12,137 - 97,085

Retail sales - - - - 86,649 - - - - 86,649

Other activities 15,476 1,278 639 3,978 28,127 13,500 11,267 4,766 80,728 159,758

Total revenue 506,469 267,001 160,513 88,996 116,958 169,823 11,267 66,443 80,728 1,468,198

Elimination of internal revenue - 516 - 318 - 31,475 - 1,155 - 90 - 24,356 - 472 - 134 - 57,142 - 115,658

Revenue 505,952 266,683 129,038 87,841 116,868 145,467 10,795 66,310 23,586 1,352,540
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1. Revenue

2013 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic airports

Other

participations Total

Airport charges 492,801 270,961 - - - - - 51,883 - 815,646

Concessions 12,727 - 145,133 3,798 2,384 1,054 - 4,389 - 169,485

Rent and leases 98 - 18,889 371 - 151,811 - 3,408 - 174,577

Parking fees - - - 81,899 - 3,887 - 13,868 - 99,654

Retail sales - - - - 85,489 - - - - 85,489

Other activities 15,546 1,181 397 4,130 28,639 9,277 9,588 5,082 77,837 151,677

Total revenue 521,172 272,142 164,420 90,197 116,511 166,029 9,588 78,630 77,837 1,496,527

Elimination of internal revenue - 410 - 224 - 31,824 - 1,144 - 314 - 24,813 - 259 - 418 - 55,054 - 114,459

Revenue 520,762 271,919 132,595 89,054 116,196 141,217 9,329 78,213 22,783 1,382,069

2012 Aviation Consumer Products & Services Real Estate Alliances & Partipications

Aviation Security Concessions Parking Other

International

airports Domestic Airports

Other

participations Total

Airport charges 478,633 265,723 - - - - - 43,242 - 787,598

Concessions 12,263 - 143,030 3,329 2,182 1,295 - 3,737 - 165,836

Rent and leases 98 - 16,844 377 - 151,393 - 2,561 - 171,271

Parking fees - - - 81,313 - 3,636 - 12,137 - 97,085

Retail sales - - - - 86,649 - - - - 86,649

Other activities 15,476 1,278 639 3,978 28,127 13,500 11,267 4,766 80,728 159,758

Total revenue 506,469 267,001 160,513 88,996 116,958 169,823 11,267 66,443 80,728 1,468,198

Elimination of internal revenue - 516 - 318 - 31,475 - 1,155 - 90 - 24,356 - 472 - 134 - 57,142 - 115,658

Revenue 505,952 266,683 129,038 87,841 116,868 145,467 10,795 66,310 23,586 1,352,540
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Airport charges

The activities of the Aviation business area (the operation of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol) are regulated, meaning that the

annual process of setting the airport charge rates is overseen by the Netherlands Competition Authority and involves

consultations with the airlines. When setting the airport charges, the Aviation business area’s profitability is also capped at an

average weighted cost of capital for regulated assets; both must be determined in compliance with the Aviation Act. Under

the Aviation Act, Schiphol Group must settle surpluses and deficits from specified income and expenses with the industry. In

principle, settlement takes place after the close of a financial year and the preparation of financial statements of the Aviation

and Security segments using the new airport charge rates. In accordance with the accounting policies, surpluses and deficits

eligible for settlement in the airport charge rates are not presented as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. This procedure

does not apply to the airport charges at Rotterdam The Hague, Eindhoven and Lelystad airports, which are recognised in the

Domestic Airports segment. There was a shortage for the financial year 2012 of 2.3 million euros for the Aviation segment and

a surplus of 1.3 million euros for the Security segment. The shortage of 1.0 million euros will be factored into the charges in

force from 1 April 2014.

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Aircraft-related fees 199,018 194,732

Passenger-related fees 311,635 296,952

Security service charges 297,567 287,872

Aircraft parking fees 7,426 8,042

815,646 787,598

Concessions

Schiphol Group’s Concessions segment, which is part of the Consumer Products & Services business area has 99 concession

contracts (2012: 100) for a range of commercial activities at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol.

A concession grants the holder non-exclusive rights to operate and manage a commercial activity (outlet) in a specific location

designated by Schiphol Group. The concession fees are calculated on a percentage scale of the sales generated by the concession

holder. A separate contract is entered into with concession holders for the space, for which a fixed rent is payable. The

concessions run for an average of three to five years. At the reporting date, about 65% of the concessions had a remaining

term of less than three years (2012 about 62%), 23% had between three and five years to run (2012: 28%) and 12% had more

than five years to run (2012: 10%).

Revenue of 12.7 million euros from concessions granted by the Aviation segment (12.3 million euros in 2012) and 3.8 million

euros by the Parking segment (3.3 million euros in 2012) related to concession contracts for the third-party supply of aviation

fuel and the use of drop-off roads by taxi and car rental services respectively.
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Rents and leases

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Investment property: buildings, including service charges 83,509 75,478

Investment property: land 24,952 25,086

Operating property, including service costs 44,359 48,985

Elimination of internal revenue 21,757 21,722

174,577 171,271

Occupancy in the Real Estate segment was 86.3% at 31 December 2013 (91.8% at 31 December 2012).

Approximately 6% of the leases (measured by income from rents and leases) expire within one year (5% in 2012), 46% between

one and five years (50% in 2012) and 48% after more than five years (45% in 2012).

Property management expenses were as follows:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Occupied buildings 31,464 34,852

Unoccupied buildings 5,287 4,701

36,751 39,553

Management expenses for buildings that are only partially leased have been apportioned on the basis of floor area.

Parking charges

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Parking at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol:

Short-stay car park 38,832 39,298

Long-stay car park 24,333 23,997

Other public car parking 4,264 3,053

Business parking 17,440 17,191

84,869 83,539

Parking at other locations 13,868 12,137

Elimination of internal revenue 917 1,409

99,654 97,085

Parking at other locations relates to Rotterdam The Hague, Eindhoven and Lelystad airports and the income is reported in the

Domestic Airports segment.
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Retail sales

Retail sales of 85.5 million euros in 2013 (86.6 million euros in 2012) represented revenue from alcohol, tobacco and chocolate.

The related cost of sales of 41.2 million euros (43.7 million euros in 2012) is recognised under operating expenses in ‘Cost of

contracted work and other external costs’.

Other activities

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Advertising 19,352 19,513

Services and activities on behalf of third parties 17,528 19,611

Electricity, gas and water 7,176 6,885

Other operating income 28,155 28,963

Miscellaneous 16,624 19,311

Elimination of internal revenue 62,842 65,475

151,677 159,758

2. Sales of property

The 11.5 million euros recognised in 2012 under ‘sales of property’ related mainly to the contribution of land to A4 Zone West

C.V., the purchase and sale of the air traffic control tower and the sale of land to Rijkswaterstaat.

3. Fair value gains and losses on property

(in thousands of euros) 2013

New long leases granted 471

Fair value adjustments: land 19,047

Fair value adjustments: buildings - 16,973

2,545

The gains from granting new long leases were connected with the change in measurement of leasehold land from historical

cost to fair value upon release. Fair value is calculated by discounting the annual ground rents from the leases concerned (DCF

method), using a discount rate based on the interest rate on Dutch government bonds plus a risk premium.

The fair value of all the properties is assessed each year and adjusted as necessary on the basis of in-house and external appraisals

taking into account any lease incentives granted. The resulting adjustments to fair value are included in market value

adjustments for land and buildings.

The fair value adjustments for land arose from an improvement in the appraisal methods for leaseholds, reflecting the actual

development and infrastructure in place.

The fair value adjustments of buildings arose from increased vacancies in existing buildings and investment in buildings

undergoing redevelopment.
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4. Cost of contracted work and other external costs

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Cleaning 30,615 30,344

Security 191,339 186,684

Maintenance 97,436 89,566

Other subcontracted activities 92,049 93,041

Energy and water 24,586 24,525

Cost of retail sales 41,211 43,742

Contract staff 21,489 22,631

Commercial expenses 26,215 28,136

Insurance 19,822 19,004

Consultancy and audit fees 12,084 13,816

Costs related to investments 6,076 9,360

Other expenses (such as general expenses, rents and leasing) 40,660 45,002

603,582 605,851

At 31 December 2013, there were commitments (not included in the balance sheet) for long-term contracts for security,

maintenance, cleaning, etc. totalling 506.8 million euros (31 December 2012: 422.1 million euros). The total amount also includes

commitments for contracted work with respect to central security of 74.9 million euros. The commitments relating to security

contracts have a total value of 258.2 million euros, maintenance (42.1 million euros), cleaning (32.5 million euros) and gas and

electricity purchases (16.5 million euros). The total liabilities for 2014 amount to 149.7 million euros. There are also maintenance

contracts that do not involve a purchase obligation.

The following future lease instalments (not recognised in the balance sheet) are payable under operating leases with Schiphol

Group as lessee:

(in thousands of euros) Total <= 1 year > 1 year

> 1 year

but < 5 years > 5 years

Rental and lease contract commitments 36,071 7,415 28,656 17,635 11,021

Auditor's fee

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Audit of the financial statements 755 763

Other audit services 425 478

Tax advisory 243 173

Other non-audit services 25 75

1,448 1,489

The auditor’s fees were for activities carried out at Schiphol Group and the consolidated group companies by the audit firm as

meant by Section 1(1) of the Audit Firms Supervision Act and represent the fees charged by the entire network of which this

audit firm is part. The fees of PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V. were 1.2 million euros (2012: 1.3 million euros) while
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the activities performed by other members of the PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V. network amounted to 0.2 million

euros (2012: 0.3 million euros).

5. Employee benefits

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries 140,206 143,208

Social security charges 12,890 13,012

Internal hours capitalised - 10,975 - 10,780

142,121 145,440

Post-retirement benefits

Pension charges (defined-contribution plans) 23,261 18,393

Pension charges (defined-benefit plans) 146 664

Early retirement benefits 1,253 1,483

24,660 20,540

Other long-term employee benefits

Long-service bonuses 685 591

Long-term management bonuses 1,244 1,260

Other employee benefits 1,698 -

3,627 1,851

Termination benefits 4,033 2,192

Other staff costs 11,445 12,336

Total employee benefits 185,886 182,359

N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol and its subsidiaries had an average of 2,058 employees, on a full-time equivalent basis (2012: 2,087).

Other staff costs included 0.5 million euros (2012: 0.7 million euros) for the crisis levy on higher incomes.

The internal hours capitalised concern production in the form of time charged by staff in the implementation phases of

investment projects. Other staff costs include, among other training costs and staff expenses.

See note 32 for further information on post-retirement benefits, other long-term employee benefits and termination benefits.

See the ‘Related Party Disclosures’ section for details of the remuneration of members of the Supervisory and Management

Boards pursuant to Section 2:383c of the Netherlands Civil Code.
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6. Depreciation and amortisation

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Intangible assets

ICT development 6,479 6,997

Software licences 4,989 4,321

11,468 11,318

Assets used for operating activities

Runways, taxiways and aprons 22,234 21,911

Paved areas, roads etc. 11,569 11,293

Plant 43,729 36,813

Installations 118,554 101,959

Other assets 33,881 28,738

229,967 200,714

Depreciation and amortisation relating to disposals 6,979 2,865

Total depreciation and amortisation 248,414 214,897

7. Impairment

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Intangible assets

Goodwill Villa Carmen B.V. - 1,392

Assets under construction or development

Assets under construction for operating activities 349 -

Assets under construction for investment property 17,061 21,349

Total impairment losses 17,410 22,741

The impairment of 17.4 million euros in 2013 related to the write down in the value of land at Rotterdam The Hague Airport

(6 million euros) and on land at Schiphol East of 11 million euros. In 2012 the impairment related to the real estate activities

near Malpensa airport in Italy.

8. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprised various items. In 2012 an impairment of 8.4 million euros was included with respect to

real estate properties.
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9. Financial income and expenses

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Interest expense

Borrowings - 99,303 - 99,082

Lease liabilities - 4,463 - 4,291

Capitalised construction period borrowing costs 2,134 3,798

Interest on tax due - 319 -

- 101,951 - 99,575

Interest income

Cash and cash equivalents 2,048 3,851

Loans to associates 5,848 9,906

Lease receivables - 391

Interest on tax due 1,492 1,643

Other 558 259

9,946 16,050

Other financial gains and losses

Exchange differences on loans to associates - 925 - 283

Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents - 149 - 411

Exchange differences on other assets and liabilities 2,795 597

Derivative financial instruments - 4,449 - 4,530

Dividends from other financial interests - 158

Other - 89 - 88

- 2,817 - 4,557

Total financial income and expenses - 94,822 - 88,082

Capitalised construction period borrowing costs are interest charges incurred during the construction phase of large investment

projects.

Exchange differences on loans to associates concern the Redeemable Preference Shares of Brisbane Airport Corporation

Holdings Ltd held by Schiphol Group. The terms and conditions require repayment of the nominal value to the shareholders

within a period of 10 years and therefor the shares are not considered to be part of the net investment in the associate.

Consequently, exchange differences should be accounted for in the income statement rather than in the exchange differences

reserve. The currency risk relating to this long-term receivable is, however, largely hedged by annual forward transactions which

hedge the Australian dollar position against the euro. The hedge transactions are recognised as a cash flow hedge while the

associated exchange differences are recognised in the reserve for hedging transactions. The other exchange differences are

recognised in the income statement.

10. Share of results of associates

‘Share of results of associates’ presents the share of the results of non-consolidated associates, including Aéroports de Paris S.A.

(ADP) and Brisbane Airport Corporation Holdings Ltd (BACH).
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The share of results of associates for 2013 included a contribution of 28.4 million euros from BACH (2012: 11.2 million euros).

The result was positively affected in 2013 by movements of 17.3 million euros in BACH’s derivatives portfolio caused chiefly by

derivative positions taken in connection with an expected extension involving an additional runway. There are no early

settlement or early payment obligations for these derivatives.

ADP’s contribution to Schiphol Group’s financial result for 2013 was an income of 21.7 million euros (income of 34.8 million

euros in 2012), including adjustments in connection with differences in the accounting policies mainly relating to investment

property.
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11. Income tax

The income tax charge in the income statement was computed as follows:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Profit before income tax 276,429 253,876

Share in result of associates1 - 48,910 - 45,630

227,519 208,246

Standard rate of income tax 25.0% 25.0%

Income tax calculated at the standard tax rate 56,880 52,062

Different rate for foreign subsidiaries 509 1,995

Income tax before extraordinary items 57,389 54,056

Effective rate of income tax before extraordinary items 20.8% 21.3%

Losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised - 7,296

Other movements: income tax liabilities - 11,744 - 1,480

Other movements: deferred tax assets and liabilities - - 2,434

Income tax in the income statement 45,645 57,438

To current tax liability (asset) 44,765 60,910

To deferred tax liability 880 - 3,472

Effective rate of income tax after extraordinary items 16.5% 22.6%

1) In calculating the corporate income tax payable, the share in results of associates is deducted because they satisfy the substantial holding privilege

tax rule. This does not apply to the esults of limited partnerships (C.V.s), which are not independently liable for tax and whose results are included

in the result of the N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol fiscal entity.

Excluding non-recurring items, the effective tax rate of 20.8% in 2013 was lower than the 21.3% figure in 2012 and below the

nominal income tax rate of 25% because of the relatively higher share of the results of associates which are not subject to

Dutch income tax. It can also be explained by an amount of 1.0 million euros regarding a tax charge relating to the result of

the associate JFK IAT (2012: 2.0 million euros). The charge regarding other associates with a different tax rate amount to -0.5

million euros.

The lower effective tax rate, including non-recurring effects, of 16.5% (2012: 22.6%) was caused by a number non-recurring

items. In 2012, the non-deductible income tax on losses relating to impairment in Italy amounted to EUR million euros (2013:

0 millon euros). The other movements in current tax liabilities in 2013 regard to the true up of the tax returns 2011 (1.7 million

euros) and 2012 (1.6 million euros) and a one-off tax gain of 8.5 million euros due to the application of the participation

exemption on RPS dividends received.
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12. Result attributable to non-controlling interests

The result attributable to non-controlling interests includes the share of third parties in the results of the group companies

Eindhoven Airport N.V. and Avioport SpA. An abridged income statement for these companies is presented in the ‘Related

Party Disclosures’ section (under ‘subsidiaries’).

13. Earnings per share

2013 2012

Result attributable to shareholders (net result in euros) 227,492,275 198,714,000

Average number of shares in issue during the year 186,147 186,147

Earnings per share (in euros) 1,222 1,068
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

14. Intangible assets

(in thousands of euros) Goodwill ICT development Software licences

Software under

development Total

Analysis as at 31 December 2011

Cost 7,591 49,247 24,755 9,361 90,954

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

- 5,350 - 30,175 - 13,720 - 314 - 49,559

Carrying amount 2,241 19,072 11,035 9,047 41,395

Movements in 2012

Additions - - 136 9,259 9,395

Completions - 5,315 7,004 - 12,319 -

Amortisation - - 6,997 - 4,321 - - 11,318

Impairment - 1,392 - - - - 1,392

Reclassification - 58 - 58 - -

Disposals - - 543 - 311 - - 854

Total movements in the year - 1,392 - 2,167 2,450 - 3,060 - 4,169

Analysis as at 31 December 2012

Cost 7,591 54,077 31,526 6,301 99,495

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

- 6,742 - 37,172 - 18,041 - 314 - 62,269

Carrying amount 849 16,905 13,485 5,987 37,226

Movements in 2013

Additions - - - 12,604 12,604

Completions - 6,967 5,807 - 12,774 -

Amortisation - - 6,479 - 4,989 - - 11,468

Reclassification - - 111 - - - 111

Disposals - - 110 - 102 - - 212

Total movements in the year - 267 716 - 170 813

Analysis as at 31 December 2013

Cost 7,591 60,823 37,231 6,131 111,776

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

- 6,742 - 43,651 - 23,030 - 314 - 73,737

Carrying amount 849 17,172 14,201 5,817 38,039

Goodwill recognised in intangible assets at 31 December 2013 related to Schiphol Telematics B.V.
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An impairment test was performed at year-end 2013, comparing its carrying amount with the value in use of the cash-generating

unit calculated using information from the 2014-2016 tactical plan at a discount rate of 5.1%. The test did not indicate any

need to recognise an impairment loss.

Malpensa Real Estate II B.V. (MRE II B.V., a subsidiary of Schiphol Group) acquired an interest of 47.44% in Villa Carmen B.V. in

2005. The goodwill generated was derived from the surplus value of the land contributed by MRE II B.V. on acquisition of its

holding. As a result of the impairment charges in 2012 the goodwill was fully amortised at year end.

ICT application development related to in-house and external hours charged to automation projects in the implementation

and completion phases. Software licences and software under development relate to third-party packages.

See note 7 for further information on impairment.
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15. Assets used for operating activities

(in thousands of euros)

Runways,

taxiways and

aprons

Paved areas,

roads etc. Buildings Installations Other assets Total

Analysis as at 31 december 2011

Cost 676,704 596,948 1,294,474 1,743,438 398,018 4,709,582

Accumulated depreciation and impairment - 315,243 - 168,175 - 517,087 - 1,010,648 - 295,616 - 2,306,769

Carrying amount 361,461 428,773 777,387 732,790 102,402 2,402,813

Movements in 2012

Completions 18,953 18,930 37,014 184,190 34,952 294,039

Depreciation - 21,911 - 11,293 - 36,813 - 101,959 - 28,738 - 200,714

Changes in the consolidation - - - - - 207 - 207

Disposals - 36 - - 541 - 774 - 660 - 2,011

Reclassification - - 3,005 2,301 2 - - 702

Total movements in the year - 2,994 4,632 1,961 81,459 5,347 90,405

Analysis as at 31 december 2012

Cost 695,621 612,873 1,333,248 1,926,856 432,103 5,000,701

Accumulated depreciation and impairment - 337,154 - 179,468 - 553,900 - 1,112,607 - 324,354 - 2,507,483

Carrying amount 358,467 433,405 779,348 814,249 107,749 2,493,218

Movements in 2013

Completions 11,293 27,347 58,775 90,473 22,748 210,636

Depreciation - 22,234 - 11,569 - 43,729 - 118,554 - 33,881 - 229,967

Disposals - - - 179 - 5,651 - 937 - 6,767

Reclassification - - 542 - 3,553 1,255 258 - 2,582

Total movements in the year - 10,941 15,236 11,314 - 32,477 - 11,812 - 28,680

Analysis as at 31 december 2013

Cost 706,914 639,678 1,388,291 2,012,933 454,172 5,201,988

Accumulated depreciation and impairment - 359,388 - 191,037 - 597,629 - 1,231,161 - 358,235 - 2,737,450

Carrying amount 347,526 448,641 790,662 781,772 95,937 2,464,538
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16. Assets under construction or development

(in thousands of euros)

Assets under

construction for

operating activities

Assets under

construction for

investment property Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 250,937 146,095 397,032

Movements in 2012

Capital expenditure 253,338 35,244 288,582

Construction period borrowing cost capitalised 3,340 458 3,798

Completed assets and investment property - 294,040 - 52,762 - 346,802

Impairment - - 21,349 - 21,349

Sales - 89 - - 89

Reclassification 1,407 - 13,275 - 11,868

Total movements in the year - 36,044 - 51,684 - 87,728

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 214,893 94,411 309,304

Movements in 2013

Capital expenditure 253,719 59,286 313,005

Construction period borrowing cost capitalised 1,757 378 2,134

Completed assets and investment property - 210,634 - 48,178 - 258,812

Impairment - 349 - 17,061 - 17,410

Reclassification - 1,548 39,796 38,248

Total movements in the year 42,945 34,221 77,166

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 257,838 128,632 386,470

The reclassification of assets under construction in 2013 relate, inter alia, to assets held for sale, see section 23 'Assets held for

sale'. In 2012, the reclassification of assets under construction for investment property mainly related to prepayments of assets

under construction which are recognised as other current receivables.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs during the construction period is calculated by applying a percentage rate determined

quarterly according to leverage ratio. In 2013, the rate varied between 2.4% and 2.5% per annum reflecting that ratio. At 31

December 2013, there was no difference between the fair value of assets under construction for investment property and the

costprice.

At 31 December 2013, there were capital expenditure obligations for assets under construction or development of 66.3 million

euros in property (at 31 December 2012:125.8 million euros, of which 95.1 million euros in property). A start has been made in

2013 on the Central Security project with a capital expenditure programme of plus minus 350 million euros. It is expected that

the Central Security project will be completed in 2015.

See note 7 for further information on impairment.
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17. Investment property

(in thousands of euros) Buildings Sites Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 751,371 317,501 1,068,872

Movements in 2012

Completions 42,062 10,700 52,762

Fair value gains and losses - 24,869 848 - 24,021

Sales - 11,157 - - 11,157

Reclassification 702 - 702

Total movements in the year 6,738 11,548 18,286

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 758,109 329,049 1,087,158

Movements in 2013

Completions 47,988 189 48,177

Fair value gains and losses - 16,994 19,540 2,546

Reclassification - 3,440 546 - 2,894

Total movements in the year 27,554 20,275 47,829

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 785,663 349,324 1,134,987

Airport Real Estate Basisfonds C.V. (AREB C.V.) has granted pledges on 17 of its investment properties in favour of Svenska

Handelsbanken A.B. for an amount of 314.0 million euros. The proportionate consolidation of AREB C.V. means that 61.15%

of this amount was recognised in the Schiphol Group balance sheet at 31 December 2013.

Buildings included 80.3 million euros (31 December 2012: 82.5 million euros) in respect of the fair value of assets (The Base)

where the company has the risks and rewards incidental to ownership but not legal title (finance lease). Land includes sites

leased under long-lease contracts.

The calculation of the cash flows (which are a factor in determining the fair value at which investment property is presented

in the balance sheet) takes into account the existence of lease incentives. See notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated income statement

for details of sales and fair value gains and losses.

Schiphol Group’s policy is to let land solely on a long-lease or a ground rent basis except for those sites which management

intends to sell. These are sites away from the Schiphol location and they are recognised in the balance sheet as assets held for

sale.
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18. Deferred tax

Schiphol Group has been subject to corporate income tax since 1 January 2002. On 8 September 2006, Schiphol Group and the

tax authorities signed a tax ruling that specified the opening balance sheet for tax purposes and certain other arrangements

for determining Schiphol Group’s taxable profit. These give rise to the following measurement differences:

• Assets used for operating activities and assets under construction are carried at cost for both reporting and tax purposes but
the tax ruling resulted in differences between the cost for reporting and tax purposes of assets held at 1 January 2002. The
balance sheet for tax purposes equates cost with the market value at 1 January 2002, whereas the balance sheet for reporting
purposes equates cost with the historical cost, which may be lower.

• Property investments, derivative financial instruments and borrowings in foreign currencies are measured at fair value for
reporting purposes and at cost for tax purposes.

• Property investments are depreciated for tax purposes (with a residual value of 25%) but not for reporting purposes.
• The Working on Profit Act came into force with effect from the financial year 2007. This Act restricts the depreciation for tax

purposes of both commercial and operational buildings to a base value. The base value is 50% of the WOZ value (i.e., the
value under the Valuation of Immovable Property Act) for operational buildings and 100% of the WOZ value for commercial
buildings.

• Differences in the measurement of employee benefits because of differences in the actuarial assumptions applied.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in respect of all these differences and in respect of the deferred tax liability

resulting from the expansion of Schiphol Group’s interest in JFK IAT LLC in 2010.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from the following balance sheet items:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Deferred tax assets (fiscal unity)

Assets used for operating activities 143,498 171,856

Assets under construction or development 66,052 83,707

Derivative financial instruments and borrowings 10,572 36,944

Employee benefits 3,944 3,056

Investment property - 23,927 - 29,142

200,139 266,421

Deferred tax liabilities (outside fiscal unity)

Investments in associates - 14,134 - 13,777

Investment property - 307 - 277

- 14,441 - 14,054

Total deferred tax (net asset) 185,698 252,367

Non-current (settlement is not expected) 83,274 83,574

Non-current (expected to be recovered or settled after longer than 1 year) 105,678 168,567

Current (expected to be recovered or settled within 1 year) - 3,254 226

185,698 252,367

Under IAS 12, Income Taxes, a deferred tax asset has to be recognised if it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. However, it is not expected that the deferred tax

assets relating to certain operating assets (83.3 million euros) will actually be realised because the difference in the values for

reporting and tax purposes will be realised only in the event of a sale (resulting in a lower profit for tax purposes and a lower
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corporate income tax liability), impairment (resulting in higher costs for tax purposes and a lower corporate income tax liability)

or termination of the aviation activities (resulting in higher costs for tax purposes because compensation will only be obtained

up to the carrying amount for reporting purposes). Schiphol Group is not authorised to sell the land for operating activities,

forecasts of future cash flows do not suggest that impairment losses will be necessary and it is unlikely that the activities will

be terminated.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted if they relate to the same fiscal unity and the company at the head of this fiscal

unity has a legally enforceable right to do so.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised for unused tax losses of 3.4 million euros.
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The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:

(in thousands of euros)

Assets used for

operating activities

Assets under

construction or

development

Investment

property

Derivative financial

instruments Employee benefits Associates Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 185,930 78,878 - 26,187 13,236 3,294 - 11,799 243,352

Movements in 2012

Deferred tax on depreciation for tax purposes on investment property - 14,074 - - 2,265 - - - - 16,339

Deferred tax recognised in the income statement - 4,829 - 1,302 2,587 - 664 - 1,978 3,472

Deferred tax recognised in equity - - - 21,121 - - 21,121

Other movements - - 335 - 426 - 761

Total movements in the year - 14,074 4,829 - 3,232 23,708 - 238 - 1,978 9,015

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 171,856 83,707 - 29,419 36,944 3,056 - 13,777 252,367

Movements in 2013

Deferred tax on depreciation for tax purposes on investment property - 20,457 - - 18,465 - - - - 38,922

Deferred tax recognised in the income statement - - - 1,907 - 1,383 - 357 - 880

Deferred tax recognised in equity - - - - 26,395 - - - 26,395

Reclassification - 7,901 - 17,655 25,556 - - - -

Other movements - - - 23 - 495 - - 472

Total movements in the year - 28,358 - 17,655 5,184 - 26,372 888 - 357 - 66,669

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 143,498 66,052 - 24,235 10,572 3,944 - 14,134 185,698
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(in thousands of euros)

Assets used for

operating activities

Assets under

construction or

development

Investment

property

Derivative financial

instruments Employee benefits Associates Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 185,930 78,878 - 26,187 13,236 3,294 - 11,799 243,352

Movements in 2012

Deferred tax on depreciation for tax purposes on investment property - 14,074 - - 2,265 - - - - 16,339

Deferred tax recognised in the income statement - 4,829 - 1,302 2,587 - 664 - 1,978 3,472

Deferred tax recognised in equity - - - 21,121 - - 21,121

Other movements - - 335 - 426 - 761

Total movements in the year - 14,074 4,829 - 3,232 23,708 - 238 - 1,978 9,015

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 171,856 83,707 - 29,419 36,944 3,056 - 13,777 252,367

Movements in 2013

Deferred tax on depreciation for tax purposes on investment property - 20,457 - - 18,465 - - - - 38,922

Deferred tax recognised in the income statement - - - 1,907 - 1,383 - 357 - 880

Deferred tax recognised in equity - - - - 26,395 - - - 26,395

Reclassification - 7,901 - 17,655 25,556 - - - -

Other movements - - - 23 - 495 - - 472

Total movements in the year - 28,358 - 17,655 5,184 - 26,372 888 - 357 - 66,669

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 143,498 66,052 - 24,235 10,572 3,944 - 14,134 185,698
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19. Associates

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Carrying amount as at 1 January 764,869 725,048

Movements in the year

Share of results 50,553 43,847

Dividends - 18,145 - 14,312

Share capital contributions to associates 190 11,235

Exchange differences - 14,110 - 949

Total movements in the year 18,488 39,821

Carrying amount as at 31 December 783,357 764,869

The increase in exchange differences is related to development of the euro in comparison with the Australian Dollar in 2013.

The 11.2 million euros share capital contributions to associates in 2012 related to Schiphol Area Development Company N.V.

The carrying amount of the associates at 31 December 2013 included 244 million euros of goodwill relating to Aéroports de

Paris and 34 million euros relating to Brisbane Airports Corporation Ltd. The annual impairment test on goodwill did not indicate

a need to recognise an impairment loss for either investment.

See the ‘Related Party Disclosures’ section for further information on the associates. See note 10 for further information on the

share in the results of associates.

20. Loans to associates

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Carrying amount as at 1 January 80,192 92,141

Movements in the year

Accrued interest 5,848 6,771

Amortisation - - 318

Exchange differences hedging transactions - 14,110 - 344

Other exchange differences - 925 - 283

Dividend received - 11,462 - 17,775

Total movements in the year - 20,649 - 11,949

Carrying amount as at 31 December 59,543 80,192

Loans to associates relate exclusively to the Redeemable Preference Shares in Brisbane Airport Corporation Holdings Ltd (BACH)

held by Schiphol Group and which carry entitlement to a cumulative dividend. The redemption date for these shares is formally

30 June 2014 but BACH has extended the maturity to 2022. In view of this the redeemable preference shares of AUD 92.6 million

(59.5 million euros including accumulated dividend) are classified as a short-term loan to an associate and the dividend on these

shares is treated as financial income.
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The accrued dividend is the valuation of the Redeemable Preference Shares at amortised cost and part of the dividend for the

past three years which the management of BACH decided not to distribute. Given its cumulative preference nature, however,

this dividend is still recognised as receivable and as income. BACH paid the remaining undistributed dividend during 2013.

The currency risk relating to the nominal value of this long-term loan and the accrued dividends is hedged by annual forward

transactions which hedge the Australian dollar position against euros. The hedge transactions are recognised as a cash flow

hedge while the exchange differences relating to part of the loan and the dividend that is not hedged and the period between

the successive annual forward transactions are recognised in the income statement. Other exchange differences are recognised

in the reserve for hedging transactions through total comprehensive income.

The fair value of the loans to associates at 31 December 2013 was 60.1 million euros (AUD 93.4 million). The effective dividend

was approximately 10%. The fair value is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at current market interest

rates available to the borrower for similar financial instruments.

21. Loans

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Carrying amount as at 1 January 8,476 1,591

Movements in the year

Repayments - 607 - 651

New loans granted - 7,536

Total movements in the year - 607 6,885

Carrying amount as at 31 December 7,869 8,476

The current portion of the loans at 31 December 2013, amounting to 0.9 million euros (31 December 2012: 0.1 million euros),

is presented under current assets. In 2012 new loans granted includes a loan of 4.3 million euros that was granted to SRE Altaï

B.V., a property joint venture with Aéroports de Paris.

22. Other non-current receivables

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Surrender long leases 3,230 3,320

Lease incentives 30,634 33,975

Prepaid assets 280 174

Total other non-current receivables 34,144 37,469

Purchased long leases are the rent instalments which Schiphol Group paid in advance in respect of land acquired on a long

lease. Lease incentives are the cost of benefits which Schiphol Group granted tenants at the start of their lease. Both items are

charged to the income statement over the term of the underlying contracts. The existence of lease incentives is taken into

account in establishing the cash flows underlying the determination of the fair value of property.
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23. Assets held for sale

Land which is intended to be sold is presented as assets held for sale. At year-end 2011, this was the A4 zone West, an extensive

logistics site adjacent to the A4 motorway to the south of the Amsterdam Airport Schiphol cargo zones. In December 1999 and

December 2009, the municipality of Haarlemmermeer, Schiphol Real Estate B.V. and SADC decided in cooperation agreements

(SOK I and SOK II respectively) to acquire and allocate plots in the A4 Zone West area.

The land acquired in 1999 is being financed equally by the three partners. A further 6.7 million euros of land will be contributed

(including 2.2 million euros by Schiphol Real Estate B.V.).

During 2013, it became apparent that the land held for sale would not be disposed of within a year. Consequently, its

classification was changed to commercial construction sites and the land has been included as Paved areas, roads etc. in Assets

used for operating activities.

24. Trade and other receivables

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Trade receivables 102,091 96,636

Accrued income 26,609 23,036

Value-added tax 14,640 11,379

Prepayments 12,920 34,170

Inventories 8,530 5,257

Lease incentives 6,683 6,717

Receivable from shareholders and associates 37 38

Other receivables 31,954 24,639

203,464 201,872

Prepayments included the assets under construction developed for third parties, where Schiphol Group paid the purchase price

in advance.

As in the previous year, other receivables include 19.0 million euros which Schiphol Group paid to Chipshol. See note 33 on

other provisions for further information.

25. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents were 490 million euros at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: 445.1 million euros) including

deposits of 314.4 million euros with original maturities of between five and nine months (31 December 2012: 370.0 million

euros). The average interest rate on these deposits at 31 December 2013 was 0.34% (31 December 2012: 0.52%). The cash is

discretionary.
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26. Issued share capital

The authorised share capital at 31 December 2013 was EUR 142,960,968 divided into 300,000 A shares and 14,892 B shares, with

a nominal value of 454 euros each. 171,255 of the A shares and 14,892 of the B shares have been issued. The shareholders’

interests were as follows:

(in numbers) (percentage) (in thousands of euros)

Shareholder:

State of the Netherlands 129,880 69.77% 58,966

Municipality of Amsterdam 37,276 20.03% 16,923

Aéroports de Paris 14,892 8.00% 6,761

Municipality of Rotterdam 4,099 2.20% 1,861

186,147 100% 84,511

There were no changes in the issued share capital in 2013.

27. Retained earnings

On a resolution proposed by the Management Board and approved by the Supervisory Board, the General Meeting of

Shareholders voted to declare a dividend of 108.4 million euros for 2012. This amount was deducted from retained earnings

when paid in 2013. The dividend for 2011, which amounted to 97.5 million euros, was paid out and deducted from retained

profits in 2012.

The entire net result for 2013 was added to retained earnings, which, at 31 December 2013, therefore included the proposed

dividend distribution for 2013, as detailed in the Other information section.
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28. Other reserves

(in thousands of euros)

Exchange

differences

reserve

Other

financial

interests

reserve

Hedging

transactions

reserve

Reserve other

comprehensiv

e income

Actuarial

gains and

losses Total

Balance as at 31 December 2011 21,970 - 916 - 46,346 - - 1,194 - 26,486

Movements in 2012

Exchange differences - 646 2 - - - - 644

Fair value movements - 914 - - - 914

Exchange differences on hedged borrowings - - 26,186 - - 26,186

Exchange differences on hedged loans to

associates

- - - 344 - - - 344

Fair value movements on derivative financial

instruments

- - - 113,267 - - - 113,267

Of which are reported through the profit and

loss account

- - 4,530 - - 4,530

Deferred tax on fair value movements on

derivative financial instruments

- - 27,667 - - 27,667

Deferred tax on fair value changes borrowings - - - 6,546 - - - 6,546

Settlement of hedge transactions - - - 8,940 - - - 8,940

Other comprehensive income associates - - - - 1,617 - - 1,617

Change in accounting policy - - - - - 2,000 - 2,000

Total movements in the year - 646 916 - 70,714 - 1,617 - 2,000 - 74,061

Balance as at 31 December 2012 21,324 - - 117,060 - 1,617 - 3,194 - 100,547

Movements in 2013

Exchange differences - 18,565 - - - - - 18,565

Exchange differences on hedged borrowings - - 36,763 - - 36,763

Exchange differences on hedged loans to

associates

- - - 14,110 - - - 14,110

Fair value movements on derivative financial

instruments

- - 68,445 - - 68,445

Of which are reported through the profit and

loss account

- - 4,449 - - 4,449

Deferred tax on fair value movements on

derivative financial instruments

- - - 17,151 - - - 17,151

Deferred tax on fair value changes borrowings - - - 9,244 - - - 9,244

Settlement of hedge transactions - - - 62,709 - - - 62,709

Other comprehensive income associates - - - 1,375 - 1,375

Change in accounting policy - - - - - 480 - 480

Total movements in the year - 18,565 - 6,443 1,375 - 480 - 11,227

Balance as at 31 December 2013 2,759 - - 110,617 - 242 - 3,674 - 111,774
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Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve recognises exchange differences arising on the translation of the net investments in

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates outside the euro zone.

Other financial interests reserve

This reserve recognises movements in the fair value of Schiphol Group’s other financial interests over which it has neither control

nor significant influence. In 2012 this related to the financial interest in Vienna, which is been sold.

Hedging transactions reserve

This reserve recognises movements in the fair value of derivative financial instruments used in cash flow hedges, net of deferred

tax assets and liabilities. It also includes the differences arising on the translation of loans at closing rates. In both cases,

recognition in the hedging transactions reserve requires that the hedge is determined to be highly effective.

The tax effects of the movements recognised directly in equity through total comprehensive income were as follows:

(in thousands of euros) Before tax Tax After tax

Translation differences - 18,565 - - 18,565

Changes in fair value on hedge transactions 32,991 - 26,395 6,596

Other comprehensive income associates 1,375 - 1,375

Other Comprehensive income 2013 15,801 - 26,395 - 10,594

Translation differences - 646 - - 646

Changes in fair value on hedge transactions - 91,782 21,121 - 70,661

Changes in fair value on other financial interests 914 - 914

Other comprehensive income associates - 1,617 - - 1,617

Other Comprehensive income 2012 - 93,131 21,121 - 72,010

See note 41, Equity for further information on the restrictions on the distribution of reserves.

29. Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests at 31 December 2013 represented the shares of third parties in the net assets of the group companies,

Eindhoven Airport N.V. and Avioport SpA. An abridged balance sheet for these companies is presented in Related Party

Disclosures (under ‘subsidiaries’).
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30. Borrowings

(in thousands of euros)

Year

redeemable Interest rate Currency

Nominal

value

(X 1000)

Hedging

reference 2013 2012

XS0171966269 2013 4.38% EUR 175,929 - 175,848

XS0399674216 2014 6.63% EUR 370,704 B 370,634 369,885

XS0495479555 2016 4.46% EUR 50,000 49,957 49,942

XS0459479472 2016 4.28% EUR 15,000 14,966 14,953

XS0167622454 2018 5.16% EUR 30,000 29,969 29,961

XS0459479399 2019 4.94% EUR 50,000 49,882 49,862

XS0459442710 2019 4.97% EUR 85,000 84,901 84,884

XS0621167732 2021 4.43% EUR 438,447 412,136 408,548

XS0378569247 2038 3.16% JPY 20,000,000 A 137,686 174,439

XS0983151282 2025 3.08% EUR 40,000 39,921 -

XS0997565436 2025 2.94% EUR 30,000 29,931 -

EMTN programme 1,219,983 1,358,322

Namensschuld-

verschreibung

2023 (since

2013)

5.07% EUR 25,000 24,643 - 100

XF0000NS4ET7 2016 5.38% EUR 84,000 83,858 83,789

XF0000NS4FH9 2016 5.45% EUR 40,000 39,963 39,946

XF0000NS4FX6 2016 5.16% EUR 10,000 9,991 9,987

XF0000NS4DN2 2019 5.75% EUR 50,000 49,353 49,226

XF0000NS4PP1 2019 5.50% EUR 11,000 10,843 10,813

Schuldschein 194,008 193,761

2009-0720 2031 3.95% EUR 180,000 157,500 166,500

2012-0681 2025 2.12% EUR 170,000 170,000 -

European Investment

Bank

327,500 166,500

Handelsbanken 2016 Euribor +

opslag

EUR 109,468 D,E,F,I 109,266 109,186

AREB CV loans 109,266 109,186

1922013 Annual Report



(in thousands of euros)

Year

redeemable Interest rate Currency

Nominal

value

(X 1000)

Hedging

reference 2013 2012

Avioport phase 2 2014 Euribor

+mark-up

EUR 21,750 14,395 14,395

Avioport phase 1 2014 Euribor

+mark-up

EUR 28,000 28,000 28,000

Eindhoven Airport 15,000 15,000 -

Other 2,059 16,157

Other borrowings 59,454 58,552

Total borrowings 1,934,854 1,886,220

The current portion of borrowings at 31 December 2013, of 420.4 million euros (31 December 2012: 191.5 million euros), is

recognised under current liabilities.

Schiphol Group launched a Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme in 1999, making it possible to raise funds of up to 2.0

billion euros as required, provided the prospectus is updated annually. The prospectus was updated in 2013. At year-end 2013,

borrowings under the programme totalled 1,220.0 million euros (31 December 2012: 1,358.3 million euros). Schiphol Group

could be obliged to redeem the notes early in the event of specific circumstances commonly stipulated for this type of

instrument. There was no obligation for this in 2013.

In June 2008, Schiphol Group launched a Euro Commercial Paper (ECP) programme with a limit of 750 million euros in addition

to the existing EMTN programme. On 31 December 2013, no short-term loans were outstanding under the ECP programme.

Schiphol Group has drawn a Namensschuldverschreibung (registered bond) that guarantees funding of 25 million euros from

2013 at a fixed rate of interest (5.072%).

Schiphol Group has issued Schuldschein notes (fixed-interest loans with terms of 7 and 10 years) with a nominal value of 195

million euros. In principle, the Schuldschein documentation includes the same covenants as the EMTN programme and provisions

on ‘change of control’ in combination with a ‘downgrade below investment grade’ on early redemption.

In 2010, Schiphol Group obtained a facility of 350 million euros from the European Investment Bank. In 2013 a withdrawal of

170 million euros was made , after which the maximum amount of 350 million euros has been drawn from this facility (of which

22.5 million euros has since been repaid). Schiphol Group could be obliged to redemption early if (in addition to the usual

circumstances) other loans are repaid early or equity declines below 30% of total assets. Additional collateral will be demanded

if the credit rating is BBB or lower (S&P) or Baa2 or lower (Moody’s). The loan agreement also contains a ‘change of control’

clause.

In 2013 Schiphol Group entered into a further agreement with the European Investment Bank for a facility of 200 million euros

in addition to its 350 million euros facility with the European Investment Bank. The terms of the loan are similar to those for

the 350 million euros European Investment Bank facility. This loan has not been drawn on.

Schiphol Group also entered into an agreement with KfW IPEX-Bank for a facility of 150 million euros. This loan has not been

drawn on at year end, however, commitment was entered into to draw 100 million euros in mid-January 2014. Two private

placements of 40 million euros and 30 million were made under the EMTM programme, each with a term of 12 years. 
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Borrowings under the EMTN programme, the ECP programme, the EIB facility and the KfW facility are not subordinate to other

liabilities and are eligible for voluntary early redemption.

AREB C.V. has a revolving credit facility of 195 million euros from Svenska Handelsbanken, with a remaining term of two years

and six months. To date, 179 million euros have been drawn on this facility (Schiphol Group’s proportional share amounted to

EUR 109.5 million). The loan is a mortgage and subject to mandatory early repayment if the amount of the loan exceeds 60%

of the appraised value of the financed properties. To provide collateral for the repayment, AREB C.V. has granted Svenska

Handelsbanken a pledge of the receivables relating to the leasehold and rental rights enjoyed by AREB C.V. vis-à-vis the tenants

of the properties in its portfolio at the reporting date. AREB C.V. has also pledged all existing and future rent receivables relating

to the property that are already available for pledging. Furthermore, AREB C.V. has pledged all claims and all rights derived

from insurance policies with respect to the properties.

Avioport SpA (a 70% subsidiary of Schiphol Group) has a mortgage from Banca Popolare Italiana for a total amount of EUR

49.8 million (EUR 28.0 million for phase 1 and EUR 21.8 million for phase 2) with a term to 30 June 2014. 42.4 million euros of

this mortgage had been drawn at 31 December 2013 (28.0 million euros for phase 1 and 14.4 million euros for phase 2). The

collateral for phase 1 consists of the buildings, shares and rental income, while the collateral for phase 2 is the entire project.

Schiphol Group has access to a 300 million euros syndicated and committed facility with a term to 2016. This facility has not

been drawn on. Schiphol Group also has access to a bilateral committed facility of 100 million euros with a term to 1 January

2015 agreed with Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten. This facility has also not been drawn on.

Of the total loans, 138 million euros have been drawn in Japanese yen (JPY 20 billion). In line with the financial risk management

policy, interest rate swaps, currency swaps and in some cases combined cross-currency swaps have been contracted on the loans

to hedge the risks inherent in exposure to movements in interest rates and exchange rates. In principle, the transactions

concerned correspond to all relevant characteristics of the respective loans, such as maturity and amount and hedge the

positions with respect to the euro or to either fixed or capped interest rates or both. All hedging transactions are accounted

for as cash flow hedges.
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The derivative financial instruments comprise the following contracts, with the references relating to various loans in the

analysis of borrowings.

Interest

Notional

amount Maturity Fair value in thousands of euros

Reference Counterparty Type rate Currency (x1000) date

31 December

2013 31 December 2012

A JPMorgan Currency

swap

3.16% JPY 20,000,000 2038 - 1,668 - 22,851

RBS Rate swap 4.03% EUR 370,000 2024 - 74,612

B RBS Rate swap 4.03% EUR 200,000 2024 33,429 -

JPMorgan Rate swap 3.93% EUR 150,000 2023 - 31,217

C SHB Rate swap 3.02% EUR 24,461 2017 1,787 2,543

D SHB Rate swap 2.90% EUR 24,461 2017 1,702 2,429

E SHB Rate swap 3.47% EUR 24,461 2016 2,115 2,988

BPL Rate swap 4.32% EUR 21,000 2013 - 682

F RBS Forward n.a. AUD 99,200 2014 - 13,017 -

JPMorgan Forward n.a. AUD 116,500 2013 - 903

G SHB Rate swap 0.80% EUR 35,469 2016 223 493

Total 24,571 93,016

Recognised in the balance sheet under:

Non-current assets - 1,668 - 22,851

Current assets - 13,017 -

Non-current liabilities 5,827 114,281

Current liabilities 33,429 1,586

24,571 93,016

Schiphol Group’s risk in respect of the cross-currency swap (reference A) is mitigated by a cash collateral agreement with

JPMorgan which results in a maximum net position for both parties that depends on the parties’ credit rating. If the credit

rating of either party is reduced, the maximum net position for that party will also decrease. Under the cash collateral

agreement, the difference between the market value of the swap and the applicable maximum net position is paid weekly

through the bank.

At 31 December 2013, the maximum net position of both parties amounted to 10 million euros (10 million euros at 31 December

2012) while the market value of the swap was approximately 1.67 million euros (22.9 million euros at 31 December 2012) in

Schiphol Group’s favour. At 31 December 2013 JPMorgan paid Schiphol Group 0 million euros (27.0 million euros at 31 December

2012) by way of collateral.

References B relates to a forward-starting interest-rate swap which principally fix the interest rates at which outstanding EMTN

loans can be refinanced in 2014.

In 2013, a forward-starting interest rate swap of EUR 150 million was unwound and the forward-starting interest rate swap in

reference B was partly unwound from its original amount of EUR 370 million to 200 million euros.
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References C, D, E and G relate to four interest-rate swaps which fix almost all of the interest rates on AREB C.V.’s funding.

Reference H relates to the derivative financial instrument for hedging the translation differences on the Redeemable Preference

Shares recognised as loans to associates.

The interest rates shown against the various currency, interest-rate and cross-currency swaps are the fixed rates at which interest

is payable to the counterparty, for which interest at the variable (or fixed) rate that Schiphol Group in turn has to pay on the

loans concerned is receivable from the counterparty.

The remaining terms of the borrowings at 31 December 2013 are as follows. The portion of the borrowings due within one

year is recognised under current liabilities.

(in thousands of euros) Total <= 1 year > 1 year

> 1 year but <= 5

years > 5 years

EMTN programme 1,219,983 366,950 853,033 80,334 772,699

Namensschuldverschreibung 24,643 - 39 24,682 - 155 24,837

Schuldschein 194,008 - 247 194,255 133,275 60,980

European Investment Bank 327,500 9,000 318,500 36,000 282,500

KfW - 375 - 188 - 187 - 150 - 37

AREB CV borrowings 109,266 - 109,266 109,266 -

Other borrowings 59,829 42,770 17,059 17,210 - 151

Total borrowings 1,934,854 418,246 1,516,608 375,780 1,140,828

The total carrying amount of the borrowings (at amortised cost) has the following fair value analysis:

(in thousands of euros)

Carrying amount as at

31 December 2013

Fair value as at

31 December 2013

EMTN programme 1,219,983 1,362,652

Namensschuldverschreibung 24,643 29,663

Schuldschein 194,008 219,194

European Investment Bank 327,500 325,107

KfW - 375 -

AREB CV borrowings 109,266 115,426

Other borrowings 59,829 42,592

Total borrowings 1,934,854 2,094,634

(in thousands of euros)

Carrying amount as at

31 December 2012

Fair value as at

31 December 2013

EMTN programme 1,358,322 1,557,861

Namensschuldverschreibung - 100 3,440

Schuldschein 193,761 242,042

European Investment Bank 166,500 204,999
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(in thousands of euros)

Carrying amount as at

31 December 2012

Fair value as at

31 December 2013

AREB CV borrowings 109,186 115,282

Other borrowings 58,552 58,552

Total borrowings 1,886,221 2,182,176

Fair value is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows using the current market interest rates available to the

borrower for similar financial instruments. The movements in borrowings during the year were as follows:

(in thousands of euros) Borrowings > 1 year Borrowings <= 1 year Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 1,773,877 101,834 1,875,711

Movements in 2012

New borrowings 126,651 - 126,651

Accrued interest 78 - 78

Transferred to current liabilities - 184,613 184,613 -

Repayments - - 94,937 - 94,937

Exchange differences - 26,186 - - 26,186

Other movements 4,904 - 4,904

Total movements in the year - 79,166 89,676 10,510

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 1,694,711 191,510 1,886,221

Movements in 2012

New borrowings 271,758 - 271,758

Transferred to current liabilities - 419,802 419,802 -

Repayments - - 191,664 - 191,664

Exchange differences - 36,763 - - 36,763

Other movements 4,555 747 5,302

Total movements in the year - 180,252 228,885 48,633

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 1,514,459 420,395 1,934,854

Schiphol Group’s financial instruments comprise the borrowings and derivative financial instruments described in this note as

well as the loans to associates (note 20), loans (note 21), trade and other receivables (note 24), cash and cash equivalents (note

25), a number of items in other non-current liabilities (note 34) and trade and other payables (note 36).
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31. Lease liabilities

(in thousands of euros) Counterparty

Effective interest

rate

Expiry date of

lease 2013 2012

The Base ABP 7.0% 2034 50,396 51,559

Cars PON 5.3% 2017 6,749 4,148

Other - 840

Total lease liabilities 57,145 56,547

The current portion of the lease liabilities at 31 December 2013, amounting to 3.2 million euros (31 December 2012: 2.5 million

euros), is presented under current liabilities.

The The Base office building lease with ABP runs for 40 years, with options to cancel after 25 years and 30 years. If the lease is

cancelled before the end of the 40-year period, Schiphol Group will be liable to pay a lump sum and penalty interest, with the

buildings becoming the property of Schiphol Group. The rent is increased annually in line with the consumer price index. The

leasehold of the land on which the Triport buildings stand has been granted to ABP for the duration of the lease.

The remaining terms of the lease liabilities at 31 December 2013 were as follows:

Total <= 1 year > 1 year > 1 year en > 5 years

(in thousands of euros) <= 5 years

The Base 50,396 1,243 49,153 5,892 43,261

Cars 6,749 1,938 4,811 4,811 -

Carrying amount of finance lease

liabilities

57,145 3,181 53,964 10,703 43,261
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The movements in the lease liabilities during the year were as follows:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Carrying amount as at 1 January 56,547 58,511

Movements in the year

Accrued interest on lease liabilities 4,463 4,290

Lease instalments paid - 7,356 - 8,363

Lease settlement - - 2,123

Finance lease-Investments 3,491 4,232

Total movements in the year 598 - 1,964

Carrying amount as at 31 December 57,145 56,547

32. Employee benefits

(in thousands of euros)

Post-employment

benefits

Other long-term

employee benefits

Termination

benefits Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012

Present value of benefit obligation 24,438 10,263 1,798 36,499

Fair value of plan assets 2,830 - - 2,830

Benefit liability in the balance sheet 21,608 10,263 1,798 33,669

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013

Present value of benefit obligation 23,211 12,188 3,051 38,450

Fair value of plan assets 2,976 - - 2,976

Benefit Liability in the balance sheet 20,235 12,188 3,051 35,474

Post-employment benefits consist of pension plans, job-related early retirement benefits, payment of healthcare insurance costs

for pensioners and supplementary disability benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits consist of long-service awards, long-term variable pay, paid sabbatical leave and disability

benefit supplements.

Termination benefits consist of redundancy pay, special early retirement benefits and unemployment benefit supplements

other than those included in the provision relating to the restructuring.

The defined-benefit pension plan which ABP administers on Schiphol Group’s behalf is recognised as a defined contribution

scheme. See note 37 for further information on this plan.

The pension plans of a number of subsidiaries that qualify as defined-benefit plans are recognised as such. Movements in the

value of the benefit obligations and plan assets and the unrecognised actuarial gains and losses on these plans in recent years

were:
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(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Carrying amount as at 31

December

Present value of benefit obligation 3,256 3,026 11,964 10,780 18,904

Fair value of plan assets 2,976 2,830 10,475 9,253 14,645

280 196 1,489 1,527 4,259

Unrecognised actuarial gains and losses - - - 1,527 - 1,615 - 3,139

Liability in the balance sheet 280 196 - 38 - 88 1,120

The Schiphol Telematics pension plan has been administered by ABP since 2012. The various employee benefits gave rise to the

following net benefit expense in the year:

(in thousands of euros)

Post-employment

benefits

Other long-term

employee benefits

Termination

benefits Total

Current service cost 876 1,701 2,105 4,682

Interest cost on benefit obligation 1,418 300 28 1,746

Net actuarial gain/loss recognised in the year - - - -

Expected return on plan assets - 88 - - - 88

Other costs - - 150 - - 150

Total expense in 2012 recognised in P&L 2,206 1,851 2,133 6,190

Actuarial gains and losses recognised in other

comprehensive income

1,985 - 15 2,000

Total net benefit expense in 2012 4,191 1,851 2,148 8,190

Current service cost 758 3,417 4,033 8,208

Interest cost on benefit obligation 622 210 - 832

Other costs 19 - - 19

Total expense in 2013 recognised in P&L 1,399 3,627 4,033 9,059

Actuarial gains and losses recognised in other

comprehensive income

605 - 125 - 480

Total net benefit expense in 2013 2,004 3,502 4,033 9,539
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No expense is expected for the defined-benefit pension plans under post-employment benefits for Schiphol Group in 2013. The

actual expenses under these plans in 2013 amounted to 0.1 million euros, as explained in note 5 on employee benefits.

The movements in employee benefit liabilities during the year were as follows:

(in thousands of euros)

Post-employment

benefits

Other long-term

employee benefits

Termination

benefits Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 22,243 10,229 1,915 34,387

Movements in 2012

Total net benefit expense for the year 4,191 1,851 2,148 8,190

Benefits paid during the year - 3,808 - 2,048 - 1,116 - 6,972

Payment of contributions - 730 - - 137 - 867

Changes in the consolidation - 288 - - 1,020 - 1,308

Other movements - 231 8 239

Total movements in the year - 635 34 - 117 - 718

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 21,608 10,263 1,798 33,669

Movements in 2013

Total net benefit expense for the year 2,004 3,502 4,033 9,539

Benefits paid during the year - 3,236 - 1,308 - 2,773 - 7,317

Payment of contributions - 141 - 284 - - 425

Changes in the consolidation - 70 - 214 - 123 - 407

Other movements 70 229 116 415

Total movements in the year - 1,373 1,925 1,253 1,805

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 20,235 12,188 3,051 35,474

The employee benefit liabilities have been calculated using the following actuarial assumptions and on management estimates:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Discount rate 3.00% 3.25%

Return on plan assets 3.00% 3.25%

Inflation 2.00% 2.00%

General pay increase 2.00% 2.00%

Life expectancy Forecast table 2062 with

adjustment factors geared to the

company’s average salary level

Forecast table 2062 with adjustment

factors geared to the company’s

average salary level

Individual pay rises, depending on age 4.00% (to age 39), 3.00% (age

40-49), 2.00% (age 50-59), 2.00%

(age 60-65)

4.00% (to age 39), 3.00% (age 40-49),

2.00% (age 50-59), 2.00% (age 60-65)

Age difference Men 3 years older than female

partners

Men 3 years older than female partners
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31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Incapacity risk UKV 2010, based on inflow 2006

to 2011

UKV 2010, based on inflow 2006 to

2009

Termination probability, depending on age 0.10% (age 60) to 4.20% (age 25) 0.10% (age 60) to 4.20% (age 25)

Continued service probability (job-related early

retirement scheme)

100% 100%

See the contingent assets and liabilities note for further information on the obligations under the pension plan insured with

ABP.

Change in discount rate change in inflation change in survival rate

year longer year shorter

Discount rate 3.00% 3.25% 2.75% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Inflation 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.25% 1.75% 2.00% 2.00%

Job-related early retirement

scheme Schiphol Group

19,243 18,772 19,739 19,464 19,039 19,216 19,265

Long-service 6,716 6,601 6,835 6,837 6,598 6,700 6,730

Redundancy pay 414 412 416 416 412 414 415

Total 26,373 25,785 26,990 26,717 26,049 26,330 26,410

Employed Retired Total

Job-related early retirement scheme Schiphol Group 11,010 8,233 19,243

Long-service 6,716 - 6,716

Redundancy pay - 414 414

Total 17,726 8,647 26,373

33. Other provisions

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Carrying amount as at 1 January 13,509 17,927

Movements in the year

Withdrawals during the year - 2,003 - 4,418

Total movements in the year - 2,852 - 4,418

Carrying amount as at 31 December 10,657 13,509

The remaining provision for the 2009 restructuring was 0.6 million euros at 31 December 2013. The movements during 2013

related to this provision.
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Schiphol Group faces liabilities in connection with certain other claims and disputes. The overall provision of 10.0 million euros

recognised for these claims and disputes was unchanged in 2013, as in 2012. The most significant claims concern the

consequences of the ban on the development of the Groenenberg site in place from 19 February 2003 to 28 June 2007.

Based on the insights available in 2003, Chipshol’s development of the Groenenberg site could have seriously compromised the

use of Runway 18L–36R and consequently, in February 2003, the state secretary for Transport, Public Works and Water

Management (now Infrastructure and Environment) prohibited development of this site under the provisions of Section 38 of

the old Aviation Act. The prohibition was in effect until 2007. In June 2003, the beneficial owner of the site (Chipshol) filed a

claim for compensation.

In its final decision of 30 January 2008, the Court in Haarlem, by virtue of Section 50 of the Aviation Act, set the compensation

that Schiphol Group should pay to Chipshol at 16.0 million euros (to be increased by statutory interest). To comply with an

interim judgement, Schiphol Group paid Chipshol a sum of 19.0 million euros (16.0 million euros plus interest) by way of an

advance payment on the final compensation. To cover the risk of having to refund this amount, Chipshol had to issue a bank

guarantee of 21.5 million euros in favour of Schiphol Group. On 19 February 2010, the Supreme Court pronounced judgment

on the appeals by both parties, ruling that the final decision of the Court in Haarlem of 30 January 2008 could not be upheld.

The correct amount of the compensation would be determined by the Amsterdam Court of Appeal. On 27 December 2011, the

Amsterdam Court of Appeal issued an interlocutory ruling in which it more precisely described the instruction of the Supreme

Court to further examine the most important outstanding judicial issues and answered a number of questions.

The appeals of the parties in Schiphol’s counterclaim against Chipshol (Section 55 of the Aviation Act), judged in parallel with

Section 50 of the Aviation Act, were decided by the Supreme Court on 22 February 2013. The Supreme Court ruled in line with

its earlier judgement. In brief, the highest court in the land ruled that the dispute on the amount of compensation should be

decided in a single case by the Court in Amsterdam. In addition, the complaint that Chipshol submitted to the ACM against

Schiphol in 2012 claiming abuse of a dominant market position in the property sector was, after extensive investigation, rejected

by the authority. Chipshol’s appeal against this rejection in the Court in Rotterdam was also unsuccessful, being dismissed as

wholly unfounded on 21 November 2013. Chipshol has since registered an appeal with Trade and Industry Appeals Tribunal.

In the case in the Court in Amsterdam, the court will rule on the following stages of the proceedings. Schiphol Group has

received notice from American lawyers acting for Chipshol of possible legal proceedings in the United States of America.

Schiphol Group sees no grounds for legal proceedings in the United States of America. 

In view of this, the Management Board is of the opinion that no adjustment is required to the estimate it made of Schiphol

Group’s net liabilities towards Chipshol. The Board does not expect that the remaining amount of the compensation which

Schiphol Group will eventually have to pay to Chipshol with regard to the Groenenberg site or other claims will exceed the

provision formed for this.
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34. Other non-current liabilities

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Purchased long leases 87,949 89,601

Unrealised profit on contribution in kind Schiphol Logistics Park CV 3,646 3,646

Lease incentives 2,431 2,804

Other movements 12,666 6,653

106,692 102,704

Long leases received in advance are rent instalments which Schiphol Group has received in advance on land leased out to third

parties on a long lease. This item is recognised through profit or loss over the term of the underlying contracts.

In 2006, Schiphol Real Estate B.V. contributed land to Schiphol Logistics Park C.V. and in so doing acquired a 38% interest in

this company. The difference between the fair value of the site at the time of its contribution of 23.7 million euros and its total

historical cost of 11.7 million euros is 12 million euros. In accordance with the accounting policies, 38% of this profit,

representing Schiphol Real Estate B.V.’s share in Schiphol Logistics Park C.V., or 4.6 million euros, should be treated as unrealised.

Part of this profit was realised when some of the land was sold in 2009.

Lease incentives are the cost of benefits which Schiphol Group granted tenants at the start of their lease and recognised through

profit or loss over the period during which they apply.

35. Income tax

The income tax liability is calculated on the profit for reporting purposes, allowing for permanent differences between the

profit as calculated for reporting purposes and for tax purposes. The income tax liability on fair value gains and losses which

are not processed immediately in the income tax return is recognised in deferred tax assets and liabilities. The income tax

receivable of 11.2 million euros recognised in the balance sheet at 31 December 2013 concerns the income tax receivable in

respect of the years 2010 to 2013 net of provisional assessments already paid for those years for the amount of 2.7 milion euros.

An amount of 8.5 miljoen euros refers to a one-off tax gain, which covers several years and is explained in section 11.

The provisional 2011 income tax return for the N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol fiscal unity has been discussed with the tax inspector

and recognised accordingly in these financial statements. The final income tax returns for 2010 and 2011 have been determined

and recognised in these financial statements. The income tax returns for 2012 and 2013 have not yet been filed and may

potentially result in reclassification of existing short-term income tax liabilities to deferred tax liabilities.

Differences between the income tax paid according to the cash flow statement and the income tax recognised in the income

statement concern additions to and withdrawals from deferred tax assets and liabilities, estimation differences between taxable

amounts in provisional and final tax assessments and settlements in respect of previous years.
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36. Trade and other payables

(in thousands of euros) 2012 2011

Trade payables 102,986 108,379

Payable in respect of wage tax and social security contributions 5,624 6,859

Payable in respect of pensions 604 2,545

Interest payable 59,070 58,902

Accruals 93,996 86,256

Deferred income 42,769 39,729

Purchased long leases 90 1,801

Lease incentives 6,577 3,974

Other payables 8,192 40,427

319,908 348,872

The collateral of approximately 27.0 million euros paid up under the cash collateral agreement with JPMorgan was recognised

under ‘other payables’ at 31 December 2012.

Trade and other payables are recognised at fair value, which is usually the face value.

37. Contingent assets and liabilities

Pension plan

Schiphol Group’s pension plan is administered by ABP and qualifies as a defined-benefit plan. This means that Schiphol Group

should recognise its share of the present value of the defined-benefit obligation, plan assets and income and expenses arising

out of the plan and make the related disclosures. ABP is currently not in a position to supply Schiphol Group with the information

necessary to treat the pension plan as a defined-benefit plan as there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the benefit

obligations, plan assets and costs of the ABP plan to individual affiliated employers participating in the plan. Consequently,

the plan is recognised as a defined-contribution plan. Schiphol Group recognises the pension contributions payable to ABP as

an expense in the income statement.

The ABP pension regulations do not contain provisions on additional contributions to the fund or withdrawals from it in respect

of Schiphol Group’s share in surpluses or deficits of the pension fund. Consequently, any surpluses and deficits will only result

in changes in the amount of the contributions payable by Schiphol Group in the future and these will depend on the actual

and expected financial position of the pension fund as reflected in the funding ratio. ABP’s funding ratio was 105.9% at 31

December 2013 .

Covenants on the future development of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol

The Alders Platform was created in December 2006 and is a consultative forum presided over by Mr Hans Alders to advise the

Government on balancing the requirements of aviation growth at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol, disturbance reduction and local

environmental quality in the medium term (to 2020). All relevant parties are represented in the Alders Platform: the State (the

ministry of Infrastructure and the Environment), aviation parties (Schiphol Group, Air Traffic Control the Netherlands (LVNL)

and KLM), a number of regional and local authorities (the provinces of North-Holland and South-Holland, the municipalities

of Haarlemmermeer, Amstelveen, Uitgeest and Amsterdam) which form the Schiphol Regional Airport Governance Group (BRS),

residents living in the vicinity of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol via the Schiphol Regional Consultative Committee (CROS), and

the Association of Joint Platforms (VGP). The Alders Platform presented its recommendations for the medium term on 1 October

2008 since when the parties involved have been implementing the agreements. Progress is discussed within the Alders Platform

at least twice a year. The details have been set out in three covenants ‘Local environmental quality in the medium term’,
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‘Disturbance reduction and development of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol in the medium term’ and ‘Maintaining and

strengthening the mainport function and network quality’.

A two-year experiment with a new noise reduction scheme for Amsterdam Airport Schiphol started on 1 November 2010 with

the aim of maintaining the network of connections at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol while providing equal or better protection

to the local community. In addition, the scheme should not be complicated and be easy to explain. During the experiment, the

present scheme of threshold values at measurement points will remain in force.

In October 2013, agreement was reached with the Alders Platform on the new noise reduction scheme for Amsterdam Airport

Schiphol and Mr Alders presented his recommendations to the state secretary for Infrastructure and Environment, Wilma

Mansveld, on 8 October 2013. The new scheme is based on rules for runway usage:

• an order of preference has been set for which runways to use for landings and takeoffs;
• the runways that cause inconvenience to the fewest people will be used according to weather conditions;
• runways will be used simultaneously as little as possible.

The Alders recommendations of October 2013 also included the first four-year evaluation of the Alders agreements and related

covenants.

Covenant on local environmental quality in the medium term

The arrangements to be made under this covenant concern area-specific projects (improvement of the quality of the local

environment in particular areas), individual measures (mitigation in individual cases of noise-related distress) and generic

arrangements. Schiphol Group provided 10 million euros for the first tranche (charged to the financial year 2006) for the near

term to 2010, earmarked exclusively for the funding of individual measures in distress cases. The State and the province of

North-Holland also provided 10 million euros each. A second tranche was committed in the Alders recommendations of October

2013 in connection with which Schiphol Group is again making 10 million euros available. It has been agreed that, before this

second phase is implemented, the parties will discuss their experiences from the first phase to determine how to enhance the

quality of life in the surrounding areas most effectively and the programmes to be deployed. Schiphol’s contribution in the

second tranche will again focus primarily on cases of distress, but contributions to area-specific projects in the most affected

nearby areas are not excluded in advance. Details of the way the second tranche will be used will be developed and set out in

a new covenant in 2014.

Covenant on disturbance reduction and development of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol in the medium term

This covenant includes arrangements on subjects such as traffic volume and selectiveness (a maximum of 580,000 air transport

movements per annum, of which 70,000 elsewhere), operations and runway usage, and a new system of threshold values and

enforcement. With regard to disturbance reduction, Schiphol Group specifically undertakes, on its own or in collaboration with

others, to take measures restricting ground-noise levels (noise barriers to the southwest of the Runway 18R-36L), discourage

operations with ‘bottom Chapter 3’ aircraft (marginally conforming aircraft), set objective criteria for prioritising the installation

of new NOMOS noise monitoring points and provide insight into the current quality assurance of the NOMOS system, develop

an environmental simulator providing insight into ground noise perception, and extend the provision of information via the

Local Community Contact Centre Schiphol (Bas). To date, the majority of the arrangements have been complied with and so

this covenant will be included in the broader evaluation of the Alders Accord. The Alders Platform decided in October 2012 to

vary the details of the Continuous Descent Approach (CDA) arrangements, including a reduction in night flights from 32,000

to 29,000 over a period of three years as a compensating measure until the original ones can be met.
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Covenant on maintaining and strengthening the mainport function and network quality

In line with the agreements made in the Alders Platform, the parties are making every effort to ensure that total additional

capacity of around 70,000 air transport movements at the regional airports can be used. The Alders Platforms for Eindhoven

and Lelystad airports agreed in 2010 and 2012 respectively that the capacity required for this (25,000 movements at Eindhoven

Airport and 45,000 at Lelystad Airport) can be created. In 2013, Schiphol Group announced that it wanted to develop Lelystad

Airport. A Memorandum on Scope and Level of Detail was prepared for the Environmental Impact Report as part of the

application for the airport decree. A number of steps were also taken on airside arrangements for the air traffic foreseen for

Lelystad. This should lead to an airport decree and related route decree for Lelystad in 2014, thus creating the legal basis for

the further development of Lelystad Airport.

Water remediation plan

To improve the quality of the surface water in the long term, Remediation Plan Part 4 has been drawn up to reduce the harmful

effects of liquids used in winter operations (glycol for aircraft de-icing and potassium formate for keeping the runways clear

of ice and snow). This plan consists of a programme of measures and investment focusing on source-reducing measures and

capital expenditure on sweeping and suction equipment to capture run-off from runways and aircraft stands. Remediation Plan

Part 4 has been drawn up over recent years in close co-ordination with the Rijnland Water Board, which gave its final approval

in June 2013. The plan will be phased in over the next few years. The current estimate is that Schiphol Group will invest 2 million

euros on a range of assets over the next two years.

Nitrogen dioxide offset

The amended Airport Traffic Ruling (Luchtverkeersbesluit, LVB)  came into force in 2010. It is geared towards managing the

environmental impact of air traffic to and from Amsterdam Airport Schiphol and includes measures which will offset the

expected increase in nitrogen dioxide concentrations. The amended ruling requires Schiphol Group to install fixed power points

and preconditioned air units at fifteen or sixteen aircraft stands annually from 2010. A total of 61 aircraft stands with an

electricity supply have been available since the end of 2013 and so Schiphol has honoured the agreements made in 2010. A

further three aircraft stands will be equipped during 2014, bringing the total to 64. The current estimate is that Schiphol Group

will have to invest a further 0.7 million euros to install this infrastructure in the coming year.

Airport charges

As a result of incorrect reports and differences in load figures, KLM believes it has suffered an adverse financial effect of 5.5

million euros since 2010, which it is claiming back from Schiphol. Schiphol believes that these differences have been identified

and documented several times and it has reported this repeatedly to KLM. Schiphol is of the opinion that a refund of 2.2 million

euros is due under the applicable charges, terms and conditions. A liability for this amount has been recognised in the financial

statements in 2013 and the remainder of the claim has been rejected by Schiphol. KLM is maintaining its claim.

easyJet submitted a complaint to the Netherlands Competition Authority (NCA) with respect to the differentiation between

fees for transfer and O&D passengers in the 2009 charges, terms and conditions. The NCA rejected easyJet’s complaint in April

2009. The Court in Rotterdam rejected easyJet’s appeal against this. easyJet then appealed to the European Commission which

rejected it on the grounds that the NCA had already ruled on the complaint. In July 2013, easyJet appealed against the European

Commission’s decision at the European Court of Justice. Although Schiphol is not directly involved in the case, it has been

permitted to intervene as an interested party.

The possible financial effect cannot be estimated and any financial effect will depend on the outcome of this case. As the case

is still pending with no initial indication from the European Court of Justice, its outcome is uncertain.

Charges for 2015

During the consultation process in 2013, Schiphol provided an indication of the charges for 2015. The indication is for an average

increase of 1% in charges, to be revised for the effect of and changes in traffic, the additional cost of the liquids aerosols and

gels (LAGs) security measures and possible further adjustments to be discussed during the consultations in 2014.
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Border Control Reform (No-Q)

In mid-2009, Schiphol Group and the Immigration and Naturalisation Service (IND) of the ministry of Justice decided to launch

a joint Border Management Reform programme, as part of their ongoing cooperation in the area of safety and security at

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol. The aim of the programme is designed to help increase safety and improve the quality and speed

of services by creating an effective and efficient border control process involving the greatest possible use of intelligence-driven

action, based on information about passengers and their baggage received in advance, and the application of new automatic

border control concepts. Schiphol Group and the IND have committed one-off financial contributions to the programme of up

to 16.5 million euros and 10 million euros respectively for the development and application of a new automatic border control

concept currently being investigated and developed in the No-Q project. Schiphol Group reached agreement at with IND the

end of 2012 for the period from 2012 to 2015 which put all of the initial arrangements into practice.

Contamination by extinguishing water

In July 2008, the Rijnland Water Board collected contaminated extinguishing water released during an incident at a KLM hangar

in Schiphol Southeast and stored it in reservoirs made available by Schiphol. The Water Board had been granted a permit for

this by the province of North-Holland. Although the contaminated extinguishing water was removed and decontaminated in

2009, it was later discovered that the soil and groundwater around the reservoirs had been contaminated. As the owner of the

land concerned, Schiphol Group suffered damage as a result. The Water Board removed the sludge from the reservoirs in 2011,

as a result of which no further contamination is taking place through the soil. The Water Board, KLM and Schiphol are now

working together to take control measures aimed at preventing the further spread of contamination through groundwater.

The contaminated reservoirs will ultimately have to be cleaned up. A study will be carried out in 2013 to determine the method

to be used.

The watercourses at Schiphol that were contaminated during this incident will be cleaned up within the framework of the

regular dredging programme. The most heavily contaminated locations close to the hangar will be accorded priority. The

additional costs incurred on top of the regular dredging programme for the transport and processing of the contaminated

material will be charged to KLM. Evides, a water decontamination company, is taking measures in consultation with the

municipality of Haarlemmermeer to deal with the technical facilities that were also contaminated by this incident.

Covenant to reduce the risk of bird strikes at Schiphol

On 16 April 2012, Schiphol and the Dutch Airline Pilots Association, Natural Monuments, State Forest and landscape Northern

Holland (nature conservancy organisations), the Netherlands Horticultural and Agricultural Organisation, municipality of

Haarlemmermeer, provinces of North-Holland, South-Holland and Utrecht, and the State signed a covenant on reducing the

risk of bird strikes at Schiphol. The parties committed to implement the covenant and participate in the Netherlands Control

Group for Bird Strikes (NRV). The aim of the covenant is to reduce the risk of collisions between birds, especially geese, and

aircraft in the area around Schiphol each year. The Control Group has a four-track plan for achieving the aims of the covenant.

The four tracks are 1) population management, 2) crop adjustment, 3) adaptation of surrounding wetlands and 4) technology.

Working closely with LVNL and KLM, Schiphol Group is responsible for developing the technology track. The cost of the various

measures will be allocated fairly and reasonably among the parties. Financing the measures is a joint responsibility. Schiphol

will pay the costs of the bird detection system and of monitoring bird strikes and near misses.

Other contingent assets and liabilities

The company is committed to contributing 0.5 million euros to the Schiphol Fund. A bank guarantee amounting to 2.3 million

euros relating to payment commitments connected with the ‘Storage in Underground Tanks’ order has been given to the

province of North-Holland.

Schiphol Group had a liability of 8.3 million euros in connection with the cash collateral with JPMorgan, for the difference

between the liability in the balance sheet and the amount received as collateral.
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Various other claims have been filed against N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol and/or its group companies, and there are disputes which

have still to be settled. All claims and disputes are being contested and the company has taken legal advice on them. However,

as it is impossible to predict the outcomes with any certainty it is not yet clear whether any of the cases will result in actual

liabilities for the company and/or its group companies. Accordingly, no provisions have been recognised in the balance sheet

in respect of these claims and disputes.

The company has also brought claims against third parties and has disputes pending in which it is claimant. Since it is not yet

clear whether these cases will be resolved in the company’s favour, no related receivables have been recognised in the balance

sheet.
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Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

38. Cash flow from operations

(in thousands of euros) 2012 2011

Result 223,819 196,438

Corporate income tax 54,110 57,438

Share in result of associates - 52,053 - 45,464

Financial income and expenses 94,822 88,082

96,880 100,056

Operating result 320,698 296,494

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 248,414 214,897

Impairment 17,410 22,741

Result on sales of property - 181 - 11,513

Costs related to sales of property - - 448

Fair value gains and losses on property - 2,545 24,021

Other non cash changes other receivables and liabilities 7,114 19,435

Result on disposal of assets - 280 - 18

Change in other provisions and employee benefits - 1,543 - 7,171

268,387 261,944

Operating result after adjustments 589,086 558,438

Changes in working capital - 25,052 - 76,267

Cash flow from operations 564,033 482,171

Events after the balance sheet date

Schiphol Group intends to acquire the remaining shares in AREB C.V. from the other shareholders. This transaction is expected

to take place in the first half of 2014.
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Related parties

Shareholders

The shareholders are:

State of the Netherlands 69.77%

Municipality of Amsterdam 20.03%

Aéroports de Paris S.A. 8.00%

Municipality of Rotterdam 2.20%

Dividend policy

The dividend is 60% of the net result excluding gains and losses on investment property after tax. This is temporarily increase

from the normal payout ratio of 50%.

Related parties

Schiphol Group maintains a significant banking relationship with ABN AMRO N.V. and relationships with joint ventures,

associates and the parties involved in the pension plans.

Operation of the airport

In its legislative capacity, the government (State of the Netherlands) is responsible for the legislation governing the operation

of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol, which is provided for indefinitely in law in Chapter 8, Part 4 of the Aviation Act and other

legislation.

Sections 8.7 and 8.17 of the Aviation Act impose constraints on the development and use of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol. The

Airport Traffic Decree lays down rules for airport use and stipulates limits for noise levels, air pollution and risks to public safety.

The Airport Planning Decree defines the airport zone and the restrictions governing the use of the area in and around the

airport.

Pursuant to Section 8.18 of the Aviation Act, the operator is under obligation to keep the airport open in accordance with the

rules laid down in the Airport Traffic Decree. The operator may ignore this requirement if necessary in the interests of safety.

The airport operator together with the provider of air traffic services and the airlines is required to promote the smooth

operation of air traffic in accordance with the Airport Traffic Decree.

Pursuant to Section 8.25a of the Aviation Act, the operator of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol is under obligation to operate the

airport, making such provisions as are necessary for the proper handling of the airport traffic and the associated transport of

persons and goods, having due regard to the provisions of Section 8.3 of the Aviation Act with the objective of achieving

sustainable growth of Schiphol as a Main Port. This concerns key elements of the services provided by an airport, such as the

runway system, baggage system, aircraft parking aprons, terminal building, piers, gates etc.

Airport operation imposes a duty of care on the operator to record threats to public safety and the environmental impact

associated with air traffic. In that context, the operator is required to make the measurements and computations necessary in

order to maintain such records.

Chapter 3A of the Aviation Act imposes obligations on the operator with regard to airport safety as specified in Section

37b–e.
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Chapter 6 of the Aviation Supervision Rules requires the operator to take certain precautions with regard to the safety of the

airfield such as marking of obstacles, installation of airfield lighting, provision of fire services and general maintenance of the

airfield. In that context, the operator is under obligation to take measures to ensure effective supervision of safety and good

order on the airfield. For this purpose, the operator has set up a safety management system which has been certified by the

authorities.

Supervision of operation

There are two lines of supervision of the operation of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol.

• One line of supervision concerns preventing of abuse a position of economic strength by the operator. The body responsible
for this supervision is the ACM Office of Transport Regulation. The supervision relates to the charges and conditions fixed by
the operator pursuant to Section 8.25d of the Aviation Act to be met by the airport users in the forthcoming year. The charges
are regulated on the basis of a mandatory annual consultation of users by the operator concerning the proposed charges
and conditions for the forthcoming year. When making its proposal, the operator provides the users with a statement of the
level of service to be provided as measured by the indicators stipulated in the Amsterdam Airport Schiphol Operation Decree.
The ACM Office of Transport Regulation exercises supervision on the basis of complaints from users on whether the charges
have been arrived at in accordance with the statutory requirements. By law, the charges for all airport activities have to be
transparent. This also applies to the revenue from activities that are directly associated with the aviation activities at the
airport that are factored into the charges. For this purpose, the operator is required to keep separate accounts for the airport
activities, including subaccounts for the costs of security relating to passengers and their baggage and the revenue generated
by security charges. For the income and expenses of these activities, the operator has implemented an industry-standard
allocation system that is proportionate and comprehensive. The ACM Office of Transport Regulation, after consulting the
airlines, approved the allocation system in 2010.

• The other line of supervision involves the ministry of Infrastructure and the Environment and relates to the operation of
Amsterdam Airport Schiphol, for which a licence has been granted pursuant to Section 8.25 of the Aviation Act. The operator
reports to the minister on the operation of the airport at least once every three years, with special reference to capital
expenditure that is important to the development of the airport. This report was issued for the first time in 2008 and again
in 2011. Based on information obtained from the operator, the minister makes an assessment of whether the airport is being
mismanaged in a way which could jeopardise its continuity. The ability to foster the mainport status of the airport, to the
extent that the operator is able to influence that status, is particularly dependent on the development of the airport
infrastructure in the medium and long term.

The Aviation Act also provides for the exchange of information between the two regulators to avoid the need for the operator

to provide the same information more than once.
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Supervisory Board

The disclosure of the remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board required by Section 2:383c of the Netherlands Civil

Code is as follows:

(in euros) 2013 2012

Anthony Ruys 41,500 41,500

Trude A. Maas-de Brouwer 39,000 39,000

Jan G.B. Brouwer 35,000 29,500

Frans J.G.M. Cremers 35,000 35,000

Herman J. Hazewinkel 35,000 35,000

Augustin de Romanet de Beaune - -

Margot. A. Scheltema 34,000 31,500

Willem F.C. Stevens - 12,000

Joop G. Wijn 32,750 15,875

Total 252,250 239,375

The Supervisory Board Chairman’s remuneration is 36,500 euros per annum. The other members receive fees of 24,000 euros

per annum. In addition to the above remuneration, membership of a Supervisory Board committee confers the right to

supplementary remuneration. Audit Committee members receive an additional 6,000 euros per annum, members of the other

committees receive 5,000 euros per annum.

All the members of the Supervisory Board also receive expense allowances of 1,600 euros per annum, which have not been

included in the above remuneration figures.

Mr Romanet de Beaune has indicated that he does do not wish to receive any remuneration or expense allowance with regard

to his membership of the Supervisory Board or its committees.

Mr Hazewinkel indirectly holds bonds in Schiphol Group, which he already owned when he was appointed Supervisory Director.

He intends to retain these bonds until maturity and not to trade them in the interim.

No shares, options, loans, advances or guarantees have been granted to members of the Supervisory Board.
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Management Board

The disclosure of the remuneration of members of the Management Board required by Section 2:383c of the Netherlands Civil

Code is as follows.

Regular salary

(in euros) 2013 2012

Jos A. Nijhuis 384,711 384,711

Maarten M. de Groof 300,512 300,512

Els A. de Groot 325,000 243,750

Ad P.J.M. Rutten 300,512 300,512

Pieter M. Verboom - 175,299

Total 1,310,735 1,404,784

Based on the assessment by the Supervisory Board of the extent to which the targets were achieved, the following short-term

incentive (STI) has been charged to the result for 2013 in respect of the STI scheme for 2013 The STI was set at 40.0% of the

fixed salary for the CEO, at 38.8% for Mr de Groof and Mr Rutten and at 20.9% for Ms de Groot. The scheme for the CFO, Ms

de Groot, is different from the current scheme and anticipates the future remuneration policy.

Variable remuneration (short term)

(in euros) 2013 2012

Jos A. Nijhuis 153,884 115,413

Maarten M. de Groof 116,448 85,145

Els A. de Groot 67,773 39,382

Ad P.J.M. Rutten 116,448 85,145

Pieter M. Verboom - 61,355

Total 454,554 386,440

An achievement of long-term objectives in the remuneration of the members of the Management Board is in place. The LTI is

a conditional component of annual remuneration with an on-target level of 35% of the fixed salary. The final award of this

remuneration depends on the cumulative economic profit (EP) realised over periods of three successive years, based on the EP

targets set in the medium-term business plan approved by the Supervisory Board. If the company performs exceptionally well

(if the agreed performance targets are exceeded by more than 10%), the LTI may be up to 52.5% of the fixed salary. Here too

the scheme for the CFO, Ms de Groot, includes an on-target performance of 17.38% of her fixed income with a maximum of

27.04% if the target is exceeded by 20% or more. The time horizon has been extended to four years. This means that the grant

is based on a consolidated series of four successive EP results and any grant will not be confirmed for four years.
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At the end of each year, an estimate is made of the amount of the LTI payable on conclusion of the three-year period. During

the reference period, a proportionate part is charged each year to the result for the relevant year. Payment is only made if the

Management Board member is still employed by the company at the end of the three or four-year period. If it is agreed that

the contract of employment should be terminated, the award is made pro rata. It is also possible to calculate and pay out future

variable remuneration in advance in such cases.

The performance contracts with each member of the Management Board include a claw-back clause (provision II.2.11 of the

Netherlands Corporate Governance Code) and permit the Supervisory Board to make retroactive adjustments in certain

circumstances (provision II.2.10 of the Code).

In respect of the LTI, the Supervisory Board’s assessment of the economic profit has led to a provision for employee remuneration

as at 31 December 2013 as follows:

• the full LTI for 2011 (reference period 2011 to 2013), including a swing factor of 1,5;
• two-thirds of the LTI for 2012 (reference period 2012 to 2014), including a swing factor of 1,0; and
• one-third of the LTI for 2013 (reference period 2013 to 2015), including a swing factor of 1,0.

Consequently, the following costs were chargeable to the financial year:

Variable remuneration (long term)

(in euros) 2013 2012

Jos A. Nijhuis 198,977 198,644

Maarten M. de Groof 155,529 155,169

Els A. de Groot 37,917 -

Ad P.J.M. Rutten 155,529 155,169

Pieter M. Verboom - 165,236

Total 547,951 674,218

The 2010 LTI was paid in 2013. As it had been provided for, the payment did not lead to a charge on the 2013 result. In 2014,

payment will be made out of the provisions formed for the 2011 LTI, relating to the economic profit over the three-year period

2011 to 2013.

Mr Verboom will remain associated with Schiphol until 31 December 2014 as an advisor for the activities in Brisbane. He will

receive a fee of 100,000 euros for this.
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The pension costs presented below concern the payment of regular pension contributions and a refund of contributions unduly

withheld.

Pension costs

(in euros) 2013 2012

Jos A. Nijhuis 114,317 108,319

Maarten M. de Groof 88,591 81,638

Els A. de Groot 94,943 67,687

Ad P.J.M. Rutten 88,591 115,248

Pieter M. Verboom - 91,880

Total 386,442 464,772

Defined-benefit pensions are in line with the average earnings scheme in force since 1 January 2004, in accordance with the

standard Algemeen Burgerlijk Pensioenfonds (ABP) rules. The contribution payable to the pension scheme is calculated each

year by ABP and paid in full by the company.

Mr Rutten could have retired in 2013 at the age of 62 but decided not to do so. He has defined retirement benefits equalling

70% of his final total fixed salary at the age of 62 (a final salary pension). As Mr Rutten's term of office has been extended by

one year, his pension will start a year later, requiring deferral and an actuarial recalculation using ABP factors.

It has been agreed that ABP will accrue the pension between the ages of 62 and 63 on the normal average pay basis rather

than on final salary. ABP established that a supplementary contribution of 97,267 euros to the ABP Extra Pension (AEP) was

required to meet the final salary pension for 2013.

Mr Nijhuis and Mr de Groof also participate in the ABP average earnings scheme (under which retirement benefits based on

full pension accrual are paid from the age of 65). It has been contractually agreed with them that their term of office will end

at the age of 62. They are entitled to a fixed annual contribution (representing a percentage of fixed salary) towards a life-

course savings scheme in order to compensate for the missing pensionable years between the ages of 62 and 65. 

Consequently, the following costs were chargeable to the financial year:

Pension costs (supplementary)

(in euros) 2013 2012

Jos A. Nijhuis 32,700 33,075

Maarten M. de Groof 36,061 36,566

Ad P.J.M. Rutten 97,267 -

Total 166,029 69,641

The other payments concern allowances for healthcare insurance costs and entertainment expenses, the employers’ share of

social security contributions and various non-recurring benefits.
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Other payments

(in euros) 2013 2012

Jos A. Nijhuis 10,691 11,134

Maarten M. de Groof 10,691 11,134

Els A. de Groot 10,691 8,373

Ad P.J.M. Rutten 10,691 11,134

Pieter M. Verboom - 31,201

Total 42,763 72,977

Total remuneration to the Management Board charged to profit and loss 2,908,474 3,072,832

A crisis levy imposed by the Dutch government amounts to 227,000 euros in total for the Management Board. This crisis tax

levy is payable by the employer and is not included in the total remuneration of the Management Board.
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Subsidiaries

Registered in Direct / indirectinterest in %

Schiphol Nederland B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Australia Pty Ltd Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Socrates B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol North America Holding Inc. Delaware 100.00

Eindhoven Airport N.V. Eindhoven 51.00

Schiphol Asia Sdn. Bhd. Kuala Lumpur 100.00

N.V. Luchthaven Lelystad Lelystad 100.00

Luchthaven Lelystad Vastgoed B.V.1 Lelystad 100.00

Schiphol USA Inc. New York 100.00

Rotterdam Airport B.V. Rotterdam 100.00

Rotterdam Airport Supplies Services B.V.1 Rotterdam 100.00

Rotterdam Airport Holding B.V.1 Rotterdam 100.00

Rotterdam Airport Vastgoed B.V.1 Rotterdam 100.00

Beheer- en beleggingsmaatschappij Balnag B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Brisbane Airport Real Estate B.V. 1 Schiphol 100.00

Malpensa Real Estate B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Malpensa Real Estate II B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol International B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Badhoevedorp B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Participaties A4 Zone West B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Logistics Park B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Eindhoven B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Eindhoven Finance B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Eindhoven II B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate International B.V. 1 Schiphol 100.00

HAFOK B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate World Trade Center B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Italy Srl 1 Lonate Pozzolo 100.00

Airport Real Estate Management B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Airport Property Management B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Avioport SpA 1 Lonate Pozzolo 70.00

Schiphol Telematics B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Consumer Services Holding B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Airport Retail B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Hotel Holding B.V.1 Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Hotel Operational Company B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Hotel Property Company B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Services Company B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Altaï B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Holding Altaï SCI Parijs 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate TransPort Holding B.V. Schiphol 100.00

Schiphol Real Estate Transport B.V. Schiphol 100.00

1) The provisions of Section 403, Book 2, of the Dutch Civil Code apply with respect to these companies
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These aforementioned subsidiaries are fully consolidated.

Abridged balance sheet for the minority interests in Eindhoven Airport N.V. and Avioport SpA exclusive of the interests of

Schiphol Group:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Assets

Non-current assets 50,261 47,170

Current assets 5,667 6,728

55,928 53,898

Equity and liabilities

Total equity 25,221 21,998

Non-current liabilities 27,050 27,977

Current liabilities 3,657 3,923

55,928 53,898

Abridged income statement for these minority interests exclusive of the interests of Schiphol Group:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Revenue 19,605 17,910

Other income, from property - 1,505 - 2,790

18,100 15,120

Total operating expenses 14,207 15,289

Operating result 3,893 - 169

Financial income and expenses 246 - 1,297

Result befor tax 4,139 - 1,466

Corporate income tax 847 810

Result 3,292 - 2,276

2192013 Annual Report



Joint Ventures

The interests in the following entities are proportionately consolidated:

Registered in

Direct / indirect

interest in %

Airport Real Estate Basisfonds C.V. Schiphol 61.15

Transport Beheer B.V. Schiphol 60.00

Transport C.V. Schiphol 60.00

EnergyGrounds B.V. Schiphol 51.00

Schiphol Travel Taxi B.V. Schiphol 50.00

Flight Forum Beheer Vennoot B.V. Eindhoven 50.00

Beheer Personeelsrestaurant Schiphol B.V. Schiphol 50.00

Pantares Tradeport Asia Ltd Hong Kong 50.00

GEM Beheer Badhoevedorp B.V. Schiphol 50.00

Villa Carmen B.V. Amsterdam 47.44

Villa Carmen Srl Milaan 47.44

Arlanda Schiphol Development Company AB Stockholm 40.00

VAI 1 SCI Parijs 40.00

GEM A4 zone west Beheer B.V. Schiphol 33.33

GEM A4 zone west C.V. Schiphol 33.00

GEM Badhoevedorp Zuid C.V. Schiphol 19.00

As managing partners, the subsidiary Airport Real Estate Management B.V. and joint ventures Flight Forum Beheer B.V. and

Flight Square Beheer B.V., bear joint and several liability for the debts of Airport Real Estate Basisfonds C.V., Flight Forum C.V.

and Flight Square C.V., respectively.

The group nevertheless exercises joint control over all the above entities and so they are consolidated proportionally. In the

contractual arrangements establishing these joint ventures, the venturers have agreed that decisions on key strategic, financial

and operational matters require their unanimous consent.
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Abridged balance sheet for Schiphol Group’s interests in the proportionately consolidated entities:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Assets

Non-current assets 264,029 233,998

Current assets 11,863 40,959

275,892 274,957

Equity and liabilities

Total equity 133,259 130,498

Non-current liabilities 128,160 131,403

Current liabilities 14,473 13,056

275,892 274,957

Abridged income statement for Schiphol Group’s share in the results of these entities:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Revenue 26,375 26,492

Other income, from property - 483 - 9,762

25,892 16,730

Total operating expenses 10,386 20,225

Operating result 15,506 - 3,495

Financial income and expenses - 4,875 - 4,502

Share in result of associates 248 414

Result befor tax 10,879 - 7,583

Corporate income tax - 290 485

Result 10,589 - 7,098

At 31 December 2013, the outstanding loans to joint ventures were 6.9 million euros as a result of transactions with joint

ventures.
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Associates

Registered in

Direct / indirect

interest in %

JFK IAT Member LLC Delaware 100.00

Flight Forum C.V. Eindhoven 49.00

Schiphol Logistics Park B.V. Schiphol 45.00

Schiphol Logistics Park C.V. Schiphol 38.08

Cargonaut B.V. Schiphol 36.93

Mainport Innovation Fund B.V. Delft 25.00

Schiphol Area Development Company N.V. Schiphol 25.00

Airport Medical Services B.V. Haarlemmermeer 20.00

Airport Medical Services C.V. Haarlemmermeer 20.00

Tradeport Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong 18.75

Brisbane Airport Corporation Holdings Ltd Brisbane 18.72

Aéroports de Paris S.A. Parijs 8.00

Schiphol Group owns all of the class A shares in JFK IAT Member LLC and accordingly exerts significant influence. This associate

is not consolidated. The governance structure is determined by the following agreements:

• Schiphol USA Inc. and Delta Airlines concluded an operating agreement under which Schiphol USA Inc. holds all the class A
shares and Delta Airlines holds all the class B shares in JFK IAT Member LLC. This agreement also contains arrangements on
the division of the result between the shareholders, the two shareholders’ powers in respect of strategic decisions, operational
management and the shareholders’ further rights and obligations;

• JFK IAT LLC (a subsidiary of JFK IAT Member LLC) and Delta Airlines concluded an anchor tenant agreement under which JFK
IAT LLC and Delta Airlines are proportionally represented in a Management Committee and an Operations Advisory
Committee, which committees determine the policies in key financial and operational areas;

• JFK IAT LLC and the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey concluded a lease agreement regarding Terminal 4 under
which the Port Authority has far-reaching consultation rights and veto rights over key strategic and operational areas;

• Schiphol USA Inc.’s revenues primarily consist of regular revenues resulting from management contracts and depend to a
limited extent on the revenues of JFK IAT LLC.

Schiphol Group has an interest of 18.72% in Brisbane Airport Corporation Holdings Ltd which owns the entire share capital of

Brisbane Airport Corporation Holdings No. 2 Pty Ltd, which in turn is sole shareholder of Brisbane Airport Corporation Ltd.

(BACL). Despite Schiphol Group’s interest in Brisbane Airport Corporation Ltd (BACL) being less than 20%, it has significant

influence as a result of the following:

• Schiphol Group has a blocking vote with respect to a various important decisions which can only be taken by the shareholders’
meeting by a majority in excess of 90%;

• Schiphol Group has the right to appoint three out of the nine members of the Board of Directors, each of whom has equal
voting rights, meaning that the members appointed by Schiphol Group represent 33.3% of the votes;

• The existence of a Technical Services Agreement between Schiphol Group and BACL under which Schiphol Group has, for
instance, the sole right to put forward candidates for Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer); and

• The existence of an Intellectual Property Agreement between Schiphol Group and BACL under which BACL is able to share
Schiphol Group’s expertise relating to the operation and development of an airport.
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Schiphol Group has an interest of 8% in Aéroports de Paris S.A. (ADP). Despite Schiphol Group’s interest in ADP being less than

20%, it has significant influence as a result of the following:

• It is a long-term alliance and a mutual shareholding;
• An Industrial Cooperation Committee (ICC) has been set up which supervises the cooperation between the two parties in

eight specified areas of operation. Each company has four representatives on this committee, which is chaired alternately by
the Presidents of ADP and Schiphol Group;

• The President (CEO) of Schiphol Group is a member of the ADP strategy committee and as such is able to exert significant
influence on strategic decisions of ADP’s one-tier board;

• The President (CEO) and Financial Director (CFO) of Schiphol Group have seats on ADP’s one-tier board;
• Joint international airport projects will be developed in the future, whereby Schiphol Group will focus on reinforcing the

dual hub within the SkyTeam international network.

The fair value of Aéroports de Paris S.A. (ADP), derived from the market price of the share at 31 December 2013, was 8.1 billion

euros (31 December 2012: 5.8 billion euros). Schiphol Group’s share in this was 653 million euros (31 December 2012: 462 million

euros).

The municipality of Amsterdam, the municipality of Haarlemmermeer, Schiphol Group and the province of North-Holland

established a land development company Schiphol Area Development Company N.V. (SADC) as a public-private partnership in

1987. SADC’s object is to safeguard and enhance the economic position of Amsterdam Airport Schiphol and surrounding areas

through the ongoing development of business locations and supporting infrastructure projects. The shareholders decided in

cooperation agreements to jointly acquire land and to contribute their existing holdings, so as to be able subsequently to

develop this area together. SADC may demand a maximum contribution of 20 million euros from the shareholders for the

acquisition of these lands. Since 2010, the four parties referred to above have each held 25% of the shares in SADC.

Financial information relating to Schiphol Group’s share of the above associates:

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Total assets 1,430,163 1,496,007

Total equity 383,042 292,556

Revenue 495,935 441,757

Net result 212,343 179,679

At 31 December 2013, the outstanding loans to joint ventures were 59.5 million euros.

At 31 December 2013, Tradeport Hong Kong had a loan outstanding of 6.4 million euros. The guaranteed part of this loan

amounts to 1.9 million euros. On the basis of Schiphol Group’s share in Tradeport Hong Kong (18.75%), the amount of the

maximum guarantee attributable to Schiphol Group is 0.4 million euros. Schiphol Group has also given guarantees for a

maximum of 3.8 million euros in respect of the liabilities of Tradeport Hong Kong relating to land on which the company has

a concession for the operation of the logistics centre.

At 30 June 2013, Brisbane Airport Corporation Ltd (BACL) had a contingent liability based on passenger and traffic growth

forecasts for capital expenditure at Brisbane Airport totalling 66.2 euros million over several years. Major expansions have been

planned in the next few years in the form of a new runway and an extension of the terminals and the infrastructure. On the

basis of Schiphol Group’s indirect interest of 18.72% in BACL, the associate’s contingent liability amounts to 12.4 million euros.
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Company income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Result on ordinary activities after tax 19,037 33,081

Results of subsidiaries 208,455 165,633

Result attributable to shareholders (net result) 227,492 198,714
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Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2013

Assets Note 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

(in thousands of euros)

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 2,669,507 2,523,167

Investments in associates 39 611,381 605,719

3,280,888 3,128,886

Current assets

Receivables 40 2,435 27,752

Cash and cash equivalents 2,644 21,565

3,285,967 3,178,203

Equity and liabilities Note 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

(in thousands of euros)

Issued share capital 84,511 84,511

Share premium 362,811 362,811

Retained profits 2,288,101 2,177,062

Other reserves - 111,775 - 100,548

Revaluation reserve 412,941 418,911

Other statutory reserves 19,964 34,683

Net result of the year 222,544 198,714

Shareholders' equity 41 3,284,045 3,176,145

Employee benefits 42 954 877

Current liabilities 43 968 1,181

3,285,967 3,178,203
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Notes to the company financial statements

General

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the statutory provisions of Part 9, Book 2 of the

Netherlands Civil Code, exercising the option in Section 2:362(8) of the Netherlands Civil Code to apply the same accounting

policies for the company financial statements as have been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Use has also been made of the provisions of Section 2:402 of the Netherlands Civil Code permitting presentation of an abridged

income statement.

Accounting policies

General

The accounting policies for the company financial statements are the same as those for the consolidated financial statements.

Where no specific policies are mentioned, see the accounting policies for the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Companies over which Schiphol Group is able to exercise control or which Schiphol Group effectively manages are stated at

net asset value determined by measuring the assets, provisions and liabilities and results according to the policies applied in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.

If the share of losses attributable to Schiphol Group exceeds the carrying amount of a subsidiary, losses over and above that

amount are not recognised unless Schiphol Group has given guarantees to the entity concerned or other commitments have

been entered into or payments have been made on behalf of that entity. In that case, a provision is made for the consequent

liabilities.

Results on transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated in proportion to the interest in the entities concerned, except where

the results arise on transactions with third parties. Losses are not eliminated if there are indications of impairment of the assets

concerned.

Elements of equity

Various statutory reserves are maintained in the company balance sheet and form part of the retained profits in the consolidated

balance sheet. These reserves restrict the ability to distribute equity. They are the reserve for property revaluations and the

reserves for intangible assets and for investments in associates, which have been combined under other statutory reserves.

The revaluation reserve (Section 2:390(1) of the Netherlands Civil Code) is maintained for unrealised fair value gains on

individual items of investment property (land and buildings) held by companies forming part of Schiphol Group. Additions to

this reserve are made through the profit appropriation, after allowing for corporate income tax. On the sale of investment

property, the amount of the revaluation reserve for the property in question is transferred to other reserves.
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The reserve for intangible assets (Section 2:365(2) of the Netherlands Civil Code) is maintained in connection with research and

development costs (software) capitalised by companies forming part of Schiphol Group. The reserve for investments in associates

(Section 2:389(6) of the Netherlands Civil Code) is formed for the share in the positive results of the entities concerned and in

fair value gains recognised directly in equity. Amounts are not recognised in respect of entities whose cumulative results are

not positive. The reserve is reduced by the amount of dividend distributions, fair value losses recognised directly in equity and

any distributions which Schiphol Group would be able to effect without restriction.

Equity in the consolidated balance sheet includes an exchange differences reserve, an other financial interests reserve and a

hedging transactions reserve. These reserves (recognised collectively in the company financial statements under the heading

of ‘Other reserves of Schiphol Group’) are also presented as part of company equity since they similarly restrict the ability to

distribute the reserves.

Notes to the company balance sheet and income statement

Where the notes to the company balance sheet and income statement are not materially different from the notes to the

consolidated balance sheet and income statement, they have not been repeated. See the notes to the consolidated balance

sheet and income statement for the items concerned.
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39. Non-current assets

(in thousands of euros)

Investment in

subsidiaries

Investment in

associates

Other financial

interests Total

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2011 2,529,596 586,462 6,141 3,122,199

Movements in 2012

Result for the year 165,633 34,800 - 200,433

Dividend - 97,500 - 13,933 - - 111,433

Sales - - - 7,058 - 7,058

Fair value gains and losses - - 917 917

Translation differences - 646 - - - 646

Changes in the hedging transactions reserve - 70,716 - - - 70,716

Other movements - 3,198 - 1,610 - - 4,808

Total movements in the year - 6,427 19,257 - 6,141 6,689

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 2,523,169 605,719 - 3,128,888

Movements in 2013

Result for the year 208,455 21,657 - 230,112

Dividend - 50,500 - 16,388 - - 66,888

Translation differences - 18,565 - - - 18,565

Changes in the hedging transactions reserve 6,388 - - 6,388

Other movements 560 393 - 953

Total movements in the year 146,338 5,662 - 152,000

Investments in subsidiaries are the wholly-owned subsidiaries Schiphol Nederland B.V. or Schiphol International B.V.

Section 2:403 of the Netherlands Civil Code applies to Schiphol Nederland B.V.

Investments in associates are the 8% interest of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol in Aéroports de Paris S.A. and other financial interests

related to the 1% interest in Flughafen Wien AG.

40. Current assets

(in thousands of euros) 2013 2012

Corporate income tax 2,369 2,436

Group Companies - 25,269

Other receivables 66 47

2,435 27,752
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41. Shareholders' equity

(in thousands of euros) Issued share capital Share premium Retained profits Other reserves

Revaluation

reserve

Other statutory

reserves

Net Result Financial

Year Total

Balance as at 31 December 2011 84,511 362,811 2,078,989 - 26,486 417,065 37,610 194,485 3,148,985

Movements in 2012

Appropriation of result for previous year - - 98,073 - 1,846 - 2,927 - 96,992 -

Distribution of dividend - - - - - - - 97,493 - 97,493

Exchange differences - - - - 646 - - - - 646

Changes in fair value on hedging transactions - - - - 70,716 - - - - 70,716

Changes in fair value on other financial interests - - - 918 - - - 918

Net result - - - - - - 198,714 198,714

Other comprehensive income associates - - - - 1,617 - - - - 1,617

Change in accounting policy (employee benefits) - - - - 2,000 - - - - 2,000

Total movements in the year - - 98,073 - 74,061 1,846 - 2,927 4,229 27,160

Balance as at 31 December 2012 84,511 362,811 2,177,062 - 100,547 418,911 34,683 198,714 3,176,145

Movements in 2013

Appropriation of result for previous year - - 111,039 - - 5,970 - 14,719 - 90,350 -

Distribution of dividend - - - - 108,365 - - - 108,365 - 108,365

Exchange differences - - - - 18,565 - - - - 18,565

Changes in fair value on hedging transactions - - - 6,442 - - - 6,442

Net result - - - - - - 227,492 227,492

Other comprehensive income associates - - - 1,375 - - - 1,375

Change in accounting policy (employee benefits) - - - - 480 - - - - 480

Total movements in the year - - 111,039 - 11,228 - 5,970 - 14,719 28,777 107,899

Balance as at 31 December 2013 84,511 362,811 2,288,101 - 111,775 412,941 19,964 227,492 3,284,045
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41. Shareholders' equity

(in thousands of euros) Issued share capital Share premium Retained profits Other reserves

Revaluation

reserve

Other statutory

reserves

Net Result Financial

Year Total

Balance as at 31 December 2011 84,511 362,811 2,078,989 - 26,486 417,065 37,610 194,485 3,148,985

Movements in 2012

Appropriation of result for previous year - - 98,073 - 1,846 - 2,927 - 96,992 -

Distribution of dividend - - - - - - - 97,493 - 97,493

Exchange differences - - - - 646 - - - - 646

Changes in fair value on hedging transactions - - - - 70,716 - - - - 70,716

Changes in fair value on other financial interests - - - 918 - - - 918

Net result - - - - - - 198,714 198,714

Other comprehensive income associates - - - - 1,617 - - - - 1,617

Change in accounting policy (employee benefits) - - - - 2,000 - - - - 2,000

Total movements in the year - - 98,073 - 74,061 1,846 - 2,927 4,229 27,160

Balance as at 31 December 2012 84,511 362,811 2,177,062 - 100,547 418,911 34,683 198,714 3,176,145

Movements in 2013

Appropriation of result for previous year - - 111,039 - - 5,970 - 14,719 - 90,350 -

Distribution of dividend - - - - 108,365 - - - 108,365 - 108,365

Exchange differences - - - - 18,565 - - - - 18,565

Changes in fair value on hedging transactions - - - 6,442 - - - 6,442

Net result - - - - - - 227,492 227,492

Other comprehensive income associates - - - 1,375 - - - 1,375

Change in accounting policy (employee benefits) - - - - 480 - - - - 480

Total movements in the year - - 111,039 - 11,228 - 5,970 - 14,719 28,777 107,899

Balance as at 31 December 2013 84,511 362,811 2,288,101 - 111,775 412,941 19,964 227,492 3,284,045
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The other statutory reserves comprise the reserve for intangible assets and the reserve for investments in associates.

The other reserves comprise the exchange differences reserve, other financial interests reserve and hedging transactions reserve.

These reserves are part of the consolidated equity and are also presented as part of company equity since, like the revaluation

reserve and the other statutory reserves, they restrict the ability to distribute the reserves. As a consequence, the ability to

distribute equity is restricted to retained earnings.

42. Employee benefits

The liabilities for employee benefits relate to the Management Board of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol and concern the net liabilities

in respect of the long-term variable remuneration. See the notes on employee benefits in the consolidated financial statements

for further details.

43. Current liabilities

2012 2011

Group Companies 200 528

Accruals 711 562

Other liabilities 58 90

969 1,180

See note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for a breakdown of accountantt's fees.

Schiphol, 13 February 2014

For the company financial statements for 2013:

 

Supervisory Board

A. Ruys, Chairman

J.G.B. Brouwer

F.J.G.M. Cremers

L. Galzy

H.J. Hazewinkel RA

M.A. Scheltema

J.G. Wijn

Management Board

J.A. Nijhuis RA

President & Chief Executive Officer

M.M. de Groof

Chief Commercial Officer

E.A. de Groot

Chief Financial Officer

A.P.J.M. Rutten

Chief Operations Officer
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Other information

 

Proposed profit appropriation

Article 25 of the company’s Articles of Association contains the following provisions on profit appropriation:

1. Without prejudice to the provisions of Section 2:105 of the Netherlands Civil Code, the profit according to the financial

statements prepared by the Management Board shall be added to reserves unless the General Meeting of Shareholders resolves

to make profit distributions according to a proposal by the Management Board approved by the Supervisory Board.

2. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide the appropriation of the amounts thus reserved according to a proposal

by the Management Board approved by the Supervisory Board.

(in thousands of euros)

Result attributable to shareholders 227,492

With due observance of Article 25 of the Articles of Association,

it is proposed that the result for the year be appropriated as follows:

Addition to the revaluation reserve - 4,542

(fair value gains and losses on property recognised in the profit and loss account, after adjustment for fair value

losses below cost and after deduction of corporate income tax)

Addition to the statutory reserve 5,057

(sum of the results of associates, less dividend distributions, and investments in research and development less

amortisation)

Dividend distribution - 135,350

(60% of the net result less fair value gains and losses on property after deduction of corporate income tax)

- 134,835

Addition to retained profits 92,657

Events after the balance sheet date

For details of the events after the balance sheet date, reference is made to the notes to the consolidated financial statements

on page 210.
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Independent Auditor's report

To the General Meeting of Shareholders of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2013 of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol, Amsterdam as set out on pages

132 to 233. The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the

consolidated profit and loss account, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year

then ended and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The

company financial statements comprise the company balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the company profit and loss account

for the year then ended and the notes, comprising a summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management Board’s responsibility

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch

Civil Code, and for the preparation of the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil

Code. Furthermore, the Management Board is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. This requires that we comply with ethical requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers

internal control relevant to the company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Management Board, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of N.V. Luchthaven

Schiphol as at 31 December 2013, and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Opinion with respect to the company financial statements

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol

as at 31 December 2013, and of its result for the year then ended in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2: 393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we have no deficiencies to

report as a result of our examination whether the management board report, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared

in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the information as required under Section 2: 392 sub 1 at b-h

has been annexed. Further we report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the

financial statements as required by Section 2: 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Amsterdam, 13 February 2014

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.

S. Barendregt-Roojers RA
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Historical summary

(in millions of euros, unless otherwise indicated) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Profit and loss account

Revenue 1,382 1,353 1,278 1,180 1,154 1,154 1,146 1,037 948 876

Fair value gains and losses on property 3 - 24 - 1 22 - 40 19 111 29 13 5

Own work capitalised - - - - - - - - - -

Total operating revenue - - - - - - - - - -

Other income, from property - 12 1 - - 3 3 10 10 18

Total operating expenses before depreciation, amortisation and impairment - 798 - 806 - 766 - 719 - 731 - 709 -666 - 598 - 492 - 475

EBITDA 587 534 512 483 383 466 594 478 478 424

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment - 266 - 238 - 208 - 186 - 196 - 172 -175 - 162 - 167 - 160

Operating result 321 296 304 297 187 294 420 316 311 265

Financial income and expenses - 95 - 88 - 91 - 115 - 91 - 54 -35 - 36 - 34 - 26

Taxation, share in operating result of associates and minority interests 5 - 12 - 15 - 10 37 - 54 -68 246 - 84 - 78

Result on ordinary activities after tax 231 196 198 172 133 187 316 527 193 161

Minority interests 3 2 - 3 - 3 - - - - - -

Net result 227 199 194 169 133 187 316 527 193 161

Balance sheet

Non-current assets 5,050 5,108 5,106 5,000 4,798 4,754 3945 3,681 3,249 3,157

Current assets 777 681 681 506 729 655 342 483 432 399

Total assets 5,828 5,788 5,787 5,506 5,527 5,409 4287 4,165 3,681 3,556

Equity (excl. non-controlling interests) - - - - - - - - - -

Equity (incl. non-controlling interests) 3,309 3,203 3,175 3,109 2,975 2,887 2957 2,722 2,245 2,093

Provisions 46 44 51 65 69 50 54 63 84 115

Non-current liabilities (incl. n/c interests) - - - - - - - - - -

Non-current liabilities (excl. n/c interests) 1,695 1,980 1,980 1,762 2,061 1,747 914 865 1,006 958

Current liabilities 777 562 519 569 422 725 362 514 346 391

Total equity and liabilities 5,828 5,788 5,724 5,506 5,527 5,409 4287 4,165 3,681 3,556

Operating cash flow1 468 399 387 351 327 421 313 362 307 327

Ratios

Operating result as % of revenue 23.2 21.9 23.8 25.1 16.2 25.5 36.6 30.5 32.8 30.2

Return on average equity in % (ROE) 7.0 6.2 6.2 5.6 4.5 6.4 11.1 21.2 8.9 7.9

Return on Net Assets in %2 7.8 7.4 7.4 7.9 4.9 7.5 12.3 10.1 9.7 8.6

Return on Average Capital Employed in % 3 7.2 7.4 7.5 7.3 4.5 7.3 11.7 9.8 9.9 8.7

FFO / Total debt in % 4 24.7 24.5 18.5 17.0 18.5 19.3 34.3 39.0 28.7 33.4

FFO interest coverage ratio5 5.7 5.6 4.5 3.8 4.4 6.5 7.7 8.3 6.8 7.9

Leverage6 37.6 37.8 37.9 37.2 40.5 38.6 23.5 24.8 29.4 32.0

Figures per share

Earnings per share 1,222 1,068 1,045 908 710 1,083 1,844 3,077 1,126 939

Operating cash flow per share 2,512 2,143 2,081 1,883 1,756 2,439 1,830 2,114 1,754 1,912

Dividend per share 727 582 524 409 347 371 543 462 323 271

Personnel

Average effective full-time equivalent employees 2,058 2,087 2,115 2,328 2,496 2,506 2,459 2,293 2,179 2,216

1) For analysis see the cash flow statement

2) Up to and including 2005: Operating result /

average non-current assets less deferred taxes.

As from 2006: Operating result + result and

interest associates / average non-current assets

less deferred taxes

3) Up to and including 2003: operating result /

average of equity and liabilities less non-interest

bearing short term debt. As from 2004:

operating result / average of equity and interest-

bearing debt. As from 2006: Operating result +

result and interest associates / average of equity

and interest-bearing debt

4) Up to and including 2005: Funds from operations

adjusted for working capital / total debt. As from

2006: see calculation FFO / Total debt and FFO/

Interest coverage in the note on Financial Risk

Management

5) As from 2006: see calculation FFO / Total debt

and FFO/ Interest coverage in the note on

Financial Risk Management. Up to and including

2005: Funds from operating activities adjusted

for working capital plus interest income /

interest costs

6) Up to and including 2003: interest-bearing debt /

total equity and liabilities. As from 2004:

Interest-bearing debt / equity plus interest-

bearing debt in %
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Historical summary

(in millions of euros, unless otherwise indicated) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Profit and loss account

Revenue 1,382 1,353 1,278 1,180 1,154 1,154 1,146 1,037 948 876

Fair value gains and losses on property 3 - 24 - 1 22 - 40 19 111 29 13 5

Own work capitalised - - - - - - - - - -

Total operating revenue - - - - - - - - - -

Other income, from property - 12 1 - - 3 3 10 10 18

Total operating expenses before depreciation, amortisation and impairment - 798 - 806 - 766 - 719 - 731 - 709 -666 - 598 - 492 - 475

EBITDA 587 534 512 483 383 466 594 478 478 424

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment - 266 - 238 - 208 - 186 - 196 - 172 -175 - 162 - 167 - 160

Operating result 321 296 304 297 187 294 420 316 311 265

Financial income and expenses - 95 - 88 - 91 - 115 - 91 - 54 -35 - 36 - 34 - 26

Taxation, share in operating result of associates and minority interests 5 - 12 - 15 - 10 37 - 54 -68 246 - 84 - 78

Result on ordinary activities after tax 231 196 198 172 133 187 316 527 193 161

Minority interests 3 2 - 3 - 3 - - - - - -

Net result 227 199 194 169 133 187 316 527 193 161

Balance sheet

Non-current assets 5,050 5,108 5,106 5,000 4,798 4,754 3945 3,681 3,249 3,157

Current assets 777 681 681 506 729 655 342 483 432 399

Total assets 5,828 5,788 5,787 5,506 5,527 5,409 4287 4,165 3,681 3,556

Equity (excl. non-controlling interests) - - - - - - - - - -

Equity (incl. non-controlling interests) 3,309 3,203 3,175 3,109 2,975 2,887 2957 2,722 2,245 2,093

Provisions 46 44 51 65 69 50 54 63 84 115

Non-current liabilities (incl. n/c interests) - - - - - - - - - -

Non-current liabilities (excl. n/c interests) 1,695 1,980 1,980 1,762 2,061 1,747 914 865 1,006 958

Current liabilities 777 562 519 569 422 725 362 514 346 391

Total equity and liabilities 5,828 5,788 5,724 5,506 5,527 5,409 4287 4,165 3,681 3,556

Operating cash flow1 468 399 387 351 327 421 313 362 307 327

Ratios

Operating result as % of revenue 23.2 21.9 23.8 25.1 16.2 25.5 36.6 30.5 32.8 30.2

Return on average equity in % (ROE) 7.0 6.2 6.2 5.6 4.5 6.4 11.1 21.2 8.9 7.9

Return on Net Assets in %2 7.8 7.4 7.4 7.9 4.9 7.5 12.3 10.1 9.7 8.6

Return on Average Capital Employed in % 3 7.2 7.4 7.5 7.3 4.5 7.3 11.7 9.8 9.9 8.7

FFO / Total debt in % 4 24.7 24.5 18.5 17.0 18.5 19.3 34.3 39.0 28.7 33.4

FFO interest coverage ratio5 5.7 5.6 4.5 3.8 4.4 6.5 7.7 8.3 6.8 7.9

Leverage6 37.6 37.8 37.9 37.2 40.5 38.6 23.5 24.8 29.4 32.0

Figures per share

Earnings per share 1,222 1,068 1,045 908 710 1,083 1,844 3,077 1,126 939

Operating cash flow per share 2,512 2,143 2,081 1,883 1,756 2,439 1,830 2,114 1,754 1,912

Dividend per share 727 582 524 409 347 371 543 462 323 271

Personnel

Average effective full-time equivalent employees 2,058 2,087 2,115 2,328 2,496 2,506 2,459 2,293 2,179 2,216

1) For analysis see the cash flow statement

2) Up to and including 2005: Operating result /

average non-current assets less deferred taxes.

As from 2006: Operating result + result and

interest associates / average non-current assets

less deferred taxes

3) Up to and including 2003: operating result /

average of equity and liabilities less non-interest

bearing short term debt. As from 2004:

operating result / average of equity and interest-

bearing debt. As from 2006: Operating result +

result and interest associates / average of equity

and interest-bearing debt

4) Up to and including 2005: Funds from operations

adjusted for working capital / total debt. As from

2006: see calculation FFO / Total debt and FFO/

Interest coverage in the note on Financial Risk

Management

5) As from 2006: see calculation FFO / Total debt

and FFO/ Interest coverage in the note on

Financial Risk Management. Up to and including

2005: Funds from operating activities adjusted

for working capital plus interest income /

interest costs

6) Up to and including 2003: interest-bearing debt /

total equity and liabilities. As from 2004:

Interest-bearing debt / equity plus interest-

bearing debt in %
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